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“To consolidate as leading
Italian General Contractor and
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and well-being for the communities”




main ratios

2003 2002
economic items
total revenues 1,049 923 817
ebit 75 66 64
profit before taxes 41 29 26
net income 28 22 15
financial items
gross self-financing margin 112 65 34
capital expenditure 50 60 118
% on total revenues
total revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
ebit 7.1% 7.2% 7.8%
profit before taxes 3.9% 3.1% 3.2%
net income 2.6% 2.4% 1.8%
balance sheet items
total assets 1,216 1,142 1,113
fixed assets 193 203 200
net invested capital 359 356 341
net debt 115 128 119
net equity 244 227 222
order backlog by lines of business
2003
| | 20% 46%
9%
—4g 7% e
| 2% 16% 2003
Il railways and subways 1,859 2,013
I roads and motorways 1,283 723
I seaports and airports 87 89
hydraulic and hydroelectric plants 221 313
industrial and civil buildings 348 399
operations 1,213 870
total backlog 4,407
order backlog by geographical area
2003
Italy Italy 73%
abroad — abroad 27%
2003
I taly 3,961 3,200
abroad 1,050 1,207

total backlog 4,407
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N 2003 B 2002

return on sales (R.0.S.) - operating income / total revenues
return on investment (R.O.1.) - operating income / net invested capital
return on equity (R.O.E.) - net income / net equity

GEARING RATIO CURRENT RATIO QUICK RATIO
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gearing ratio - net indebtedness / net equity
current ratio - short-term assets / short-term liabilities
quick ratio - total accounts receivables and cash / short-term liabilities
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N 2003 B 2002

EBITDA - earnings before interests, taxes, depreciation and amortization
EBIT - earnings before interests and taxes
EBT - earnings before taxes

net cash flow

2003 2002
net income 28 22 15
depreciation, amortization and provisions 90 48 32
dividends (6) (5) (13)
gross self-financing margin 112 65 34

turnover ratios

Assets turnover Inventory turnover
(sales/total sales) (sales/inventory)
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The Chairman’s letter to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

In 2004 Astaldi achieved important goals; the financial statements that are pre-
sented to you are evidence of this. The positive trend in activities was better than
forecasted and has even allowed us to improve the objectives which were laid out
in the Industrial Plan. As originally set in the initial objectives, revenues exceeded
one billion Euro and reached a value which - in conjunction with the economic re-
sults — are evidence of the quality of management over the course of the year. This
goal also confirms the validity of the long-term constant growth strategy that was
adopted - the real element on which the Company's credibility with respect to the
market and its contractors is based upon - as well as the Group's capacity to cre-
ate value.

This growth is not just measurable by numbers; quality is also of prime importance
in our sector. The quality of our orders backlog — in other words, the capacity to
aim towards works of greater value and of higher technological worth — is undoubt-
edly one of the factors which has favoured the development of the Company over
the last few years. The quality of the production process - from planning to imple-
mentation and including the usage of advanced technology — is certainly one of the
elements of strength which continues to allow Astaldi to emerge in the internation-

al scenario of major works. The quality and professional competence of human re-



sources which the Company continues to attract and value. These elements all rep-
resent added value which have triggered the quantitative and qualitative increase of
the orders backlog — as of today exceeding five billion Euro — as well as the result-
ing growth of the Company's role as leading General Contractor in Italy.

The ability to implement works of elevated technical and organizational complexity
is one of our distinguishing elements, and is recognized and appreciated by not on-
ly the Italian, but also the international, market. The latter therefore represents one
of the elements which - in conjunction with the growth of the orders backlog and a
good economic performance in 2004 - constitute a solid base on which to create
additional sustained growth, as planned for the next five years within the objectives
laid out in the new Industrial Plan that was recently presented to the financial com-
munity.

Finally, it is important to make note of the significant achievements that were un-
dersigned by the Company during the course of the year. First of all, the New Milan
Expo Fair Center — planned and implemented within the forecasted 24 months, it
presented Milan and Italy with the largest fair center in Europe and is a masterpiece
of engineering and architecture, as well as serving as an example of the entrepre-

neurial and industrial qualities of the Company.

The Chairman
(Ernesto Monti)

S———

e X N —"“Covﬁ'

Chairman of Astaldi S.p.A.

Letter to Shareholders
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FROM LEFT TO RIGHT.

ITALY

New Milan Expo Fair Centre

ITALY

Rome-Naples High-Speed Railway
ITALY

New Hospital in Mestre

The events of 2004

March The works for the completion of the Bologna High-Speed Railway Sta-
tion were started

March Inauguration of the “Paquete IlI” Highway Link in El Salvador
April Awarding of the works for the completion of the Pitesti By-pass Road
in Rumania

May Formalization of the appointment as sponsor in relation to the project fi-
nancing contract for the completion and subsequent management of Milan Subway Line 5

June The first allotment of the Bucharest-Costanza highway was inaugurated

July Awarding of the works for the completion and subsequent manage-
ment of a new Hospital in Naples (“Ospedale del Mare”)




September Inauguration of the first allotment of the Milan Railway Link

October Awarding of the project financing contract for the completion and sub-
sequent management of a parking lot located in the center of Verona

October Admission of a company consortium headed by Astaldi to the pre-qual-
ification phase of the tender for the completion of the Bridge on the Messina Straits

December Awarding of works for the modernization and general con-

tracting implementation of two distinct allotments of the "Jonica 106" State
Highway

December Inauguration of the North Western roadway link of Rome

December Inauguration of the Kramis Dam in Algeria

FROM LEFT TO RIGHT.

QATAR

SASOL GTL Plant Project
ITALY

Pont Ventoux Hydroelectric
Power Plant

TURKEY

Anatolian Highway

<
o
o
~
—
o
0
o
e
[}
>
o
c
<
=







Legal appointments

14

Corporate bodies



Annual Report 2004

Legal appointments

Board of Directors

Chairman

Ernesto Monti

Deputy Chairman

Paolo Astaldi

Executive Deputy Chairman

Vittorio Di Paola

Chief Executive Officer*

Stefano Cerri

Directors

Caterina Astaldi

Pietro Astaldi

Giuseppe Cafiero

Luigi Guidobono Cavalchini

Franco A. Grassini

Mario Lupo

Vittorio Mele

Nicola Oliva

Maurizio Poloni

* Appointed as Chief Executive Officer during the course of the meeting of the Board of Directors of April

23rd, 2005.



General Managers

International Activities and Headquarters

Giuseppe Cafiero

Finance and Administration

Stefano Cerri

Domestic Activities

Nicola Oliva

Deputy General Manager

Finance and Administration

Paolo Citterio

Board of Statutory Auditors

Chairman

Eugenio Pinto

Statutory Auditors

Pierpaolo Singer

Pierumberto Spano

Subsitute Auditors

Maurizio Lauri

Antonio Sisca

Marco Zampano

Auditing Company

Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A.

Corporate bodies
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ITALY
New Hospital in Mestre

The Group

Astaldi - the leading General Contractor in Italy — plans and implements major
works within the sectors of transport infrastructures, hydroelectric and energy
plants and non-residential building. Founded in the 1920's, the Group has always
been a sponsor in large-scale construction projects and is today also well known
for the use of the most innovative construction methods.

Ever since its inception, Astaldi has developed a strong presence across the na-
tional territory, linking its name to important works of civil engineering which con-
tributed to the country's growth: highways, railways, aqueducts, ports, and public
buildings. At the end of World War I, the Company passed beyond national bor-
ders and became one of the better known Italian companies abroad. Today — with
its 7,000 employees - the Group is committed to implementing works in 17 differ-

= =

ent countries; these are primarily in the sector of railway transport infrastructures
and within projects yielding total revenues that exceeded the threshold of one bil-
lion Euro in December 31st, 2004.

The activity of Astaldi is not only limited to the construction phase of a project,
but also includes an active role in organizing the financing for its implementation.
The considerable participation in large-scale projects — which is supported by ad-
vanced technical and managerial know-how — strengthens its leading role as Gen-
eral Contractor and increases its presence in the sector of public works by means
of project financing. With this tool, Astaldi has sponsored important initiatives
such as the new Milan Subway Line 5 and the Appia Antica Underpass in Rome.



Astaldi retains a vast presence within the transport infrastructure sector where it
has completed notable works such as the Rome-Naples High-Speed railway line,
the Turin and Milan railway links, the Bologna High-Speed Railway, the Caracas-
Tuy and Puerto Cabello-La Encrucijada railway lines in Venezuela; the subway lines
of many cities Brescia, Naples, Los Teques in Venezuela, the Anatolian Highway in
Turkey, the Bucharest-Costanza highway in Rumania, and the international airport
of Bucharest. Recently, Astaldi was awarded works for the modernization of two
distinct lots of “Jonica 106” State Highway (“SS106”) and for the doubling of the
Parma-La Spezia Railway.

Among the major works executed in this field, we point to the subway lines of
Rome, Naples, Genoa and Milan in Italy and, internationally, to the Copenhagen
and Caracas Undergrounds.

In the sector of hydraulic works and energy production plants, note should be
made of the construction of the hydroelectric power plant of Pont Ventoux in Pied-
mont — the most important in Europe — and, internationally, the Nacaome aqueduct
in Honduras, the Kramis dam in Algeria and the Sidi Said dam in Morocco, as well
as the Balambano dam in Indonesia and the Xiaolangdi dam in China.

Within the sector for civil and industrial buildings, the recent completion of the
New Milan Expo Fair Center — the largest and most modern exposition center in
Europe - stands out; note should also be made of important healthcare building
projects such as a New Hospital in Mestre — the first significant project being im-
plemented in Italy by means of project financing — and a new Hospital in Naples
(“Ospedale del Mare”). In the hospital sector, as well as in that for parking lots and
transportation, Astaldi is involved in completing works with the objective of devel-
oping synergies with the relative multi-year service concessions.

ITALY
New Milan Expo Fair Centre
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Geographical areas

Florida

Honduras
Nicaragua
El Salvador
Costa Rica

Venezuela

Bolivia




Europe
Italy
Denmark

Eastern Europe
Romania
Turkey

Maghreb
Morocco
Algeria
Tunisia

Asia
Saudi Arabia
Qatar

Africa
Congo
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The Group structure

® ASTALDIspa.

ITALSTRADE S.p.A.

AS.TAC. Sl

ASTALDI INTERNATIONAL Ltd.

ASTALDI DE VENEZUELA C.A.

ASTALDI CONSTRUCTION Corp.

IT.S. S.p.A.

ASTALDI ARABIA Ltd.




The Managerial Team and Human Resources

The positive economic results that were attained and the industrial success that was
achieved by Astaldi during the course of the year are derived from the managerial skills
of its executives and the professional competence of its employees and collaborators.

VITTORIO DI PAOLA STEFANO CERRI GIUSEPPE CAFIERO
Executive Deputy Chairman Chief Executive Officer General Manager, International
Activities and Headquarters

Each new initiative is governed and managed by high-profile personnel that each and
every day help determine and achieve the Group’s objectives. A decision-making struc-
ture that is translated into an efficient managerial hierarchy endows strategic choices
with the flexibility and dynamism that are always at the basis of success.

The organizational structure of the Company is managed by the Board of Directors, the
body which defines policy and corporate strategy; Prof. Ernesto Monti was confirmed as
the latter's Chairman and holds a tenured position as Professor of Corporate Finance at
the University LUISS-Guido Carli of Rome. The Company’s strategic policy functions are
directed by Mr. Vittorio Di Paola, who was confirmed as Deputy Executive Chairman by
the Board of Directors meeting after the Shareholders' Meeting of April 29th, 2005. Mr.
Di Paola — who had served as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer for ten years — left
the office to Mr. Stefano Cerri, who had served as General Manager for Finance and
CFO since 1998. The Chief Executive Officer, who is responsible for implementing the
strategies that are outlined, relies on the contribution of an organizational structure
composed of three general managers: Mr. Giuseppe Cafiero and Mr. Nicola Oliva are re-
spectively responsible for the two general managerial functions — International Activities
and Headquarters, and Domestic Activities — on which new orders and contract man-
agement depend. And as General Manager for Finance and CFO, Mr. Cerri is responsi-
ble for all the Group’s administrative, financial, and tax-related activities.

The high level of managerial professionalism is reinforced by an equally high level of skill
on the part of Astaldi employees whose competency serves as the base for the indus-
trial quality of the completed works and contributes to the good reputation of the in-
dustrial brand. The employees of the Group currently total circa 7 thousand individuals
located across the building yards in Italy and across the world. Ever since its first year
of activity, the Group has adopted a human resources policy aimed at attracting and de-
veloping excellent professional positions. This goal was continued throughout 2004 by
investing, on the one hand, in the research and recruiting of high-potential human re-
sources, and on the other hand by managing and growing the human resources that are
already within the Group and serve as the basis of business success.

Selection and recruiting activity was strengthened by rationalizing the internal database,
thereby consolidating partnership and exchange relationships with Universities and us-
ing company internships as a means to promote the entry of young professionals into
the work environment.

The investment in training and upgrades - quantifiable as a total of circa 4 thousands
training hours — is evidence of the constant attention that the Group allocates to the
professional growth of its human resources which are viewed as the primary guarantee
for consolidating and maintaining a leadership position in the market.

NICOLA OLIVA
General Manager,
Domestic Activities

Group profile
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The 2005-2009 Industrial Plan

The industrial strategies which are outlined in the previous industrial plan have con-
firmed the elevated operational efficiency of the Group which has been further demon-
strated by the latter's capacity to complete contract orders of significant importance as
well as by the excellent management of the financial resources that are necessary to
sustain the growth and construction of a high-quality orders backlog. The industrial plan
for the years following 2005 begins with these introductory elements; this plan aim to
consistently consolidate the growth of Astaldi as the leading General Contractor in the
national market, but also to support the growing commitment of the Company abroad
and in its project financing and concession activities. The economic objective is to dou-
ble total revenues within five years; revenues exceeded one billion Euro in 2004.

The 2005-2009 Industrial Plan therefore aims at focusing upon the distinguishing
competencies of the Group for the purposes of strengthening its competitive position
and its operational leadership — even by means of external growth.

The strategic policies for the next five year period include — with regards to the na-
tional market — a growing commitment of the Group on contracts with an elevated
degree of technological complexity and which are structured according to general
contracting and project financing modalities, particularly in the sectors of trans-
port infrastructures, healthcare and parking lots. These areas are characterized by
a growing financial commitment whose aim is the development of project financing
and concession activity for the purpose of significantly increasing the incidence of
these sectors in the overall composition of the orders backlog.

In foreign markets, Astaldi aims towards an industrial strengthening in countries
with the highest potential and where its presence has already been consolidated,
such as Turkey, Venezuela and Rumania. The strategic plan also outlines growth
policies for the new markets of Eastern Europe and for further growth in the Mid-
dle East — also by means of company acquisitions which allow the synergies of the
Group to be exploited.

Finally, the organizational policy of the Group will be oriented for the purposes of
adequately supporting the development of General Contractor activities as well as
project financing and concession contracts by separating and focusing upon sin-
gle business units.



Corporate governance

Astaldi has adopted a corporate governance model which incorporates the princi-
ples of the Corporate Governance Code of Listed Companies and complies with
the recommendations issued by Consob as well as the best practices that are used
internationally.

The body of Astaldi Shareholders comprises more than 10,000 Shareholders who
own ordinary shares. The direct Shareholders which detained a shareholding of
more than 2% of share capital fully paid and represented by shares with voting
rights as of December 31st, 2004, are as follows:

main shareholders

%
FIN.AST S.R.L. 39.907
FINETUPAR INTERNATIONAL SA 12.525
GARTMORE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT PLC 5.32
NEXTRA INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SGR S.P.A. 2.195
J.P. MORGAN FLEMING ASSET MANAGEMENT (UK) LIMITED 2.128
CENTAURUS CAPITAL LP 2.111

The Board of Directors of Astaldi is currently formed of thirteen members. Non-ex-
ecutive directors are in the majority — seven out of thirteen — in order to guarantee
- as required by the Corporate Governance Code - that their opinion carries
enough weight in Board decisions by contributing to decision-making in the inter-
ests of the Company. There are also five independent directors whose characteris-
tics are outlined in the Corporate Governance Code.

The Board of Directors serves a central role within the Company’s organization
since it retains overall responsibility for the strategic and organizational policy of
the Company, in addition to monitoring the Group’s activity. In particular, the
Board of Directors examines and approves the Company’s strategic plans; assigns
and revokes mandates to the Chief Executive Officer; determines — on the basis of
the proposals formulated by the special Remuneration Committee and with the ap-
proval of the Board of Statutory Auditors — the compensation of directors; over-
sees general corporate management performance, with particular reference to
conflicts of interest; examines and approves transactions of significant economic,
asset or financial importance.

A significant part of the compensation paid to the CEO - as well as to the direc-
tors and executives of Astaldi — consists of emoluments linked to the achievement
of net income results by the Company. The proposals for these emoluments are
formulated by the Remuneration Committee which is composed of three majority
non-executive Directors. Its task also includes: the determination of the criteria for
the compensation of high-level executives; proposals for potential incentive plans
linked to directors, employees and collaborators; monitoring the transparency of
information in this area and supplying advice to the Board of Directors on issues
relating to compensation and remuneration.

Group profile
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The Company also has a Service for Internal Control and Organization whose func-
tion is to implement all appropriate and necessary actions for the control of cor-
porate processes, including those relative to policy, monitoring, and the detection
of critical elements and opportunities for improving corporate organization
Activities are undertaken on the basis of an annual auditing program which is
shared with the Internal Audit Committee and Top Management. The results of
these audits are periodically reported to the Audit Committee itself and the Board
of Statutory Auditors, in addition to top management.

The Internal Audit Committee — set up by the Board of Directors on February 5th,
2002 - implements consulting and proposal-oriented functions with respect to the
Board of Directors; these functions are relative to the activities of supervision over
the general management of the Company. In detail, this Committee — in addition to
assisting the Board in carrying out the tasks required by the Corporate Gover-
nance Code - evaluates the work plan prepared by the internal control manager
and receives the latter’s periodical reports; evaluates — in conjunction with the
Company’s administrative managers and auditors — the adequacy of adopted ac-
counting principles and their homogeneity in the preparation of the consolidated
accounts; evaluates the proposals formulated by the audit company for the pur-
poses of securing the relative appointment, as well as the work plan prepared for
the audit and the latter’s results; reports to the Board on conducted activities as
well as on the adequacy of the internal audit system on at least a half-year basis;
and monitors the adequacy of the Corporate Governance Code.

In addition, for the purposes of strengthening Corporate Governance, the Board of
Directors adopted the Code of Company Ethics on March 18th, 2003 which estab-
lishes general principles and - through rules of conduct — regulates the activities
of employees and collaborators of the Company and of all companies of the Group,
even those concerning relations with Shareholders, the Public Administration, sup-
pliers, contractors and subcontractors.

The Organization, Management and Control Model pursuant to Legislative Decree
no. 231/2001 of July 2nd, 2003 was also adopted for the purpose of safeguard-
ing the Company in the case of offences committed by the directors, employees
and collaborators of the Company - as laid out by the above-mentioned Legisla-
tive Decree.

Both the Code of Company Ethics and the Organization, Management and Control
Model pursuant to Legislative Decree no. 231/2001 have been updated in order to
adapt them to current regulations.



Environment, quality and safety

The quality of production and the safe-guarding of the environment, as well as
the security of employees and those making use of completed works, are insep-
arable elements that Astaldi has always considered inalienable values. Adher-
ence with the ISO 9001:2000 regulations on quality control systems and the
OHSAS 18001:1999 international technical specifications on corporate manage-
ment systems has resulted in organizational adjustments which had effects on
both internal processes as well as contractual ones.

All corporate structures are affected by the activity of the Quality Control Ser-
vice which has operated intensely for the purpose of transferring and consoli-
dating the innovations that implemented. Supervisory activity of the main com-
pany processes was later guaranteed by means of systematic internal audit ac-
tivity whose primary objective is the continuous improvements of services and
products.

In the months of February and August, periodical audits were implemented by the
certification Entity DNV Det Norske Veritas in order to verify the continued exis-
tence of the pre-requisites needed for maintaining the validity of the issued cer-
tifications. The audits — all completed with positive results — were implemented
on the Rome Headquarters as well on the contracts relating to the completion of
the New Milan Expo Fair Center and the Milan Railway Link which were managed

by Astaldi; audits were also done on the contracts in Rumania and Morocco in

relation to the Bucharest-Costanza Highway and the Sidi Said Dam which were
managed by ltalstrade.
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Corporate citizenship

Astaldi continues its policy of safe-guarding the environment and supporting cul-
tural values due to its belief that a search for maximum corporate efficiency is
compatible with the contribution offered to the social and cultural growth of the
country. From this perspective, the Company has cultivated close and friendly re-
lations with numerous institutions over the years which are active in protecting
Italy’s cultural heritage by following a tradition of awareness for the cultural and
artistic world which was already inherent in the Company’s founders.

As founding shareholder, Astaldi contributes by supporting the activity of the Ac-
cademia Nazionale di Santa Cecilia — one of the most ancient music institutions in
the world which over the course of the year has been confirmed as one of the most
qualified international concert entities.

Of no lesser importance is the relationship which Astaldi has initiated — as institu-
tional sponsor — with the Societa del Quartetto of Milan and the Fondazione Arturo
Toscanini of Parma. The former is a prestigious company that was founded over
140 years ago and which has contributed to bringing together the operas of Italy
with the great symphony and instrumental music of Europe; the latter is one of the
more dynamic Italian musical institutions in Italy.

Particular attention has been for some time given to entities and associations
linked to the safe-guarding of the Italian environmental heritage, and which in-
cludes — of primary importance - the Fund for the Italian Environment (F.A.l., Fon-
do per I’Ambiente Italiano) whose safe-guarding work is of primary importance for
the protection of our country’s artistic and natural locations which would otherwise
be destined to degradation. Astaldi subscribes to F.A.l. as a Corporate Golden
Donor.

At an international level — and particularly in those countries where it is more
deeply rooted, both in Africa and Eastern Europe — Astaldi supports important cul-
tural and social initiatives by also participating in educational programs for chil-
dren in disadvantaged areas.



Communication and the Stock Exchange

Ever since its debut in the Stock Exchange Market, Astaldi has always emphasized
communication which it considers an indispensable element in the relationship
with shareholders and with the various parties interested in Company activity: in-
stitutional investors, financial analysts, customers, institutions, specialized media
and the economic/financial press.

The first objective of the Company is to prompt- 135

ly transfer knowledge of internal facts which may 150

affect share prices to the market. However, the
125
importance that Astaldi places on communication

is not only in response to its obligation to com- 20 5

ply with regulations issued by supervisory bodies 115
with regard to compulsory information disclo- 110 ) |
sure; it also derives from the firm belief that

) 105 bl r » " o ¥ e,
management’s constant commitment to complete Tl i A ! -
P 1
transparency depends on a greater ability to s T d
monitor dynamics and corporate processes, and 95

. . . A ASTALDI
will over time translate into support and appreci-  —— WiLAN MIBTEL - PRICE INDEX

ation from stakeholders and from the financial
community in general.

In addition to making use of a specifically delineated process for the distribution
of price sensitive data and news (continuous information process), Astaldi also
adopted a Code of Conduct on Insider Dealing which requires “individuals of rele-
vance” within the Company to report and make note of potential operations on the
shares which exceed pre-determined amounts over a certain period of time.

During the course of 2004, the fulfiiment of requirements set for periodical infor-
mational disclosure and communication on facts of relevance to the Company has
been accompanied by assiduous activity in the area of meetings with the financial
community. Conference calls and presentations to the community, one-on-one
meetings with individual investors, and road shows in various financial centres in
Italy and abroad have become management’s most common tools for communicat-
ing the value that the Group can generate.

But there is no knowledge of financial events without understanding what is the
Group’s activity, history, and production capacity. And in fact, frequent visits have
been organized to the individual work sites and operating locations in order to pro-
vide a concrete idea of the human and technological resources that the Company
can mobilize and coordinate. Lastly, all information relating to Astaldi’s economic
data and industrial activity is available on its constantly and promptly updated
website.

JAN  FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL

AUG

SEP

OCT NOV DEC

Source: DATASTREAM
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Call of the Shareholders’ Meeting

The Shareholders are hereby called to the First Ordinary Meeting held at the Regi-
stered Office in Rome, Via Giulio Vincenzo Bona n. 65, on the day of April 29th,
2005, at 9 am; if needed, the second meeting will be held at the same time and pla-
ce on May 2nd, 2005, in order to discuss and resolve upon the following agenda.

» Approval of the financial statements of the year closing on December 31st, 2004.
Other inherent and resulting resolutions.

* Appointment of the Audit Company and conferment of the task for the audit of
the yearly and consolidated financial statements of 2005, 2006 and 2007, as well
as the half-year reports relative to these years, in accordance with Article 159 of
Legislative Decree n. 58/1998.

The Shareholders with voting rights may intervene in the meeting so long as an autho-
rized intermediary sends the relative certification within two days of the First Meeting.



In order to facilitate the verification of the legitimization of the meeting interven-
tion, the Company invites the Shareholders to send all documentation supporting
this legitimization to INFOMATH S.r.l. — to the attention of Mrs. Anna Raviele - Via
San Siro n. 27, 20149 Milan, by regular mail or fax at the n. 02/48.10.24.16, and
at least two days before the date of the First Meeting.

The documentation relating to the agenda items of the day will be filed in the
registered office and at Borsa Italiana S.p.A. in accordance with the terms set
by current laws. The Shareholders have the right to obtain a copy at their ex-
pense.

Experts, financial analysts and accredited journalists who plan on attending
the Meeting must send a request to Astaldi S.p.A. — to the attention of the In-
vestor Relations Office - by email investor.relations@astaldi.com or by fax to
the number 06/41.76.67.13, and at least two days before the date of the First
Meeting.

for the Board Of Directors
The Chairman
(Ernesto Monti)

—
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Call of the Shareholders’ Meeting
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Management Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Dear Shareholders,

This Management Report on the consolidated financial statements complies with the
requirements of the lItalian Civil Code. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared as usual, in accordance with the provisions of Legislative Decree no.
127/91.

Macroeconomic background

The year 2004 was characterized — from a global perspective — by growth, par-
ticularly in terms of GDP and commercial exchanges. The elements which cha-
racterized this international macroeconomic background were primarily the con-
siderable increase in the price of petroleum, the weakening of the American dol-
lar in currency markets, and a lower risk associated with the “overheating” of the
Chinese economy.

In the United States, the strong acceleration of the economy — characterized by
a GDP expansion of 4.4% — can be traced back to a particularly elevated con-
tribution by internal demand, particularly in relation to durable goods (+6.9%)
and services (+2.8%). The increase in petroleum product prices, and the greater
financial charges deriving from the higher interest rates, may cast doubts upon
the sustainability of this trend because they are starting to limit the spending ca-
pacity of consumers. Over the course of 2004, investments reported an increase
of 12.9% and accelerated growth versus 2003. In response to forecasts on the
strengthening of the growth trend and in order to contain any potential inflatio-
nary pressures, monetary authorities have decided to gradually increase the tar-
get rate for short-term interbank loans.

The Japanese economy gradually weakened after an excellent start of the year;
this was primarily due to a decline in exports and private consumption. GDP
growth in 2004 reported an effective value of 2.6%. Although a certain amount of
progress has been made in terms of adjusting imbalances through the financial
policies of banks and companies, the conditions for a convincing and stable re-
covery of internal demand in the short-term seem to be lacking; economic growth
therefore continues to be dependent upon foreign demand.

As regards the European Union, a worse-than-expected ending to 2004 for Fran-
ce and Germany had the effect of aligning the European economic cycle with that
of the rest of the world: as a result, the European economic cycle moved in ac-
cordance with the slowing global GDP growth rate. The slowing of the two lea-
ding European economies can be attributed to difficulties in international market
exports for Germany, while in France the primary cause of the slowing is linked
to internal demand.

Growth of the Italian economy suffered a blow in the fourth quarter of 2004, with
GDP decreasing by 0.3% with respect to the previous quarter — thereby frustra-
ting expectations for a recovery in productivity for all of 2004. The annual in-
crease of GDP was, in fact, 1%, and therefore lower than the average reported
by the countries in the Euro zone.



Equity markets

The year 2004 was also a positive year for equity markets.

Although initial optimism in the first part of the year was diminished as a result of
economic developments in the United States and the increase in the price of pe-
troleum, the positive base data for the U.S. and the re-election of George W. Bush
to the presidency in the last part of the year triggered an improvement in the ove-
rall economic cycle and allowed the markets to recover from the losses reported
up through August.

In particular, the Dow Jones Industrial Average closed the year with an annual
growth of 3% (if calculated in Euro) despite dipping below 10,000 points in August
(versus the 10,409 at the start of the year). In the Euro area, the DJ Stoxx 50 re-
ported an annual growth rate of 3%, and the German index DAX closed the year
with a 7% growth rate despite the fact that it had touched 3,647 in August (4,018
in early January 2004).

The performance of the Milan Stock Exchange Market was also extremely positive

and superior to that of the other European markets: MIBTEL closed in 2004 with
an annual maximum value of 23,534 on December 30th, approximately an 18.1%
growth rate with respect to the end of 2003, and an excellent result if one consi-
ders that the global MSCI World index grew by 9.7% in the same period. Special
mention should be made of MibSTAR which outperformed all the other indices and
reported an annual growth rate of +24.6%, versus the +14.9% rate of the new
S&P/Mib index. Such a positive result can be attributed to the recovery of share
prices as well as the increase in exchanged volume that was favored by lower mar-
ket volatility and a growth in floating capitalization (+22.5%, a rate that is prima-
rily attributable to the growth in prices and new placements, particularly that rela-
ting to the third installment of Enel). The only exception is the New Market which
— confirming the trend of 2003 — reported a level of volatility that was almost
double that of the rest of the MTA, in addition to having produced capital account
losses (NUMEX -17.6%, Numtel -17.5%).

The domestic market

The year 2004 was the sixth consecutive year of growth for the construction
sector — one of the most dynamic elements of the country’s economic growth.
Over the past six years, growth of the construction sector clearly outpaced
GDP (+19.1% versus the +8.5% for GDP) and the growth rate for employees in
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the sector was more than double that of the economic system as a whole. If
one compares the data of the first six months of 1998 and the same period in
2004, employees in the construction sector grew by 21.6% versus an overall
growth in employment of 9%. This data highlights the supporting role underta-
ken by the construction sector for the economy; this sector is the only one
which has substantially contributed to the development and wealth of the co-
untry within the overall weak framework of the general economic cycle.

After the approval of Italian Law no. 443/2001 (Strategic Infrastructure Act, the
so-called “Legge Obiettivo”), the award of the first general contracting tenders
during 2004 has brought to light several firms within the market that are cha-
racterized by a solid capital asset structure, a high level of project management
know-how, and considerable capacity in accessing the credit system.

Over the course of 2004, procedures were initiated for the general contracting
tenders relating to the creation of the Bridge over the Strait of Messina, in ad-
dition to final awards for large stretches of the Salerno-Reggio Calabria high-
way, the stretch completing the Catania-Siracusa highway, the Palermo-Carini

railway track doubling, and the construction and modernization of the “Jonica
106" State Highway (SS106).
As regards the various modes of operation provided for by Legge Obiettivo, the

use of project financing and concessions — as per Article 19 of Law no.
109/1994 (the so-called “Merloni Law”) — increased during 2004. The health-
care building sector and the transportation infrastructure sector were particu-
larly active; this was also due to the Government and local Administrations’
need to minimize the cost impact of public works on debt levels, as required by
the Financial Law.

In developing the specific opportunities offered by this background of referen-
ce, during 2004 the Astaldi Group has further affirmed and consolidated its
leadership as a General Contractor as well as in relation to project financing.
Within the realm of the projects acquired in the orders backlog during the co-
urse of 2004, of particular importance is the general contracting contract for
the construction and modernization of two distinct tracts of the “Jonica 106"
State Highway. In addition, Astaldi turned out to be first in the list and is awai-
ting the final award for the contracts for the doubling of the Parma-La Spezia
railway line, as well as for the Turin Railway Hub.

Within the realm of project financing works, the Group has concentrated its ef-
forts on the profitable healthcare building and parking lot sectors, thereby con-
firming the growth trend reported in previous years. In the course of 2004, the



Group acquired a contract for the building and subsequent management of the
New Hospital in Naples (“Ospedale del Mare”). The concession contract relating
to the construction and management of a parking lot in the centre of the city of
Verona is of lower value, but still significant.

As regards commercial activities that are being studied and presented, Astaldi,
the leader of an international joint venture, pre-qualified (alongside two other
consortia) for the presentation of a general contracting offer in 2005 pertaining
to the building of the Bridge over the Strait of Messina.

With regard to new project financing initiatives, the Astaldi Group has made an
offer for a concession for the Asti-Cuneo highway. Astaldi has been appointed
sponsor for the construction and management of the new Milan Underground
Line 5; “C.I.P.E.” (Interministerial Committee for Economic Planning) has al-
ready resolved to approve the quota of public financing for this project. Fore-
casts for this project expect the tender to be called in the first half of 2005.
The evaluation phases of the proposal for the building and management of Mi-
lan Underground Line 4 — presented by Astaldi in the course of 2004 — are
currently underway.

In light of these and numerous other initiatives that are being studied, there is
reasonable expectation in 2005 for continued growth and consolidation of the
Group in the sector of major public works, particularly after the approval of the
regulations defining the General Contractor qualification system, which places
the Astaldi Group in the highest qualification sector.

The foreign market

The international scenario is characterized by a greater dynamism compared to
that of the previous year, which continues to characterize the Asian and U.S.
economies; growth prospects for the latter seem to be slightly lower than initial
forecasts. This is also due to the continued atmosphere of uncertainty and ge-
neral insecurity caused by an intensification of international tensions, the
strong increase in petroleum prices and the increase in the price of steel.
Despite these factors, observers continue to agree that 2005 should confirm it-
self as a year of further growth for the international economy despite expecta-
tions for a gradual reduction in the growth rates of many economies.

In the United States, the positive trend in the construction market continues in
terms of work volume — despite the higher federal deficit — with forecasts for
growth in 2005 and subsequent years. In particular, demand for residential
building is expected to continue but with a slightly lower percentage value
compared with the record values of 2004; this will result in a consequential dri-
ving effect on public road works and urban services — activity sectors in which
Astaldi Construction Corporation, the subsidiary of the Astaldi Group which
manages and develops activities in the United States, is particularly active. A
further push in the sector for road and highway works should be provided by
the next renewal of TEA-21, the federal framework act regulating the financing
of the construction and maintenance of these works in the next six years.
Latin America shows a decidedly more complex and uneven scenario due to the
large structural differences of its various countries. After a three-year period of
stagnating productive activity, this area’s major economies are starting to ex-
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pand again at an elevated pace. According to International Monetary Fund esti-
mates, growth of the area’s economy should settle at around 3.6% in 2005.
This forecast is further supported by a series of factors such as the low level of
interest rates, which should bring unquestionable benefits to those countries
making use of the financial market (excluding Argentina), as well as the increa-
se in the price of petroleum (of which Venezuela and Brazil are producers).

As regards the African market, the lack of interesting prospects has confirmed,
in the conviction and actions of Astaldi, the closure plan in countries in the
sub-Saharan area; this closure had already been initiated in the past. Comple-
tion of residual activities in Guinea Conakry, Guinea Bissau, Tanzania and Con-
go is forecast for the current year.

The economic development forecasts for Eastern Europe also point towards
growth, due to the competitive cost of labor on a European level, the increase
in the cost of raw materials and, for those countries which recently joined the

Euro area, the financing foreseen for infrastructure upgrading.

In this context, the Astaldi Group has mainly concentrated on markets where its
consolidated presence over the years can also guarantee greater stability for
the future, and where there are favorable development opportunities, such as
the United States, Central America, Venezuela, Romania, and the Maghreb and
the Middle East.

In Europe, productive activities have considerably increased in comparison with
the same period of the previous year; this is due to the resumption of full acti-
vities in Turkey as well as in Romania; the latter, in particular, has proved to be
one of the areas with the highest growth rates in terms of production and at-
tained results, confirming the commercial commitment undertaken by the Group
over the past few years. This period has witnessed a gradual strengthening of
the managerial and technical structures that are present in the area.

On the American continent, the stability of the Group’s activities is confirmed,
particularly in reference to Venezuela where the current projects held in the or-
ders backlog (of primary importance for the country) are believed to represent
the only interesting initiatives, while further development of activities would in-
crease financial requirements and thereby the risk level as well. Over the cour-
se of the year, further commercial activities were in any case undertaken in
other countries in the area, such as Bolivia — where as of today all effective
contracts have been completed.

Over the course of 2004, the diversification strategy in the Middle East also
continued; Astaldi has been present there for about two years in the industrial



plant sector, in partnership with large international operators. There are two
projects currently underway in the area: one in Saudi Arabia, completed during
the course of the year, and the other in Qatar, where the Group is carrying out
civil works for the Sasol GTL Plant on behalf of one of the most important in-
ternational firms operating in the petroleum plant sector. It is believed that in
this market — where large investments are planned — further market shares
may be acquired in a reasonable period of time.

Reorganization of equity holdings

Within the realm of the Group’s activities for streamlining and containing cor-
porate management costs, the merger by incorporation of R.I.C. - Railway In-
ternational Construction S.p.A. into Italstrade S.p.A. has been completed. On
April 15th, 2004, the Shareholders’ Meetings of the two companies had in fact
implemented the consequent actions and resolutions, and the merger deed was
executed on June 21st, 2004.

This operation will allow Italstrade to strengthen its operational sphere within
the sector for the construction and maintenance of medium-sized transporta-
tion infrastructures (both road and railway).

Operational network

Over the course of 2004, the Group’s operational network developed through
the activity of 24 foreign branches (operating as sub-offices) and 190 firms lo-
cated in Italy and abroad — 63 of which are subject to a dominant influence
exercised by the Parent Company.

It should be noted that there were numerous managerial, financial and econo-
mic relations between the Parent Company and its daughters, the legally and fi-
nancially independent operating units, as is normal in a sector where there is
concrete and varying dominance or influence. Relations of a particular nature,
significance or scope have been detailed in the Notes and commented upon in
the description of the operating units, which follows.

Economic, asset and financial trend of the Group

The results attained by the Group over the course of the twelve months of 2004
highlight a strengthening of its capital asset and economic structure in con-
junction with growth of the orders backlog (which is now stronger and of im-
proved quality).

The table below reports the primary data of the Group, expressed in millions of Euro.

Management Report on the consolidated financial statements



main data for the group

(in miltons of euro) 2004 2003
total revenues 1,049 923
fixed assets 193 203
net financial indebtedness 115 128
operating result 75 66
result before taxes 41 29
taxation (13) (7)
net profit 28 22
self-financing (net profit + depreciation and amortization + provisions) 66 69

Activity trends for the year 2004 highlight further improvement with respect to the
objectives set in the 2004-2006 Industrial Plan.
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New Hospitalin Mestre ro —a 13.7% increase with respect to 2003.
The attained objective of over a billion Euro in revenue has allowed the Group
gain on the main European players. This result is even more positive if one ta-
kes into account the decrease in the value of the American dollar which redu-
ced the value of revenues originating with that currency during the course of
2004. A careful policy of covering exchange rate risks has in any case allowed
for the economic effects of this decrease to be mitigated.

Contract and services revenues are equal to over 989 million Euro, a 13.7% in-
crease with respect to the same value reported on December 31st, 2003. Of
these, 50.3% refers to activities conducted in Italy while the remaining 49.7%
originates from foreign markets. This data confirms the trend — already started
in the previous two years — of the dominance taken on by the domestic com-
ponent of activities conducted in accordance with the strategic goals pursued
by the Group.

The operating result — in a considerable increase with respect to 2003 — is
equal to approximately 75 million Euro, and represents 7.1% of overall total re-
venues, thereby allowing a net income of approximately 28 million Euro to be
attained, versus the 22 million Euro value reported in 2003.

The year 2004 has also been characterized by the excellent capital asset and
financial results attained by the Group. A comparison with data reported in



2003 highlights, in fact, a substantial stability in managerial floating capital, in
addition to a trend of considerable improvement for the net financial position —
despite the significant growth of production during the course of the year. This
phenomenon confirms the excellent results attained by the Group in terms of
capital asset and financial control — a consequence of the detailed planning
policy that has been undertaken, and linked to a greater economic and finan-
cial stability of the foreign markets in which the Group operates.

In 2004, note should be made of net fixed assets which were equal to approxi-
mately 193 million Euro — a decrease with respect to the same value on De-
cember 31st, 2003, and due to the natural amortization process. The Group
has, in fact, completed the technical/operational investment plan, which was
primarily dedicated to the American area and Romania, allowing these areas to
be strengthened, and conducted in compliance with the decisions made in re-
lation to industrial planning and the growth of the orders backlog.

During the course of the year, investments were made in connection with gene-
ral contracting tenders; in particular, note should be made of the current acti-
vity involving the study of the tender for building the Bridge over the Strait of
Messina and which features Astaldi as the leader of an international grouping of
firms.

With regards to activities conducted at a national level, it is important to note
that the initial investments in project financing activities are included within
equity investments and intangible fixed assets; these investments include the
establishment of a special purpose vehicle for the creation and management of
the New Hospital in Mestre, as well as the initial investments for building the
infrastructures for managing the utilities at Cologno Monzese.

Net fixed financial assets include own shares whose value is equal to approxi-
mately 0.9 million Euro. The average acquisition price for the 400,000 shares in
the portfolio, with a par value of 1 euro, was approximately 2.24 Euro.

As regards the improved flow dynamics, it is important to make note of the fi-
nancial stabilization that was obtained in the management of important con-
tracts undergoing implementation in Turkey and Venezuela.

With regard to the Group’s activity in Turkey, it should in fact be noted that —
following the effectiveness of the export financing as of December 2003 —
Astaldi has reached a significant level of efficiency in its production cycle, sta-
bilizing the certification process for contracts and their collection.

In addition, a financing contract was signed at the end of last year in relation
to both the export credit, as well as to credit of a commercial nature concer-
ning the Puerto Cabello-La Encrucijada railway contract managed by Société
Générale and Banca Intesa; this occurred after the re-opening of financing lines
for Venezuela by “S.A.C.E” (Company for Insurance on Export Credit). This con-
tract — which received a resolution on behalf of the Executive Committee of
S.A.C.E. for definitive insurance coverage guaranteeing the execution of works
— will ensure the regular progress of works and their financial flows, and is to-
day fully operational and usable.

With regards to the net financial position, the analysis of the main data are re-
ported below.

Management Report on the consolidated financial statements
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consolidated net financial position

2003
short-term net indebtedness (146,181) (100,348)
medium to long-term net indebtedness (69,308) (75,072)
cash and cash equivalents 174,839 149,983
long term financial receivables 77,178 73,021
total ordinary finance 47,584
net ordinary bond (129,999) (150,000)
leasing (21,996) (25,898)
total net financial position (128,314)

Net indebtedness as of December 31st, 2004, was equal to 115.5 million Euro, a
clear reduction from the 128.3 million Euro on December 31st, 2003, despite the
presence of a 13.7% increase in revenues — in other words, due to the attention
given to control over capital invested in contracts. The results deriving from the
Group’s financial policy — aimed at supporting operational activities through the
management of financing dedicated to single projects — are obvious. This policy
— in conjunction with a stabilization of the financial flows linked to foreign activi-
ties — allows productive to be planned activities without a particular increase in
invested capital.

The commercial efforts made by the Group, combined with the considerable in-
vestments spent for the qualitative growth of resources, did not create a worse-
ning effect on the Debt/Equity ratio which, on the contrary, reported a decrease,
falling below 0.5.

It should be noted that net indebtedness includes the financing related to the par-
king lots managed in Italy, as well as other project financing initiatives, for over 27
million Euro. Recoupment of these investments will be guaranteed by future cash
flows deriving from management.

Shareholders’ equity — equal to approximately 244 million Euro — reported a
change during the year due to the net income of the period, the issue of dividends,
and the change in the conversion reserve whose value was affected by the weak-
ness of the American dollar. To counter this effect, a prudent policy for exchange
rate risk coverage was prepared; the adopted conversion procedure, in fact, re-
quires the conversion to be made with the exchange rate of the date of closing,
and therefore was affected by the current weakness of the U.S. currency. The co-
verage policy that was adopted — aimed at managing the exchange rate variable
— turned out be effective, even in light of the fact that approximately one third of
the Group’s revenues is denominated in U.S. dollars or currencies linked to it.
The Consolidated Income Statement and Balance Sheet, as well as the Cash Flow
Statement, are shown below in reclassified format. Values are expressed in thou-
sands of Euro.



reclassified consolidated

income statement

2003 %
revenue from services and contracts 989,348 94.3% 870,145 94.3%
other revenues and income 59,726 5.7% 52,640 5.7%
value of production 1,049,074 100.0% 922,785 100.0%
costs of production (793,050) (75.6%) (672,895) (72.,9%)
added value 256,024 24.4% 249,890 27.1%
personnel (129,023) (12.3%) (122,865) (13.3%)
gross operating margin 127,001 12.1% 127,025 13.8%
other charges (14,456) (1.4%) (13,714) (1.5%)
ebitda 112,545 10.7% 113,311 12.3%
amortizations and depreciations (45,322) (4.3%) (45,693) (5.0%)
provisions 7,328 0.7% (1,174) (0.1%)
operating result 74,551 7.1% 66,444 7.2%
net financial income (charges) (26,842) (2.6%) (27,458) (3.0%)
revaluation (write-down) of equity (2,157) (0.2%) (4,967) (0.5%)
net extraordinary income (charges) (4,552) (0.4%) (4,982) (0.5%)
profit before taxes 41,000 3.9% 29,037 3.1%
income tax (11,526) (1.1%) (14,994) (1.6%)
pre-paid taxes (1,360) (0.1%) 8,136 0.9%
net profit for the period 28,114 2.7% 22,179 2.4%
minority interests (profit) loss for the period (508) (0.0%) 217 0.0%
group net profit for the financial year 27,606 2.6% 22,396 2.4%
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reclassified consolidated

balance

sheet

2003
net intangible assets 49,897 52,191
net tangible assets 102,338 106,318
equity investments 26,319 28,361
other net fixed assets 14,142 16,296
total net fixed assets (a) 203,166
inventories 42,831 41,316
contracts in progress 192,752 187,373
trade debtors 301,883 217,355
other assets 202,380 207,542
advances (107,413) (84,919)
subtotal 632,433 568,667
trade creditors (228,977) (196,399)
other liabilities (154,523) (142,832)
subtotal (383,500) (339,231)
working capital ( (b) 229,436
employee severance indemnity (12,473) (12,189)
contractual risk provision (41,177) (51,599)
other funds (28,732) (13,220)
total provisions (c) (77,008)
net invested capital (d)=(a)+(b)+(c) 355,594
cash and cash equivalents 174,839 149,983
cash and current financial receivables 77,178 73,021
medium to long-term financial debts (86,647) (96,099)
short-term financial debts (150,837) (105,219)
bonds (eurobond) (150,000) (150,000)
own bonds in portfolio 20,001 -
net financial debts/credits (e) (128,314)
consolidated net equity 227,122
minority interests 91 158
net equity (g)=(d)-(e) 227,280
personal guarantees 1,393,144 1,695,806
factor for risk of regression 79,573 86,168
other off-balance sheet accounts 30,381 29,660
guarantees - -
third party guarantees in our favor 25,066 22,189
total off-balance sheet accounts 1,833,823




consolidated cash flow statement

2003
operating activities
group net profit 27,607 22,395
deferred / (pre-paid) taxes 1,360 (8,136)
depreciation of tangible assets 20,859 18,756
amortization of intangible assets 24,463 26,937
provisions for risks and charges and write down of equity investments 36,505 33,990
provision for employee severance indemnity 5,146 4,421
provision for doubtful debtors, interests on delayed payments 11,698 200
loss on disposals of fixed assets 473 236
gains on disposals of fixed assets (1,149) (705)
subtotal 126,962 98,094
utilization of provision for risks and charges (42,781) (32,251)
employee severance indemnity paid (4,838) (4,202)
utilization of allowance for doubtful debtors,
interests on delayed payments and securities (7,111) -
decrease (increase) in inventories (7,124) 10,273
decrease (increase) in trade debtors (41,575) (43,007)
decrease (increase) in other assets 4,805 (11,101)
(decrease) increase in advances (28,391) 13,947
(decrease) increase in trade creditors 37,165 1,245
(decrease) increase in other liabilities 21,437 (311)
net effect of change in consolidation areas 11 173
cash flow from operating activities a) 58,560 32,860
investment activities
purchase of tangible assets (including leasing) (24,267) (40,186)
increase in intangible assets (22,347) (15,904)
proceeds from sale of tangible assets 7,747 9,284
(purchases) sales of equity investments 606 (3,803)
project financing investments (4,448)
net effect of change in consolidation areas 4 (4,910)
cash flow from investment activities b) (42,705) (55,519)
financing activities
increase (decrease) in short-term bank and other borrowings 53,407 (12,986)
net balance of loans obtained (repaid) during the year (9,450) 33,505
increase (decrease) of financial assets equities
which are not permanent (3,930) 13,447
buy back of the debenture loan (20,001)
payment of dividends (6,306) (4,916)
cash flow from financing activity c) 13,720 29,050
change in minority interests equity (67) (148)
other changes (1,244) (175)
change of the conversion reserve (3,408) (11,346)
change conversion and consolidation reserves d) (4,719) (11,669)
cash flow for the year a)+b)+c)+d) 24,856 (5,278)
cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 149,983 155,261
cash and cash equivalents at end of year 174,839 149,983

cash flow for the year

(5,278)
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Investments

The cash flow statement shown above clearly highlights how investments made in
the course of the year totaled 50 million Euro at the consolidated level, net of
changes in the consolidation area.

These investments may be broken down as shown in the following table:

net investments

tangible fixed assets 24
intangible fixed assets 22
minority interests 4

The year 2004 was characterized by an increase in both domestic and foreign pro-
ductive activities. This is the result of a careful re-organization of minority interests
combined with the effective planning of investments for the purpose of increasing
the technical and operational equipment of the Group’s structures.

As a result of this, the year 2004 was characterized by an increase in investments
relating to the study and design of general contracting initiatives and the develop-
ment of investments in project financing activities. For this purpose, the Group
completed — during the course of the year — the payment in the mandatory ar-
rears of subscribed capital in V.S.F.P. - Veneta Sanitaria Finanza di Progetto, the
company set up for the purposes of building and successively managing the new
hospital in Mestre.

The investments undertaken for initial and ongoing training of the Group’s human
resources — in order to consolidate the attained leadership position — take on in-
creasing importance.

Note should be made of the disinvestment activities implemented in all those areas
that are no longer considered strategic for the Group; these activities will be clo-
sed over the course of 2005.

Quality

During the course of 2004, the indirect effects of corporate management systems
planned at the Group level primarily affected the Parent Company Astaldi S.p.A.
and the subsidiary Italstrade S.p.A.

Organizational upgrades implemented as a result of the adoption of company ma-
nagement models in accordance with ISO 9001:2000 standards on quality
systems, and according to international OHSAS 18001:1999 technical standards
on Company management systems for health and safety at the workplace, had an
effect on both processes within company offices as well as those relating to con-
tracts.

From an operational point of view, the Quality Management Service implemented
an intense activity of technical/specialized assistance with regard to all company
structures, aimed at transferring and consolidating the innovations which were
made; monitoring of primary company processes was also guaranteed through



systematic internal audits, as customary and with the primary objective of conti-
nually improving services and/or products.

At the same time, the DNV Certification Body, Det Norske Veritas — acting on the
effect of the norms regulating the management of certification activities — imple-
mented periodical audits with the aim of verifying the continued existence of the
prerequisites needed to maintain the validity of the issued certifications.
Following the positive outcome of the aforementioned audits, the reports certifying
the validity of the issued certifications were released. These were conducted in the
months of February and August in the Rome office and relating to contracts for
building the New Milan Expo Fair Center and the Milan Railway Link, managed by
Astaldi S.p.A., in addition to the contracts in Romania and Morocco concerning
the Bucharest-Constanta highway and the Sidi Said dam, managed by Italstrade
S.p.A.

Finally, and specifically with regard to the subsidiary Italstrade S.p.A. — which in-
corporated R.I.C. - Railway International Construction S.p.A., through a merger on
June 21st, 2004 — it should be noted that during the course of the second half of
the year a further revision to the organizational model described in the Company’s
quality system documents was undertaken. This was by effect of the above merger
and is currently being examined by the competent body.

Research and development activities
The Group did not incur costs for research and development activities.
Human resources

The Group — which has always been committed to attracting and developing ex-
cellent professionals — has remained faithful to this mission during the course of
2004 by investing, on one hand, in searching for and recruiting human resources
with high potential and, on the other hand, in managing and developing the skills
that are fundamental to the business’s success.

Recruiting activity was strengthened by streamlining the internal database, conso-
lidating partnership relations and exchanges with the university system, and acti-
vating company internships designed to foster the entry of young professionals in-
to the workforce. The optimization process of these activities, launched during the
course of 2004, will be completed during the course of 2005 with the opening of a
job opportunities area within the Group’s institutional site; this will promote in-
creased exchange between supply and demand.

Integration of recruited resources has been implemented through various training
paths which develop knowledge of the primary company processes and functions
which have the greatest interaction with the professional sector to which the newly
hired employee belongs. Acquisition of skills required by the designated position
and for future career steps is facilitated by means of a job rotation plan which is
managed by a company tutor and is documented on a bi-annual basis and monito-
red by top management.

Safekeeping of Company skills and know-how — which has always been an ethical
commitment and strategic tool for the Group — is undertaken by defining proce-
dures aimed at making informational flows between company bodies more fluid
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and rapid, thereby fostering fair and equal management of internal mobility, and
ensuring a relationship of trust between human resources and the Group itself.

Skill development has been promoted through training plans in a variety of relevant
sectors: updated training courses linked to quality and safety systems, regulatory
updates for specific sectors, training in project control and management, improve-
ment of foreign language skills, the use of IT systems, etc. Investment in initial and
updated training activities — quantifiable overall as approximately 3,980 hours of
training — is evidence of the constant attention that the Group pays to the pro-

fessional growth of its human resources, which are understood as being the main

guarantee for consolidating and maintaining a leadership position on the market.
Orders backlog

During the course of 2004, new contracts were acquired for a total of 1,593 mil-
lion Euro, and which brings the Group’s total orders backlog, as of December 31st,
2004, to over 5.0 billion Euro — a 13.7% increase over the beginning of the year.
The geographical distribution of the orders backlog at the end of the year included
79.1% in Italy — primarily in the railway infrastructures sector — and 20.9%
abroad, primarily on the American continent, in addition to Romania and Turkey.
From a qualitative standpoint, the orders backlog is 76% derived from construction
contracts, and 24% from concession revenues.

The year 2004 therefore confirmed itself as a year in which the orders backlog in-
creased with respect to the already exceptional levels of 2003, in both quality and
quantity; this testifies to the Group’s intention in strengthening its role as the lea-
ding General Contractor for the domestic market, while paying particular attention
to a contract acquisition policy that emphasizes the profitability and quality of new
orders. Contracts in the orders backlog are therefore increasing, and are charac-
terized by their high technical/organizational and financial complexity. This further
demonstrates the skills shown in the management of major works such as the Ro-
me-Naples High-Speed Railway and the New Milan Expo Fair Center.

In particular, and in reference to the events that characterized the year 2004, it should
be noted that, in the month of December, Astaldi was awarded a general contracting pro-
ject for the modernization and construction of two distinct lots of the “Jonica 106" Sta-
te Highway (SS106); this project was valued at over 790 million Euro. Astaldi was awar-
ded the project as the leader of a company grouping with a 90% share in the latter.

The first lot, valued at 310 million Euro (with a 90% Astaldi stake), concerned the
modernization works of an initial 84 km stretch of the SS106, in the Palizzi-Caulo-



na stretch of the province of Reggio Calabria — from km 50 to km 123+800 — as
well as the construction of the Marina di Gioiosa Jonica junction. The project is
scheduled to have an overall duration of 40 months.

The second lot, valued at 480 million Euro (with a 90% Astaldi stake), requires the
creation of approximately 13 km of the E90 — for the stretch relating to the SS106
from the Squillace junction (km 178+500) to the Simeri Crichi junction (km
191+500) — and the extension of State Highway 280 (“Strada Statale dei due Ma-
ri”) from the San Sinato junction to the Germaneto junction. The project is sche-
duled to have an overall duration of 34 months.

These awards follow another award concerning the contract for the construction
and subsequent management (by means of the project finance tool) of a parking lot
with approximately 750 car spaces located in the centre of the city of Verona; the
Group was awarded this contract in October. This project requires an investment
of approximately 17 million Euro and a management period of about 30 years, ef-
fective from the end of the construction period (equal to about 15 months). The
number of parking lots under concession therefore increases to five, making Astal-
di one of Italy’s leaders in this sector.

In the month of July 2004, Astaldi (as the leader of a company grouping) won the ten-
der for the award of a concession for the construction and subsequent management
of a new hospital in Naples (“Ospedale del Mare”). The total value of the construction
works is 187 million Euro, of which approximately 64% was issued by the local health-
care service (Azienda Sanitaria Locale) which is the Client for the project; the remai-
ning amount is charged to the Concessionaire who will proceed in the 25-year mana-
gement of non-healthcare services, and with total compensation set at over 660 mil-
lion Euro. The project is slated to have a duration of 42 months; at the end of this pe-
riod, the concession period will begin. Astaldi is participating in the project with a
60% stake for construction activities and a 52% stake for management activities.

It should be noted that the orders backlog as of December 31st, 2004 does not ta-
ke into account any projects for which the appointment as sponsor — in accordan-
ce with Article 37 bis et seq. of the Merloni Law (Italian Law no. 109/1994 and later
amendments) — has been formalized. On the basis of current Italian regulations on
the subject of project finance, in fact, the appointment as sponsor transfers a pre-
emption right to the latter that may be exercised during the actual implementation of
the tender. However, the Group has an established policy of only inserting works wi-
thin the orders backlog that are considered definitively won and entirely financed; as
a result, these contracts will only affect the value of the orders backlog when the
above conditions are met. As of today, the projects relating to the project financing
implementation of the Milan Underground Line 5 (MM5) and the Appia Antica under-
pass in Rome are therefore not included in the orders backlog.

The valuation of the project for the Milan Underground Line 5 is approximately 504
million Euro, of which 193 million Euro are charged to the concessionaire and the fi-
nancing banks, while the remaining 311 million Euro is derived from public contribu-
tions. The concession contract will be signed at the end of the tender and the ne-
gotiation procedure during which Astaldi, as leader of a firm grouping and as spon-
sor, will benefit from the pre-emption right. The project — including the design pha-
se — is expected to have a duration of five years, and will be followed by 27 years
of management. The outcome of the tender is set for the second half of 2005.

With regards to the project financing initiative for the construction and subsequent
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management of the Appia Antica underpass in Rome, the overall value of the works
is approximately 390 million Euro, of which 190 million Euro are charged to the con-
cessionaire and the remaining portion to the Municipality of Rome. The 30-year con-
cession for the management of the project will bring in revenues of over 800 million
Euro to the awardee, gross of management costs. The project will require the con-
struction of a road with two lanes for each direction of travel, connecting the sou-
thern quadrant of the city to its eastern quadrant and extending for approximately 9
km; it includes approximately 7 km of tunnel. This project — of high utility for city
traffic — is distinguished as Rome’s first urban transport project implemented
through project finance — a sector in which the Group is Italy’s leader.

In addition, it should be noted that the Group awaits the outcome of the appeal
proposed by Astaldi Group to the Council of State. This was proposed in respon-
se to the decision of Tuscany’s Regional Administrative Court (“T.A.R.”) to repeat
the procedure by which, in late 2003, the Group had been formally appointed
sponsor in relation to the project for the construction and subsequent manage-
ment of the integrated 4-hospital system in Tuscany.

The tables below illustrate the growth of the orders backlog and therefore the
trend in new orders during the course of 2004, broken down by type of contract
and geographical region.

The data confirm the Group’s focus on the domestic market (as previously stated
on more than one occasion), and in particular on those contracts which guarantee
a strengthening of the General Contractor role. The policy of the Group is, in fact,
aimed at concentrating company resources on the management of complex con-
tracts of significant value, and which are characterized by a profitability level that
is greater than that offered by the traditional public contracts market.

growth trend of the orders backlog by type of contract

acquisitions production

transport infrastructure 2,825 1,029 (625) 3,229
— railways and undergrounds 2,013 100 (254) 1,859
— roads and motorways 723 891 (331) 1,283
— airports and ports 89 38 (40) 87
hydraulic and hydroelectric plant contracts 313 52 (144) 221
civil and industrial building 399 169 (220) 348
concessions 870 343 - 1,213
total orders backlog 1,593 (989)

growth trend of the orders backlog by geographical area

acquisitions production
Italy 3,200 1,258 (497) 3,961
abroad 1,207 335 (492) 1,050
total orders backlog 1,593 (989)

As regards activities still undergoing analysis, note should be made of the consi-
derable commercial effort made by the Group in the transport infrastructure and
healthcare building sectors by means of the project finance tool.



In December, Astaldi submitted — in partnership with Vianini Lavori S.p.A. — a bid
for the construction and management of the Asti-Cuneo Highway. The tender —
called by ANAS S.p.A. — provides for awarding a concession for the design, con-
struction and subsequent management of the toll highway connection between the
two Piedmontese cities; this concession is awarded through a joint venture with
the participation of ANAS itself. The tender base value of the contract is equal to
approximately 1.8 billion Euro; the latter include the revenues deriving from mana-
gement of the completed works for a maximum period of thirty years.

This initiative follows those prepared during the rest of the year in which the Group
presented further proposals in the sector of transport infrastructures; this includes
one for an appointment as sponsor for the construction and management of the
Milan Underground Line 4 (MM4) whose outcome is expected to occur during the
course of 2005.

As regards the healthcare building sector, Astaldi submitted — at the end of Oc-
tober 2004, in partnership with the Techint Group — a bid for the construction of
the “Niguarda” Hospital in Milan; this offer capitalized on the experience gained
from the project relating to the new hospital in Mestre. The tender — called by the
Milanese Healthcare Company — deals with the concession for the design and
performance of works for the upgrading of the “Niguarda” Hospital in Milan, as well
as the subsequent management of all non-healthcare support services, the parking
lot and the commercial services compatible with the healthcare activity itself (bars,
restaurants, shops). This management would extend for a maximum period of thirty
years. The overall investment will be more than 230 million Euro; public contribu-
tion will not exceed 60% of the total. The outcome of the tender is set for the first
half of 2005.

As regards general contracting works, it should be noted that in June 2004 a de-
cision was made on the group of firms with which Astaldi (as group leader) will
participate in the tender for the contract relating to the construction of the Bridge
over the Strait of Messina. The project requires a pre-financing stake for the Ge-
neral Contractor ranging from 10-20%, and will require an investment of approxi-
mately 4.4 billion Euro. The deadline for the next phase of bid presentations is set
within the first half of 2005.

With regard to activities abroad, it should be noted that, in the last part of the
year, the Group was admitted to the pre-qualification phase of the tender called for
the design and construction of the Istanbul-Ankara High-Speed Railway Link, in
addition to the building of access points for the new Bosphorus railway crossing
(Marmaray Project). Both of these projects will involve civil works totaling more
than 400 million Euro and will involve Astaldi’s joint participation with Ansaldo Tra-
sporti Sistemi Ferroviari and other international players such as Scott Wilson. Par-
ticipation in the tenders — subject to the positive outcome of the pre-qualifying
phase — will occur during 2005.

The Group continues its expansion of activities in Central America through the pre-
sentation of initiatives in such important countries in this area as Guatemala, Co-
sta Rica and Mexico.

In addition, it should be noted that financing has been provided by the Venezuelan
government for the third phase of the project relating to the construction of the
Puerto Cabello-La Encrucijada railway link; this project increased Astaldi’s orders
backlog by approximately 47 million Euro in connection with a signed contract which
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includes an as yet unfinanced amount of an additional 135 million Euro which will be
included in the orders backlog in the coming years. We also report a positive trend
in new contracts for the Group in Romania and the United States. In Romania, note
should be made of the award for the project relating to the construction of the Pite-
sti bypass, valuated at over 66 million Euro, while in the United States. the Group
acquired new contracts for approximately 100 million USD through its subsidiary
Astaldi Construction Corporation. The latter includes a project for the construction
of the SR9 Freeway in the Miami area, valuated at approximately 60 million USD.
The main projects included in the current orders backlog are described in the fol-
lowing section.

Domestic Scenario
Transport infrastructures - railways and underground
Milan Railway Link

The contract concerns the construction of the subgrade, superstructure and faci-
lities for the Milan railway link between the stations of Porta Venezia, Porta Vitto-
ria, Rogoredo and the Lambro junction; this will total approximately 4 km of dou-
ble-track railway line development.

The project has been broken down into two lots with separate delivery dates: lot
20 — between the Porta Vittoria station and the Lambro junction — and lot 30 bet-
ween the stations of Porta Vittoria and Rogoredo.

On September 30th, 2004, the works relating to Lot 20 were completed ahead of

schedule, and on December 12th, 2004, the stretch was inaugurated and opened

to the general public. In addition, the works relating to Lot 30 — connecting the
link to the Rogoredo Station — have been started, and their date of completion is
slated for the second half of 2006.

Production carried out during the course of 2004 for both of these lots totals ap-
proximately 24.5 million Euro.

Turin Railway Link
During the course of 2004, SUSA-DORA QUATTRO S.c.r.l., a company controlled by

Astaldi S.p.A. with a 90% shareholding stake, has continued its upgrading works on
the Turin Railway Hub for the Corso Vittorio Emanuele II-Fiume Dora Riparia stretch.



Over the course of the year, the works for building the bulkheads and the excava-
tions of the railway tunnel were completed; works were later initiated for building
the end cap of the State railway tunnel, as well as for waterproofing and the foun-
dation slab. At the same time, the works for the construction of the structures of
the new underground station of Porta Susa have continued, while the four exits of
the station along Corso Inghilterra have been completed.

The value of production for the year 2004 was 21.8 million Euro. Progressive pro-
duction was approximately 80.4 million Euro.

It should be noted that the production for the period was affected by a reduction in
the works to be executed, equivalent to 40% of the total contract value, concerning
the final part of the lot, as a consequence of Italferr's decision to adopt the altimetric
change as requested by the Municipality of Turin. A settlement to the dispute arising
from this — as well as the previous — decision is expected in the first months of 2005.

High-Speed Railway: Central Station of Bologna

The contract involves the construction of the High-Speed Central Station of Bolo-
gna which falls within Bologna’s urban stretch of the Milan-Naples High-Speed
Railway (lot 11), and the works for its activation (lot 50). The total contract is va-
luated at 288.7 million Euro.

The works were delivered in the month of March 2004, and the first activities that
were implemented were related to removing the railway facilities and structures of
the Station, as well as the construction of the railway section of the Arcoveggio
building yard. Starting in the month of June — after the issue of authorizations
from the Municipality of Bologna and other competent bodies — works were im-
plemented for the detour of interfering public sub-services, the clearing of military
devices and archaeological excavations, the building of part of the structures for
the access ramp to the High-Speed Station in Via Fioravanti, and the modifications
to the sewer system through the installation of new pipes.

In the same period, both the drilling and the additional geognostic surveys, as well
as the analysis and design of the final-phase building yard, presented to the Mu-
nicipality of Bologna in order to obtain the required authorization, were conducted.
This authorization will be granted in the first months of 2005. The installation of
part of the base camp was also undertaken.

The production generated during the year — equal to 5.3 million Euro — was
very negatively affected, both because of the discovery of ancient Roman finds

TURKEY
Anatolian Highway
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during archaeological excavations, and because of the impossibility of initiating
and implementing the works related to the High Speed Station, in addition to
the installation of the former Fascio Carracci industrial building yard. The latter
was due to the activation of authorization proceedings — in accordance with
Ministerial Decree no. 471/1999 on polluted sites — by the Municipality of Bo-
logna, whose resolution is expected in the second quarter of 2005.

High-Speed Railway: Rome-Naples Section

The General Contractor CONSORZIO IRICAV UNO, controlled by Astaldi S.p.A.
with a 27.91% stake, has continued its negotiations for the contractual revision
that became necessary in order to adopt the changes and innovative systems in-
troduced at the Client’s request; this process concluded with the agreement rea-
ched on December 22nd, 2004.

This agreement defined the new Essential Completion Deadlines (ECD) of the two

functional lots: the 1st lot, including partial testing, by August 31st, 2005, and the
2nd, including partial testing, by March 31st, 2008. The new deadlines for final te-
sting and pre-running were set as follows: 1st lot by October 10th, 2005, while the
2nd lot by two months after the ECD. The same agreement also includes economic

compensation for the extension of the work period as well as for the new contrac-
tual changes.

Production in 2004 for CONSORZIO IRICAV UNO, linked to design services, ex-
propriations, general contracting activities and technology, calculated propor-
tionately to Astaldi S.p.A.’s stake — was 32 million Euro. In addition to the
above, PEGASO S.c.r.l., appointee of CONSORZIO IRICAV UNO, executed
works for an amount equal to 10.8 million Euro, proportionately with Astaldi
S.p.A.’s stake

The amount of the works carried out in 2004 in the Cassino and Ferentino worksi-
tes equaled 4.2 million Euro.

Brescia underground

During the course of 2004, the first works related to the contract for the con-
struction of the Prealpino-Sant’Eufemia stretch of the Brescia underground were
started.

The contract — which provides for the construction of a completely automated
light underground system having no permanent personnel on the trains or at the



station — will be built in association with Ansaldo Trasporti, Ansaldo Breda and
NECSO.

The Prealpino-Sant’Eufemia section extends for 13.8 km and traverses the centre
of the city from north to south, turning east as far as Sant’Eufemia Station, where
the depot will be located. Its construction calls for building 1.8 km of viaducts, 4
km of cut-and-cover tunnels, 6 km of driven tunnels, 1.8 km of embankments and
cuttings and 18 stations, 14 of which underground.

The contract includes the executive design, execution and start up of the work,
the two-year technical management and the seven-year routine and extraordinary
maintenance of the underground, for a total of 611 million Euro: Astaldi S.p.A.’s
stake for the design and execution of the civil works amounts to approximately 282
million Euro.

The contract also provides for the assignment — as soon as the necessary finan-
cing is found — of the northern Prealpino-Concesio extension (0.8 km) and the La-
marmora-Fiera section (3.5 km and 5 stations). Over the course of the year, the
agreement minutes were, in fact, signed; this will bring about considerable techni-
cal changes to the contractual project, including the construction of the stations
with solutions and finishings that are similar to those adopted in the Copenhagen
LRT, as well as the introduction of variations in the layout of the line and a 187-
month extension of the contractual period. The approval of this variation triggered
a 21.5 million Euro increase in the value of the works to be performed by Astaldi
S.p.A., bringing the contractual value of the Astaldi stake to 303.5 million Euro.
Building yard development relating to the base camp, the overhaul of the TBM
(Tunnel Boring Machine) and the equipping of the yard itself also continued; works
for the Lamarmora Station which were not affected by the variation were initiated.
Production achieved by Astaldi S.p.A. during 2004 equaled 6.5 million Euro.

Genoa underground

Over the course of 2004, the works for the last two awarded sections — Le
Grazie-Sarzano and Sarzano-De Ferrari — were completed with a partial confi-
guration, i.e. with one running track; these were completed in addition to the
Principe-Caricamento-Le Grazie section which had already been delivered in
2003.

The works for the completion of the two abovementioned sections are under
way, and will be delivered by July 2005.

Negotiations are currently being concluded with the Genoa City Council for the
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award of the final lot of the concession — i.e. that which would run from the
underground line to the Brignole railway station. The works amount to 100 mil-
lion Euro, and the award could be finalized within the first months of 2005.

Naples underground (CO.ME.NA. S.c.r.l and TOLEDO S.c.r.l.)

Construction of Line 1 of the Naples underground was awarded under concession
by the City Council to M.N. Metropolitana di Napoli S.p.A., a company with twelve
partners, and in which Astaldi S.p.A., the reference partner, holds 22.62%.
Execution of the contract proceeds by work lots awarded by the concessionaire to
the partners themselves, and which then operate individually or cooperate in joint
ventures or consortium companies.

CO.ME.NA. S.c.r.l.

COSTRUZIONE METROPOLITANA DI NAPOLI - CO.ME.NA. S.c.r.l., in which Astal-
di S.p.A. holds a 70.43% stake, was formed for the execution of lot 1, correspon-
ding to the Piscinola-Vanvitelli section, and lot 4, corresponding to the Vanvitelli-
Piazza Dante section.

The works relating to lot 1 were completed in the previous year.

Over the course of 2004 — with regard to the works relating to lot 4 — progress
was punctual and substantially in line with forecasts — with the exception of tho-
se relating to the connection and access to the National Museum, which were su-
spended.

The works relating to the surface finishing of Piazza Cavour continued, while the
works for the surface finishing of the areas surrounding the Mater Dei Station we-
re completed.

Production generated over the course of the year — in proportion with Astaldi
S.p.A.’s stake — equaled approximately 4.2 million Euro.

TOLEDO S.c.r.l.

Regarding the Piazza Dante-Centro Direzionale section, TOLEDO S.c.r.l., in
which Astaldi S.p.A. holds a 90.394% stake, was formed for the execution of
the relevant works.

The works in question amount to approximately 117 million Euro and include
not only the construction of two underground stations, Universita and Toledo,



complete with all systems and finishings, but also the railway superstructure
for the entire Piazza Dante-Centro Direzionale section.

It should be noted that implementation of the structures of the stations during
the course of the year was slowed. In the case of the Toledo Station, this oc-
curred because the designs for the underground works were not received; both
stations were also slowed because no settlement was reached on the interven-
tions needed to safeguard the buildings overlooking the excavation area of the
station tunnels.

Production generated during 2004 — despite the forced slow-down — equaled
approximately 8.3 million Euro (calculated proportionately to the Astaldi S.p.A.
stake).

Transport infrastructures - roads and motorways
North-western Rome road link

The project — inaugurated on December 22nd, 2004—was completely implemen-
ted by Astaldi S.p.A.

The contract, 100% awarded to Astaldi in 2001, concerned the design and con-
struction of the road link between Via del Foro Italico (Farnesina) and Via della Pi-
neta Sacchetti (Policlinico Gemelli). This link was built — in both directions — by
means of a driven tunnel in the Monte Mario section and a cut-and-cover tunnel in
the Trionfale-Sacchetti area, for a total of 3 km of tunnel for each carriageway. All
tunnels are equipped with proper ventilation, lighting, fire-safety and warning
equipment.

Following the supplementary variant report prepared by the Municipality of Rome,
the Client for the works, a supplement to the contractual compensation amount
was decided in order to incorporate improvements relating to linings with new ma-
terials (pre-painted stainless steel panels), lighting levels and maintenance costs;
the contractual total, including the amount acknowledged by common agreement
— increased to approximately 105.5 million Euro.

Production for the year 2004 was equal to approximately 34.4 million Euro, rea-
ching a progressive value of 102.3 million Euro, and corresponding to 97% pro-
gress.

Certain finishings and surface work remain to be carried out next year; this work
will have to be completed within the first months of 2005.

Futani-Centola high-speed roadway

Over the course of 2004, almost all of the main works involving the Futani-Cento-
la high-speed roadway project (viaducts, as well as driven and cut-and-cover tun-
nels) were completed.

Overall progress is equal to 85% of the total and the works will be completed wi-
thin the month of July 2005.

During the course of 2004, a second variant report was drafted (for the upgrade of
structures in accordance with the new seismic classification of the Municipalities
affected by the works), increasing the contractual value to approximately 52.3 mil-
lion Euro.

Management Report on the consolidated financial statements
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Transport infrastructures - airport and port
Porto Torres Trading Port

The works consist of the demolition of the western wharf of the Porto Torres (Sas-
sari) trading port, as well as the reconstruction of the new wharf reusing the ma-
terials from the demolition, and the construction of a new wharf with a draught of
approx. 10 m for a length of approximately 900 m.

In the month of April 2004, the Ministry of Public Works approved the first supple-
mental variant report which increased the contractual valuation from 18 million to
21.15 million Euro. Over the course of 2004, the prefabrication of 41 concrete cel-
lular caissons which will form the wharf were completed, and 12 of these were po-
sitioned; in addition, the excavation works on the sea floor have continued. During
the course of the latter, an unexpected and unforeseeable amount of hard rock
was found, forcing the Client to prepare another supplemental variant report who-
se approval is expected in the first months of 2005.

Production for the year totals approximately 8.6 million Euro.

In the month of December 2004, the Extraordinary Commissioner for emergencies
in the port of Porto Torres also entrusted the implementation of urgent works con-
cerning port safety to Astaldi, for a value of approximately 17.5 million Euro.

MOSE System

The government — through the Ministry of Infrastructures — Water Authority of Ve-
nice — entrusted a series of interventions in concession to the Consortium “Vene-
zia Nuova” (in which Astaldi holds a stake) for the protection of the city of Venice
and the entire lagoon ecosystem. These interventions have the following objecti-
ves, set by Law no. 798/1984 (Special Law on Venice):

defense from high water levels;

defense from sea storms;

— recovery of the lagoon’s morphology;

— environmental re-balancing.

As regards the defense from rising water levels, the Consortium has created a pro-
ject for the implementation of a series of mobile works, named the Mose System;
the latter would be placed at the mouth of each of the three port inlets (Lido, Ma-
lamocco and Chioggia) which connect the sea to the lagoon.

These mobile works are composed of a series of floodgates installed in formation
on the sea floor of the port inlets. During normal tidal conditions, they would be
full of water and would remain positioned in the slot structures created on the sea
floor. But when the tide rises above 100 cm, the floodgates are emptied by intro-
ducing an inflow of compressed air. As a result, they will rise — rotating around
the axis of the hinges — until they reach the surface. This system would allow for
temporary isolation of the lagoon from the sea, blocking the flow of the tide.
Each floodgate consists of a metallic box structure linked to the slot by two hin-
ges measuring 20 meters in width, and with variable height (20/30 meters) and
thickness (4/5 meters) set in accordance with the depth of the inlet canal.

The building of the Mose System was entrusted to the members of the Consortium
“Venezia Nuova” by the consortium itself. With particular regard to the inlet of Li-



do Treporti, the works were entrusted to a Temporary Association of Companies
with Astaldi S.p.A. serving as the group leader with a 35% stake. The associated
firms created a consortium company named Mose-Treporti S.c.r.l. for the purposes
of the common management of activities.

Assignment of the works on the part of the Consortium was undertaken on the ba-
sis of a deed of general commitment which was executed on December 15th,
2003, and valued at approximately 333 million Euro. This deed of commitment be-
comes effective through the formalization of specific deeds of implementation that
are stipulated on the basis of available financing.

During the course of 2004, Mose Treporti was entrusted with executive design and
implementation activities for the clearing of military devices and works relating to
the shelter port of Lido Treporti — Phase One — with a valuation of approximately
54 million Euro. The implementation of part of these works has generated overall
revenues for the year of approximately 13 million Euro, 4.5 million of which related
to the Astaldi stake.

Infraflegrea 2004

With agreement no. 30 of May 8th, 2002, executed with the Chairman of the Re-
gional Council of Campania, Liquidator Commissioner G. F. B. pursuant to Law no.
887/84, the works for the expansion and upgrading of the port of Pozzuoli were
assigned.

These assignments include the works for the extension of the “molo caligoliano” (a
pier) and the restructuring of the former Circomare building.

The restructuring work of the former Circomare building was completed in the
month of October 2004; testing activities are currently underway.

The extension of the “molo caligoliano” — delivered in May 2004 — included
the creation of an outer breakwater protecting the port of Pozzuoli through a
structure composed of reinforced concrete cellular caissons placed on a sub-
structure bed. The total length of the extension is approximately 360 meters.
The geo-technical issues emerging from the caisson housing phase have crea-
ted the need to prepare a variant report that includes vibrocompaction works
on the ground on which the caissons will be placed. This report was approved
by the Client during the current year and the works — delivered for approval
— are in an advanced stage of implementation.

Production for the year totals approximately 4.5 million Euro for the Astaldi stake.
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Hydraulic works and electric power plants
Pont Ventoux Hydroelectric Power Plant

Construction works on the Pont Ventoux Hydroelectric Power Plant in Piedmont — cur-
rently the most important under construction in Europe — continued during the year.
The works are physically more than 98% completed. In particular, the civil and plant
works relating to the functional lot capable of producing electrical energy using the
Clarea and Susa basins were completed during the year — as required by the supple-
mental agreement signed with the grantor AEM Torino in July 2003. All the approval
and start-up tests for both energy production units (75MW each) installed at the Ve-
naus plant were completed, and in the month of December, authorization to reach the
maximum storage capacity was issued by the testing commission appointed by Regi-
stro Italiano Dighe.

In addition, the excavation of the headrace tunnel from Pont Ventoux to Clarea has
been completed. As regards the lining of this headrace tunnel, a further supplemental
agreement with the awarding authority was reached during the course of 2004, yielding
an increase in the overall contractual valuation from 192 million to 255 million Euro.
As for the significant dispute underway with the grantor — relating to the variation in
the layout of the headrace tunnel, as well as the shifted position of the Venaus plant
and certain administrative defaults that are attributable to the awarding authority — it

should be noted that the two official technical consultations have been completed.

These consultations recognized the existence of the unexpected geological problem,
as well the claim for greater charges put forth by Astaldi.

As a result, the Arbitration Board issued a partial ruling in September 2004 with no de-
tails on economic compensation since an additional technical survey was considered
necessary; this survey is currently underway.

Completion of the plant is forecasted for 2006.

The production generated in 2004 totals approximately 24.5 million Euro, 13.8 million
of which attributable to the Astaldi stake.

Gimigliano Dam on the Melito River

During the course of 2004, excavations of the temporary diversion and bottom out-
let tunnels, as well as the diversion tunnel, continued.

In addition, the investigation for the verification and restoration of the drainage
blanket has been completed and the excavations for the dam tunnels have been



implemented; the waterproofing sheet piling and the excavations for the dam
foundations have been started.

Over the course of the year, work progress was strongly affected by the fact that
the Decree of Public Utility of the Works was not issued by the Client, thereby ma-
king it impossible to use certain important areas that were necessary for the start-
up of the dam’s construction works.

The value of the works carried out during the course of 2004 totaled approxima-
tely 4.9 million Euro.

Civil and industrial buildings
New Hospital in Mestre

Health unit ULSS 12 of Venice assigned the construction under concession —
through project financing — of Mestre’s new hospital to Veneta Sanitaria Finanza
di Progetto S.p.A., of which Astaldi S.p.A. is a reference partner and leader with a
31% stake.

The purpose of the concession involves the design, construction and management
of the new hospital; this management will consist of certain hospital and commer-
cial services. The project provides for the construction of four buildings for a total
area of approximately 150,000 m2, which includes a 680-bed hospital facility, a
services block, parking, and a morgue. The concession is valid for 28.5 years (in-
cluding 4.5 years for construction and 24 years for management), starting from the
date — December 4th, 2002 - that the right to use the area went into effect.

The concessionaire, Veneta Sanitaria Finanza di Progetto S.p.A., entrusted the ho-
spital design and construction works to a temporary association of companies for-
med by the same partners, and which distributed the works in accordance with
their respective areas of expertise and specialization. C.O.MES. S.c.r.l., a consor-
tium company in which Astaldi S.p.A. holds a 55% stake, was formed for the spe-
cific purpose of carrying out the civil works and supplying the electromedical
equipment and furnishings.

Over the course of the year, the executive design for the works was completed on
schedule, and the foundation works for the primary building — the hospital facility
— were finished; the elevated and overlooking structures — expected to be part
steel and part concrete — were begun. At the same time, the works for the par-
king lot building, as well as the administration office and the building which will be
used for the new headquarters of the Veneto Eye-Bank, have been started.
Overall revenues in 2004 for the consortium company C.O.MES. S.c.r.l. totaled ap-
proximately 13.3 million Euro, 7.3 million of which attributable to the Astaldi S.p.A.
stake.

New Hospital in Naples (“Ospedale del Mare”)

The Naples ASL 1 local healthcare service entrusted the construction under con-
cession — by project financing — of the new hospital in Naples (“Ospedale del Ma-
re”) to Astaldi S.p.A., the group leader of the Concessionaire temporary associa-
tion of companies in which it is the reference partner and leader with a 59.99%
stake.

Management Report on the consolidated financial statements
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The concession concerns final and executive design, the implementation of the
works, the supply of electromedical equipment and furniture, and the management
of certain non-healthcare and commercial services. The forecast investment for
carrying out the works is 187 million Euro, of which approximately 56.5% will be
disbursed by the local healthcare service, while the remaining amount will be bor-
ne by the concessionaire, which will receive an annual compensation for the 25-
year management of the facilities’ non-healthcare services, totaling circa 1 Billion
Euro.

The project provides for the construction of four buildings, including a 500-bed
hospital facility, reception facilities with 100 beds for minor care services, a block
of buildings for new offices and a building prepared as an entrance hall to the Ho-
spital with areas for commercial use, and totaling an overall surface area of ap-
proximately 98,000 m2.

The concession has a duration of around 29 years (including 42 months for con-
struction and 300 months for management) starting from the contract’s date of
execution which took place on October 21st, 2004.

The concessionaire temporary association of companies had already presented the
final design on December 19th, 2004, in keeping with the contractual timeline, and
is awaiting formal approval of the design by the Naples ASL 1 local healthcare ser-
vice.

A consortium company — in which Astaldi S.p.A. will participate with a 60% stake
— is being founded for the purpose of implementing the works.

New Milan Expo Fair Center

Over the course of 2004, the N.P.F. - Nuovo Polo Fieristico S.c.r.l. — the General
Contractor in which Astaldi S.p.A. participates as leader with a 50% stake along
with Vianini Lavori S.p.A. (25%) and Impresa Pizzarotti & C. S.p.A. (25%) — conti-
nued the design, procurement, construction and testing activities for the New Mi-
lan External Expo Fair Center, reaching a 91.5% state of progress for the contract
(compared with the 37.8% reported on December 31st, 2003).

The New Milan Expo Fair Center — designed by the firm grouping led by Astaldi
S.p.A. in collaboration with the architect Massimiliano Fuksas, of Studio Altieri and
Studio Marzullo — is the largest trade fair system in Europe. The structure com-
prises eight exhibition pavilions (two of which on two levels) with a display area of
350,000 m2, and a service center which serves as a multifunctional building con-
sisting of four office towers, one great hall seating 800, four 250-seat congress
halls, certain areas used for public offices and commercial enterprises, and an
ecumenical center.

Public access to the exhibition pavilions is guaranteed by a 1.3 km central path
moving along the east-west axis of the complex within a strip 60-m in width, along
which 32 minor buildings used as offices, conference rooms, show rooms, restau-
rants and bars for visitors and exhibitors are located.

The project — completed in record time — will be delivered on March 30th, 2005,
and inaugurated the following day. Astaldi, by completing this contract, has de-
monstrated that it has the competency and know-how needed to complete com-
plex works—not only from the technological standpoint, but also from the mana-
gerial perspective. The ability to coordinate the numerous human resources and



techniques involved in carrying out the project has allowed it to be completed in
full accordance with the contractual deadlines.

Over the course of the year, the Client’s definition and approval of a series of sup-
plemental deeds were also undertaken, were aimed at introducing additional con-
tractual variations. These additional works — which are partly completed — resulted
in a revision of the executive design, even for the purpose of attaining the building
concession variation; these activities were completed during the course of 2004.
Therefore, the overall contractual value — initially equal to 553 million Euro — has
risen to 653 million Euro, including 628 million Euro for construction works and 25
million Euro for maintenance and management over five years.

“Universita degli Studi Roma Tre” — New Department of Educational Sciences

After overcoming the technical obstacles encountered during the course of 2003,
it was possible to proceed in 2004 with the building of masonry and external fa-
cade works, in addition to the metallic covering of the classroom building; these
works are almost completed.

As for the offices building, the activities relating to the flooring and the finishings
were brought to conclusion.

Following the unexpected technical problems that arose during 2003 (interference of
an old ACEA electrical substation) — as well as the damages sustained as a result
of archaeological excavations and design shortcomings for the deeper foundations
— reservations were entered in the accounting ledgers; an amicable agreement,
acknowledging damages for approximately 1.5 million Euro, was reached with the
Client on October 21st, 2004, in connection with these registered reservations.
The progressive production at year end was approximately 12.9 million Euro; the
value executed in 2004 surpassed 8.4 million Euro and the works are slated for
completion in June 2005.

Utilities

Cologno Monzese

In the month of June 2004, the Concession for the creation of a system of multi-
functional underground infrastructures on part of the existing roads in the city cen-
ter has been undersigned with the Municipal Administration of Cologno Monzese.

This system, capable of containing all current and future sub-services, consists of
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an accessible tunnel under the roadway, i.e. prefabricated tunnels placed under-
neath the sidewalks.

The entire execution of the works will occur in accordance with the project financing
scheme, and therefore without any charge to the Client, but with the contributions
of private financing.

In the second half of 2004, the General Urban Plan for Underground Services (“Pia-
no Urbano Generale Servizi del Sottosuolo” or “PUGSS”) was drafted; this will be
charged to the Concessionaire and is subject to approval by the Municipal Council.
Over the course of 2005, the drafting and approval of the final and then executive
design will be undertaken in order to begin start-up of construction activities bet-
ween the end of 2005 and the beginning of 2006.

“Ex Manifattura Tabacchi” Public Car Park, Bologna

On February 18th, 2003, the temporary association of companies formed by Astal-
di S.p.A. (parent company and leader) and APCOA Parking S.p.A. was awarded the
concession for the building and subsequent management of the public car park
named “Ex Manifattura Tabacchi.”

Following the approval of the final design, as well as of the “E.[.A.” (“Environmen-
tal Impact Assessment”), the temporary association of companies presented the
municipal council with the executive desigh on May 7th, 2004, the latter received
all approvals from the relevant bodies on June 9th, 2004.

At the same time, the work area was delivered; works are expected to be comple-
ted by November 19th, 2005.

As of late 2004, the excavation works were about 30% complete, and the reinfor-
ced concrete diaphragms were 60% complete.

At the present time, overall production totals approximately 1.7 million Euro.

Due to the delays created by various archaeological finds and a series of buried
structures in reinforced concrete, as well as the greater charges deriving from the
subsequent suspension of the works, the temporary association of companies is
seeking to recover the increased costs — given that the concession contract pro-
vides for an extension on the contractual period and on the duration of the con-
cession period and/or the temporal deferment of the fee payment.

Concessions

Hospital Sector

In the hospital building sector, the concession for the new hospital of Mestre be-
came operational in December 2002. The concession - assigned by Veneto’s
“ULSS 12” local healthcare service to Veneta Sanitaria Finanza di Progetto S.p.A.
- V.S.F.P. S.p.A., a Special Purpose Vehicle in which Astaldi S.p.A. holds a 31%
stake — concerns the final and executive design, as well as the implementation of
the works, the supply of electromedical equipment and furnishings. and the ma-
nagement of the structure through the distribution of hospital and commercial
services.

Following a supplemental deed undersigned by the parties and approved by the Ve-
neto Region in October 2003, the initial scope of the Concession was supplemented



with the performance and management of certain services for the new Eye-Bank.
The concession is valid for 28.5 years (including 4.5 years for construction and an
additional 24 years for management) — starting from December 4th, 2002, the da-
te when the right to use the area went into effect.

The investment — valued at approximately 220 million Euro, and including 200 mil-
lion Euro for the design and construction of the work and for electromedical sup-
plies (Astaldi stake: 38%) — is about 40% financed by public contributions, while
the overall revenues expected for the management period are over 1 billion Euro in
nominal value.

On the strength of its experience gained in this sector with the Mestre hospital pro-

ject, Astaldi signed an agreement for the design, construction and management of
the new hospital in Naples (“Ospedale del Mare”) in October.

The concession concerns the final and executive design, the performance of the
works, the supply of electromedical equipment and furniture, and the management of
certain hospital and commercial services in exchange for the payment of tariffs and
fees. Management will be delegated to a soon-to-be-founded special purpose vehi-
cle. The concession is valid for 29 years (including 4 years for construction and an
additional 25 years for management). The investment — valued at approximately 187
million Euro, and including 162 million Euro for construction and supplies (Astaldi
stake: 60%) — is about 56.5% financed by public contributions, while the overall re-
venues expected for the management period exceed 1 billion Euro in nominal value.
Due to administrative problems, the activities for the implementation of the integra-
ted system of four hospitals in Tuscany (Prato, Pistoia, Lucca and Massa) have been
suspended. In fact, the Group is awaiting the outcome of the appeal proposed by
Astaldi to the Council of State, proposed in response to the decision of Tuscany’s
Regional Administrative Court (“T.A.R.”) to repeat the procedure by which the Group
had been formally appointed as sponsor for this project in late 2003. The construc-
tion of the four hospitals in Tuscany, worth - for the construction alone — 330 million
Euro (including 88 million Euro borne by private parties), will create more than 1,700
new beds available for healthcare.

Mobility and parking sector

In the car park sector, a new concession for the Piazza della Cittadella car park in
Verona was added in 2004, in addition to those relating to the four car parks in
Bologna and Turin. The contract deals with the construction and subsequent ma-
nagement under project financing of a car park with 750 car spaces located in the
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centre of the city. The project requires an investment of approximately 17 million
Euro and a management period of 30 years, effective from the end of the con-
struction period (about 15 months). The signing of the concession contract is ex-
pected in the first half of 2005.

With regard to the concession relating to the “Piazza VIII Agosto” car park in Bo-
logna, which entered the management phase in 2001, its completion has made
nearly 1,000 car spaces available, 700 of which on a rotational basis; the Conces-
sion will have a duration of 60 years.

With regard to the “Ex Manifattura Tabacchi” car park located in the city of Bologna

and currently under construction, the agreement — with a duration of thirty years, and
signed by Astaldi S.p.A. and the Municipality of Bologna — will include the construc-
tion and subsequent management of a car park with approximately 550 car spaces.

On the other hand, for the contract for the “Porta Palazzo” car park in Turin (in the
management phase since 1999), the concession provides for putting 847 car spa-
ces into service over a period of 80 years.

As regards the “Corso Stati Uniti” car park in Turin, already operational since
2001, the concession involved the creation of approximately 500 car spaces and
the start of management of 450 car spaces over a period of 80 years.

Utilities sector

In the utilities sector, the concession for the construction of a system of multipur-
pose underground infrastructures in Cologno Monzese — on part of the existing
roads in the center of the city — is operational.

This system, capable of containing all current and future sub-services, consists of
an accessible tunnel under the roadway, i.e. a prefabricated tunnel placed under-
neath the sidewalk.

The entire execution of the works will occur in accordance with the project finan-
cing scheme, and therefore without any charge to the Client, but with the contri-
butions of private financing.

Foreign scenario

The streamlining of the Group’s international presence continued in 2004.
In particular, the Group’s presence and commercial efforts have been strengthened
in Florida (USA), particularly after the acquisition of important contracts over the



course of the year; this led to the creation of a broad program for strengthening
management structures and control over the area.

Growth prospects in Romania and Eastern European countries are promising,
particularly in the field of concessions and PPPs (Public-Private Partnerships),
and in light of these countries’ imminent entry into the EU.

In Saudi Arabia and Qatar, vast investments are planned in the oil, gas, power
and transport infrastructure sectors by joint ventures between state bodies and
some of the leading multinationals: the approach characterizing the operations of
these companies — which normally are highly reliable in both timing and availa-
bility of financing — makes the new initiatives that could develop in the area very
interesting. A large amount of attention is devoted to the operational and secu-
rity-related factors in the above-mentioned countries, given the conditions of
tension which characterize the entire Persian Gulf region.

The main contracts in progress are illustrated below and divided by geographical area.

The Americas

Venezuela

The Group’s presence in Venezuela has strengthened over the years.

In the transport infrastructure sector, the Group is present through the current
construction of two railway lines, the Caracas-Tuy Medio and Puerto Cabello-La
Encrucijada, and an underground system, the Los Teques Underground, all of
which are of considerable importance for the country.

The Client for the Caracas-Tuy Medio railway is the |.A.F.E. (Independent State
Railway Body). Over the course of 2004, works continued on a regular basis for
its construction, in accordance with the availability of resources provided by the
2004 budget: the civil works for lots 3 and 4 and pertaining to Astaldi have been
completed, while the works for laying the railway have continued.

In 2004, production attained totals of 19 million Euro for the Astaldi stake. On the
other hand, with regard to the contract for the Puerto Cabello-La Encrucijada rail-
way line, the work covers 108 km and is being undertaken by the Consorcio Gru-
po Contuy-Proyectos y Obras de Ferrocarriles consortium, in which Astaldi S.p.A.
serves as leader with a 33.33% stake. The overall value of the contract is 1,200
million Euro, 195 million of which included in the portfolio as Astaldi’s share.

The works, begun over the course of 2002, continued during the year with the
completion of the excavation of two tunnels along the mountain lot, and the be-
ginning of excavations for two others. In addition, the activities for building the
foundations of a viaduct were started. Production equaled to 41 million Euro.
Due to the re-opening of financing lines for Venezuela on the part of S.A.C.E. (So-
cieta per I’Assicurazione del Credito all’Esportazione, “Company for Insurance on
Export Credit”), a loan agreement to finance the first section of the work was exe-
cuted in December 2003. This operation — managed by Banca Intesa of London
and Société Générale of Paris — made 165.5 million USD available for the project
— 130 million serving as export credit (currently in the disbursement phase) and
35.5 million as a commercial loan, which expired on December 31st, 2004 and has
yet to be used. Negotiations are underway for the latter between Banks and the lo-
cal Ministry of Finance, and relate to the potential extension of the usage terms.
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As for the contract for the Los Teques Underground line, the Consorcio Metro
Los Teques consortium, in which Astaldi S.p.A. holds a 30% stake, was pre-
viously founded for the underground’s construction.

The contract — relating to the construction of a 9 km light underground connec-
ting Caracas and Los Teques — is worth approximately 260 million Euro.

During the financial year, the activities relate to the 120 million Euro contract for
the construction of 5 km of tunnels — managed by Astaldi — proceeded at a
steady pace: 4 km of tunnels and linings have been completed, while a 1 km tun-
nel — resulting from a contractual change — remains to be completed.
Production for this project reached 35 million Euro.

The civil works carried out directly by the consortium are continuing at the same
time.

In 2004, production for this contract totaled approximately 65 million Euro, 20

million of which pertaining to Astaldi’s stake.

Bolivia

Over the course of 2004 — given that current works were completed in the pre-
vious year — various new commercial initiatives were carried forward, including
the “Paradiso-El Tinto” road projects (for which the Group is already pre-qualified)
and the “Canaletas-Entre Rios” project in Tarija. Two other contracts are to be im-
plemented with funds from Cooperazione Italiana — the “Toledo-Ancaravi” road
and the Misicuni dam. All the above works should be included in tenders during
the course of 2005.

United States

Construction activities in the United States are carried out by the Astaldi Con-
struction Corporation, a U.S. corporation that is 100% controlled — both directly
and indirectly — by Astaldi S.p.A.

The geographical area of operation is primarily in southern Florida, along both the
Eastern (Miami, Fort Lauderdale, West Palm Beach, Stuart and Port St. Lucie) and
Western (Naples, Tampa) coasts.

The types of current works may be broken down into two primary categories:
road works for the Florida Department of Transportation and works related to
utilities (piping for drinking water, sewer systems, draining, etc.) on behalf of
municipalities and counties. The orders backlog for these projects totals 129.6
million USD.



At the close of 2004, Astaldi Construction Corporation had a workforce of 409 in-
dividuals (two expatriates, 407 locals), including managers, cadres and workers,
and its own heavy machinery, equipment and various vehicles had an overall pur-
chase value of 13.9 million USD.

The year 2004 saw additional growth in company revenues, which increase from
65.9 million USD in 2003 to 78.2 million USD in 2004, as well as a high level of
new orders, totalling 105.7 million USD for the year.

With regard to the economic trend, the year 2004 reported certain negative ef-
fects caused by a variety of unpredictable additional costs — whose recovery is
linked to the outcome of requests for additional compensation and disputes that
are underway with various Clients. The latter are due to the following factors:

e the interference of current sub-services whose removal costs should have been
charged to the Client;
e differing ground conditions resulting in project variations;

e modifications to environmental permits falling within the Client’s responsibility.
All of the above has led to delays, aggravated by various organizational problems
in the building yards due to the high turnover of local personnel and the difficulty
of recruiting competent technical cadres.

In addition to these added costs, the company has also been strongly committed
to adapting its operational structures to the rapid and sustained growth in reve-
nue, which increased from 2.6 million USD in 2001 to 78.2 million USD in 2004.
But in 2005, economic results are expected to turn positive again, due to the com-
pletion of the projects currently underway that are suffering from the negative
trend, and to the greater profitability of the remaining projects.

There is also reason to cause that there will be a certain degree of stability of
the major industrial prices during 2005, in conjunction with an adjustment of
the tender estimates of various designers to market costs; these factors could
result in improvements in industrial margins for the works and reduce the risk
level of new bids.

The strategy for 2005 is therefore centered upon the controlled growth of revenue
(the 2005 forecast is for over 90 million USD, 80 million of which from the orders
backlog), expanded monitoring, assistance and support activities for the various
building yards by the registered office in Davie, and the organizational improve-
ment of operational activities in individual projects. These objectives are attaina-
ble due to the previously started company re-organization and the satisfactory
portfolio of projects; the latter will allow for a greater degree of selection in the
choice of contracts to bid for — in both contract value and type.

FROM LEFT TO RIGHT.

VENEZUELA
Caracas-Tuy Railway
QATAR

SASOL GTL Plant Project
MOROCCO

Sidi Said Dam
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Despite the strong competition in the public works sector and the difficulties en-
countered in 2004, the southern Florida market continues to be highly attractive
for the opportunities it offers in terms of the volume and value of contracted
works.

Central America and the Caribbean

The year 2004 reported revenues of 31.7 million Euro in the area — a decrease
from the record level attained in the previous year. This expected decrease was
amplified in revenue values as a result of the continued devaluation of the US Dol-
lar with respect to the Euro.

Despites its limited size, the Central American region has been confirmed as a
priority area for the quality of acquired projects and the level of attained profitabi-
lity. The year 2004 was also marked by the final withdrawal from the market of the
Dominican Republic; the only new acquired contract was transferred to a third
party. On the other hand, 2004 witnessed the first important commercial efforts ai-
med at starting up new activities in Costa Rica and Guatemala; branch offices ha-
ve been opened in these countries.

Honduras

The works for constructing the Acueducto Regional Valle de Nacaome, assigned
to Astaldi S.p.A., have continued, yielding revenues of about 12.9 million Euro in
2004.

Execution of work, financed by Cooperazione Italiana, had undergone major de-
lays in the start-up phase due to the complex bureaucratic procedures required
for putting into force the bilateral cooperation agreements between Italy and
Honduras.

The Company has successfully implemented a series of measures aimed at recovering
lost time, and the work was actually in a very advanced state at the close of the year;
its official inauguration is even slated for the first quarter of 2005, ahead of the con-
tractual deadlines.

El Salvador

The year 2004 was marked by the completion of works relating to Carretera CA
1, connecting CA 4 Troncal del Norte and Calle a Tonacatepeque, the so-called
“Paquete 11", an 11 km stretch of motorway bypass of the capital El Salvador;
it was opened to traffic in the first months of 2004. The works for the rehabili-
tation of 59 km of the Santa Ana-Metapan-Anguiatu road were completed du-
ring the course of the year, with a production for the year of approximately 6.27
million Euro.

Nicaragua

The works relating to the Managua drain trunk line, a project worth about 3.5 mil-
lion Euro and nearing completion, have continued.



Europe
Turkey

The Group has been present in Turkey for several years for the construction of
the so-called Anatolian Highway roadway link between Istanbul and Ankara.
During the course of 2004, the construction works for lot 2 continued in all
areas, with the completion of the various viaduct structures, the start-up of the
concrete and corten steel beams, as well as minor works and the stabilization
of the excavation slopes; the structural repair work on Viaduct 1 (seriously da-
maged by the earthquake in 1999) continued with the completion of one road-
way and the beginning of works on another. In addition, the excavation of the
tunnel from the Istanbul side continued and — with the completion of the cut-
and-cover works — the new portal and the tunnel excavation on the Ankara si-
de were begun.

The full resumption of all the works, both underground and external, enabled
the complete use of the funds assigned to the project under the government fi-
nance plan, allowing payments thereof to be obtained by year’s end.

Despite a production slow-down halfway through the year, the expected pro-
duction (approximately 98 million Euro) was reached; the positive operating in-
come was higher than planned.

Due to the good relations established with the Client and the competent Mini-
stries, as well as the project’s priority level, it is hoped that the allocation of
funds for the project within the 2005 budget can meet the real needs during the
course of the year, thus allowing the contract’s planning and revenue objectives
to be achieved. Delivery of this contract is slated for the first months of 2007.
At the end of the year, your Company participated in the pre-qualification pha-
se for the design and construction of the new Istanbul-Ankara High-Speed
Railway Link and the accesses to the new Bosphorus railway crossing (Marma-
ray Project); this was undertaken along with Ansaldo Trasporti Sistemi Ferro-
viari and other international subcontractors and partners — such as Scott Wil-
son — as well as local ones. Both of these projects involve civil works totaling
more than 400 million Euro. Participation in the tenders — subject to the posi-
tive outcome of the pre-qualifying phase — will occur over the course of 2005.

Romania

During 2004, the Group’s revenue doubled over the previous year due to the ac-
quisition and start-up of new contracts such as works relating to the bypass of the
city of Pitesti — with highway characteristics, and part of pan-European passage-
way IV (contractual value of 66 million Euro using EBRD funds) — as well as lots 4
and 5 of the Bucharest-Constanta Highway, built in a joint venture with the German
firm Boegl and the Romanian company CCCF (the overall value of these two con-
tracts is 80 million Euro, using ISPA funds).

The phase 2A works for the development and modernization of Bucharest’s Oto-
peni international airport continued; these should be substantially completed du-
ring 2005. The value of the contract increased due to new acquisition of works for
the development of an automated security control system for departing baggage.

Management Report on the consolidated financial statements
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During the month of July 2004, the works relating to lot 1 of the Bucharest-Con-
stanta Highway were successfully completed; the highway was opened for traffic in
early June.

In addition, the contracts for the rehabilitation of the road lots relating to the
national roads DN7 between Bucharest and Tirgoviste, DN 66 between Petro-
sani and Baru, and DN 73 between Pitesti and Brasov were continued, as was
the construction of the bypass of the city of Craiova, and the Romanian-Bulga-
rian border point on the Danube river near the city of Calarasi. The works rela-
ting to the Bucharest underground system were not completed in the current
year because of an extension of the contract—in terms of both contractual va-
lue and duration.

Within this scenario of general expansion of the Group’s activities in Romania, the
direct presence of Astaldi S.p.A. has grown strongly with respect to the its subsi-
diary, Italstrade S.p.A., which traditionally represented the Group in this country.

Denmark

The consortium COMET - Copenhagen Metro Construction Group, in which Astaldi
S.p.A. holds a 15% stake, has completed its works and the underground has been
open to the public since October 2002, working to the full satisfaction of riders
and Client alike.

The contract provides for a maintenance period of 5 years, effective as of June
27th, 2002 for the main works (Phase 1), and from January 27th, 2003 for the ac-
cessory works (stage 2A).

The Client recognized the validity of the Consortium’s claims for an amount grea-
ter than two-thirds of the contractual amount, accepting reservations for a total of
316 million Euro — 47.4 million of which are pertaining Astaldi — and 113 million
Euro for advances on submitted reservations.

Since an agreement was not reached with the Client on the final valuation of the works,
COMET initiated arbitration on April 30th, 2004, as provided for by the contract.

Croatia

Astaldi S.p.A. had initiated an arbitration with the Republic of Croatia at the Vien-
na Chamber of Commerce, over to the interruption of the Zagreb-Gorican highway
project. The arbitration is very complicated from a procedural standpoint, and very
complex with regard to the structure of the project financing involved.



On June 18th, 2004, the Arbitration Board unanimously awarded a reimbursement to
Astaldi for its implemented works and activities, lost income, and accrued interests.
The effects of the ruling were prudently appraised by allocating a large part of the
amounts in a “Contractual risk fund” and a “Depreciation fund for interest on ar-
rears” within the December 31st, 2004 financial statements; this was done while
taking into account the recognition procedure for the ruling used by the Croatian
court and the predictable protest of the ruling before the Court of Vienna by the
Republic of Croatia, given the significant amount involved and the country’s eco-
nomic conditions.

Africa

Maghreb-Algeria

The A.F.T. (Astaldi-Federici-Todini) Consortium, in which Astaldi S.p.A. holds a
33% stake, is working on the final delivery activity for the Taksebt dam. On the
other hand, works are under way on the Kramis dam and are being carried out
by the A.F.T. Kramis Consortium, also led by Astaldi S.p.A. with a 50% stake.
The year 2004 was characterized by a very strong productive effort which allo-
wed the Consortium to deliver the dam to the Client, ANB (Agence Nationale des
Barrages) within the scheduled year-end deadline, and with flooding moved for-
ward to October of 2004. The quality of the work and, in particular, the respect
for the contractual period — which is rather rare for such complex projects in
Algeria — earned the Consortium and the lead company, Astaldi S.p.A., explicit
recognition from the local authorities. Revenues in 2004 reached 37 million Eu-
ro — partly as a result of the aforementioned acceleration of the works, and
partly due to a series of variations in the contracted quantities which resulted in
a contractual supplement (Avenant no. 1), causing the final valuation of the
works to grow considerably.

The year 2004 was marked by a strong commercial commitment on the part of
Astaldi S.p.A. through the latter’s participation in numerous and important bids —
in groupings with local partners — and in accordance with the strategic decision
to commit the Company more deeply to this important Mediterranean country.

Maghreb-Morocco

Astaldi is present in Morocco through its subsidiary Italstrade S.p.A..

Construction of the “Rocade Méditeranéenne” road

Over the course of the year, actions taken with the client for the purpose of obtaining
modified executive designs were continued; the latter became necessary because of
the geological situation which was not consistent with the initial analyses done during
the design phase, which affected the initial progress of the works. In compliance with
current regulations, the detailed technical report was forwarded to the Minister for the
appropriate evaluations, including those of an economic nature.

As a result, the building yard was only able to implement minor works this year;
the latter pertain to activities that were not affected by the conditions listed abo-
ve, and generated only 6 million Euro in production.

Management Report on the consolidated financial statements
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Meknés Railway - Tunnel
Over the course of the year, the Client completed the payment settling the con-
tractual relationship.

Meknés Railway - Railway doubling

Following the proceedings initiated in 2003 after the unilateral termination decided
by the Client, in which the Client failed to acknowledge due compensation, a claim
petition was filed with the competent court.

Sidi Said Dam

Over the course of the year, the works for the construction of the dam in RCC con-
tinued, and the annexed works in traditional concrete were started; revenues for
the period were approximately 17 million Euro. Production was supported by bank
financing and the parent company after payments were stopped by the Client due
to a liquidity crisis. It should be noted that the entire financial exposure was then
cancelled in the first months of 2005.

With regard to the claims formulated by the company during the previous year, the
Client rejected the request which, in accordance with the procedures currently in
force in Morocco, was forwarded to the competent court.

Congo

Restructuring of the Bouansa-Moukoukoulou road continued through 2004 with a
production of 4.5 million Euro — an amount lower than expected due to the Clien-
t’s continued lack of funds. During the year in question, the works relating to the
airport road — valued at 4.8 million Euro — were started and completed.

Guinea Bissau

In July of 2004, following the delivery of all current works to the Client, all opera-
tional activities in the country were concluded; overall revenues for the period
equaled 2.1 million Euro — a slight increase with respect to forecasts due to cer-
tain additional works.

Guinea Conakry

Over the course of the year, works relating to the Fatala river bridge and those
relating to the Kankan-Djelibakoro Road were completed and delivered to the
Client; revenues for these projects totaled 6.6 million and 7.8 million Euro re-
spectively.

After concluding all activities in the area, procedures were initiated for the tran-
sfer of all goods of the Group and to close operations in the country for good.
Over the course of the year, it should be noted that the audit carried out by the
European Union attributes to the company — in first resort — part of the initial
costs and additional time spent on the two works relating to the Fatala bridge
and the Kankan-Djelibakoro Road; the increased costs deriving from the exten-
sion of the contractual period, as well as from additional works implemented for
the bridge foundations, are being determined with the Client.



Tanzania

The only road project of Mwanza was continued and fundamentally completed during
2004, with the exception of small complementary finishing works. Partial deliveries
of the various road lots — which will be completed in the first months of 2005 — we-
re initiated in November; revenues for the period totaled 3.7 million Euro, but the en-
vironmental difficulties hindering the works within the city have resulted in an exten-
sion of the work period and greater unexpected charges. Negotiations are underway
with the Client for the acknowledgement of these greater charges and work times.

Middle East

The Group operates in the area — which in this phase is limited to Saudi Arabia
and Qatar — through its subsidiary Astaldi Arabia Ltd.

Saudi Arabia

The civil works relating to the Yanbu Acetic Plant, as well as the works relating to
the electro-mechanical assemblies, have been completed.

The acetic acid plant is slated to start operations in the upcoming months; no de-
lays for this objective are expected, since the test & commissioning operations we-
re concluded with no particular problems.

Qatar

Over the course of 2004, the civil works for the construction of the Sasol Gas to
Liquid (GTL) Plant - Ras Laffan project continued; their completion is scheduled
for the summer of 2005, while assembly works, as well as the electro-instrumental
works, are in full implementation phase.

Completion of the GTL pilot plant is slated for the summer of 2006, in order to
start industrial production in the immediate months that follow.

It is vitally important to complete the works within the requested period, since the
final result would serve as a launching pad for other works in the petrochemical
sector; the growth of this sector is commercially attractive for Astaldi, due to the
investments planned by the local government.

Production in 2004 equaled 27.8 million Euro, of which 2.6 million refer to an ad-
ditional contract for the supply of the conditioning plant.

The positive trend of operations in the area confirms the Group’s intention to con-
tinue growing its activities in the Arabian peninsula during the course of 2005 —
both in the civil-structural field, as well as in the plant/industrial sector.

Transactions with related parties

Transactions between Astaldi and related parties mainly concern the exchange of
goods, the supply of services, and the sourcing and use of financial resources with
parent and subsidiary companies. These relations are part of the Company’s ordi-
nary management and are regulated at normal market conditions, i.e. the condi-
tions that would be applied between two independent parties. All the operations
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were carried out in the interest of the Group. The overall valuation of the transac-
tions of commercial, other and financial nature with related parties — as well as
descriptions of the more significant transactions — are provided in the Notes to
the financial statements.

Main companies of the Group

Italstrade S.p.A.

Italstrade S.p.A., entirely owned by the Parent Company, operates prevalently on
foreign market (Morocco, Romania and Venezuela), growing its activities through
three branch offices which manage contracts in their own territories, as well as
through other firms in which the Company exerts a dominant influence.

Activities in Italy are undertaken by the CEAAV Consortium, in which the Company
holds a 25% stake equal to that held by the other members.

In analyzing the activities that were carried out, it should be noted that Italstrade
S.p.A. incorporated (by merger) the firm R.I.C. — Railway International Construc-
tion S.p.A. in 2004, for the purpose of streamlining and containing corporate ma-
nagement costs, and primarily to focus activities on the sector of the construction
and maintenance of medium-sized transport infrastructures (road and rail) - a sec-
tor in which, over the years, this company has acquired an appreciable indepen-
dent market position.

The implementation of works in Romania has continued satisfactorily, particularly
in reference to the current works for the expansion of Bucharest’s international air-
port, and the construction of lot 1 of the Bucharest-Constanta Highway; in Vene-
zuela, the construction of the superstructure of the Caracas-Cua railway is under-
way.

In Morocco, maximum efforts were made to contain the operational problems lin-
ked to the construction works for the Sidi Said dam.

Activities in Libya and China — undertaken through the subsidiaries Legnami Pa-
sotti and Yellow River — are substantially complete; in particular, the maintenance
activity in Libya is underway and will conclude in the first half of 2005.

The only activity that is currently underway in Italy is the construction of the rail-
way superstructure for the Rome-Naples High-Speed Railway stretch, which is
being implemented through the CEAAV Consortium.

ltalstrade S.p.A. - main data
2003
contract revenues 91 60
fixed assets 17 21
net financial indebtedness 6 6
debts with parent company 27 23
operating result 1 (7)

net profit




Astaldi Finance S.A.

For the purpose of stabilizing external financing sources for the Group, it should
be noted that Astaldi Finance S.A. was established in 2002 under Luxembourgian
Law. Entirely controlled by Astaldi S.p.A., it issued a eurobond for 150 million Eu-
ro with a three-year life, and 6.5% coupon deferred for the investor. In line with
current international market practice, Astaldi S.p.A. has guaranteed this loan.

On February 9th, 2005, Astaldi Finance S.A. proceeded in reimbursing BNP Pari-
bas — through the subsidiary — for the above-mentioned 150 million Euro deben-
ture loan, which was followed by the reimbursement to the underwriters on Fe-
bruary 11th, 2005.

Astaldi Construction Corporation

Construction activities in the United States are implemented by Astaldi Construc-
tion Corporation, a company operating under U.S. law and entirely controlled by
Astaldi S.p.A. — both directly and indirectly — and currently operating in southern
Florida, mainly in the sector of road infrastructures and public utilities.

During 2004 the company attained revenues of 78.2 million USD.

For more details on the company’s activities during the year, see the commentary
above, in the section analyzing current activities in the United States.

Own shares

In accordance with the resolutions of the Shareholders’ Meeting of November 9th,
2004 regarding the Astaldi share buy-back plan, 563,078 shares were progressi-
vely purchased during 2004. Likewise, 1,418,978 shares were sold, realizing gains
of approximately 1,308 million Euro.

As of December 31st, 2004, own shares in the portfolio were valued at 0.9 million
Euro. The average acquisition price for the 400,000 shares in the portfolio was ap-
proximately 2.24 Euro.

Parent Company shares held by Subsidiaries

No Parent Company shares are held by subsidiary companies.

Management Report on the consolidated financial statements
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Corporate governance
Foreword

The corporate governance model adopted this year by Astaldi is once again in line
with the principles contained in the Self-Regulatory Code for listed companies —
drafted by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. in the month of October 1999 and subsequently
modified and supplemented — as well as with the relevant recommendations for-
mulated by CONSOB (Italy’s Securities and Exchange Commission) and, more ge-
nerally, with the best practices used internationally.

Moreover, in line with the Instructions issued by Borsa Italiana S.p.A., the corpo-
rate governance system of Astaldi S.p.A. (henceforth, “Astaldi”) will be described
in light of the principles laid out by the Code in question and updated with the
main events occurring after the close of 2004.

Company Shareholders

The body of Astaldi Shareholders comprises more than 10,000 Shareholders with
ordinary shares.

In accordance with the Shareholders’ Register — supplemented by the notices re-
ceived in accordance with Art. 120 of Legislative Decree no. 58 of February 24th,
1998 and other available information — the direct shareholders, as of February
1st, 2003, holding more than 2% of the Company’s share capital fully paid-up and
represented by shares with voting rights, are as follows.

main shareholders

% share
FIN.AST S.R.L. 39.907%
FINETUPAR INTERNATIONAL SA 12.525%
GARTMORE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT PLC 5.32%
NEXTRA INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SGR S.P.A. 2.195%
J.P. MORGAN FLEMING ASSET MANAGEMENT (UK) LIMITED 2.128%
CENTAURUS CAPITAL LP 2.111%

The syndicate agreement existing between the shareholders Fin.Ast. S.r.l., Finetu-
par International S.A. (formerly Finetupar S.A.), Capitalia S.p.A. (formerly Banca di
Roma S.p.A.), Interbanca S.p.A. and Famifin S.A. (formerly FA.MI. S.A.) was an-
nulled early, effective as of June 24th, 2004, following the fall of the shareholding
of Capitalia S.p.A. and Interbanca S.p.A. under the 2% level.

Notice of the annulment of the syndicate agreement was published, in accordance
with the law, in the nationally distributed newspapers “Milano Finanza” and “Fi-
nanza e Mercati” on July 3rd, 2004.



Board of Directors (Articles 1 — 5 of the Code)
Composition and duration of office

In accordance with the provisions of the Company By-Laws, the Board of Directors
of Astaldi is made up of 9 to 15 Directors, appointed for a period not exceeding
three years, and who may be re-elected upon expiry of the mandate.

The Board of Directors of Astaldi, appointed on April 30th, 2004 and whose man-
date expires with the approval of the financial statements of December 31st, 2006,
currently has thirteen members.

In particular, it should be noted that during the shareholders’ meeting of Novem-
ber 9th, 2004, the number of Directors was increased from 12 to 13; the new
members of the Board of Directors of the Company are: Mr. Giuseppe Cafiero (pre-
viously co-opted in replacement of Mr. Bruno Lecchi with a Board resolution of
July 30th, 2004) and Mr. Nicola Oliva.

Given below is the name of each Director and his/her characteristics.

members of the board of directors

Ernesto Monti Chairman Non-executive/Independent
Paolo Astaldi Deputy Chairman Executive

Vittorio Di Paola Deputy Chairman and CEO Executive

Caterina Astaldi Director Non-executive/Non-independent
Pietro Astaldi Director Executive

Giuseppe Cafiero Director Executive

Luigi Guidobono Cavalchini Director Non-executive/Non-independent
Stefano Cerri Director Executive

Franco A. Grassini Director Non-executive/Independent
Mario Lupo Director Non-executive/Independent
Vittorio Mele Director Non-executive /Independent
Nicola Oliva Director Executive

Maurizio Poloni Director Non-executive /Independent

As required by the Self-Regulatory Code, there are sufficient non-executive direc-

tors — in terms of number and authority — to ensure that their opinion carries

enough weight in Board decisions. Non-executive directors, in fact, bring their
specific skills to the Board’s discussions, contributing to decision-making in the
interests of the Company.

In accordance with Art. 3.1 of the Self-Regulatory Code, a suitable number of non-

executive Directors are independent when:

e they do not entertain — directly, indirectly or on behalf of third parties — and
have not recently entertained economic relations with the Company, its subsi-
diaries, executive directors, individual shareholders or group of shareholders
that control the Company, to the extent that their independent judgment is af-
fected;

e they do not own — directly, indirectly, or on behalf of third parties — share-
holdings that enable them to exercise control or significant influence on the
Company, and they are not a party to syndicate agreements for control of the
Company;
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e there are no family ties between executive directors of the Company or parties
in the situations described in the previous points.

In line with the requirements of Art. 1.3 of the Self-Regulatory Code, the offices
of director or auditor held by each director in other companies listed on regula-
ted markets (even foreign), in finance companies, banks, insurance companies or
companies of a significant size, are noted below.

Other activities undertaken by the members of the Board, in accordance with Ar-
ticle 1.3 of the Self-Regulatory Code:

other activities implemented in accordance with article 1.3 of the self-regulatory code

Ernesto Monti

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Finanziaria Tosinvest S.p.A.

Member of the Board of Directors Enertad S.p.A., Fintecna S.p.A. and Finmeccanica S.p.A.

Paolo Astaldi

Chief Executive Officer of Fin.Ast. S.r.l.

Vittorio Di Paola

Caterina Astaldi

Director of Fin.Ast. S.r.l.

Pietro Astaldi

Chief Executive Officer of Fin.Ast. S.r.l.; Director of Finetupar International S.A.

Giuseppe Cafiero

Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors of Italstrade S.p.A.

Luigi Guidobono Cavalchini

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Unicredit Private Banking S.p.A.

Stefano Cerri

Director of Astaldi International Ltd.

Annual Report 2004

Franco A. Grassini Chairman of the Board of Directors of Marche Capital S.p.A. and Medcap Investimenti S.p.A., Director of
Ifitalia S.p.A.

Mario Lupo -

Nicola Oliva -
Vittorio Mele -
Maurizio Poloni -

Role of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors plays a central role within the Company’s organization. It

retains overall responsibility, in fact, for the Company’s strategic and organiza-

tional policy, in addition to ensuring that the necessary controls are in place for
monitoring the performance of the Company and the Group.

In this context, according to the provisions of the Self-Regulatory Code and in

relation to its specific resolutions, the Board of Directors:

— examines and approves the strategic plans of the Company and the corpora-
te structure of the Group;

— assigns and revokes mandates to the Chief Executive Officer, defining the li-
mits and methods of operation, according to Art. 23 of the Company By-
Laws, which also require the appointed bodies to report at least quarterly to
the Board on activities carried out under the mandates;

— decides — on the basis of the proposals formulated by the special Committee
and with the approval of the Board of Auditors — upon the remuneration of
the C.E.O. and the directors holding specific offices;

— oversees general corporate management performance, with particular referen-
ce to conflicts of interest, using information received from the C.E.O. and the
Internal Audit Committee, and periodically verifying the achievement of objec-
tives;

— examines and approves transactions of significant economic, asset or finan-
cial importance, especially if between related parties (see the section on
transactions with correlated parties);



— verifies the suitability of the general organizational and administrative struc-
ture of the Company and the Group as established by the C.E.O.;
- reports to Shareholders at Meetings.
In compliance with the provisions of the By-Laws - according to which Board
Meetings must be held at least every two months — eight Board of Directors
Meetings were held during financial year 2004, with a limited number of absen-
ces, all justified.
In compliance with relevant Stock Market regulations, on November 9th, 2004,
the Board of Directors approved and subsequently notified Borsa Italiana
S.p.A. of the schedule of dates for the upcoming 2005 Board Meetings on the
approval of the financial statements and of the first half results and quarterly
reports.
The Chairman coordinates the Board of Directors’ activities. He convenes and
directs Board Meetings, ensuring that the directors are provided in advance -
except in cases of need and urgency - with all documentation and information
that is necessary for the Board to express an informed opinion on the matters
under examination. He also chairs the Meeting and retains powers of legal
Company representation.
Lastly, the Chairman is not granted management powers.
The powers assigned to Vittorio Di Paola as Executive Deputy Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer, as per the Board’s resolution of April 30th, 2004, in-
clude representation of the Company in Italy and abroad, the administrative, fi-
nancial, technical and economic management of the Company and its branches,
as well as coordination of the subsidiaries; he can also intervene on behalf of
Astaldi in the establishment, modification or winding up of syndicates, coope-
ratives, consortia and other equivalent bodies. He can appoint and remove ma-
nagers, directors, representatives and attorneys. He can also represent the
Company in proceedings and retains the Company signature with regard to all
primary contractual operations.

Appointment of Directors (Article 7 of the Code)

In compliance with Art. 7.1 of the Self-Regulatory Code, Article 16 of the Com-
pany By-Laws requires that proposals for the appointment of a director be lod-
ged with the Company’s registered office — in conjunction with information re-
garding the personal and professional characteristics of candidates — at least
ten days prior to the date set for the General Meeting in first call.

The Board currently holding office has not deemed it necessary to institute a
Committee for the appointment of directors as it is not presently encountering
difficulties in proposing candidates for the coverage of corporate positions.

Remuneration of Directors (Article 8 of the Code)

A significant part of the compensation paid to Astaldi’s directors and executives
consists of emoluments linked to the achievement of fixed individual objectives
and/or the net income results achieved by the Company.

In this respect, on February 28th, 2002, the Board of Directors approved the In-
centive Plan whereby ordinary Company shares - already held by the Company-
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were assigned free of charge (stock grant) to some executive directors and top
managers (9 beneficiaries). Moreover, subject to the achievement of previously de-
fined Company objectives, the plan provides for the annual assignment, through a
three-year cycle, of summary options (20 beneficiaries) — stock appreciation rights
— which will provide a cash payment on the difference between the share price
(calculated as an arithmetical average of the market price in the last month) and
the exercise price; the latter is established by the Board of Directors after consul-
ting with the Remuneration Committee. The value of the options may not exceed
150% of the annual gross remuneration figure.

Lastly, it should be noted that — given the expiration of the three-year validity of

the Plan itself — the Board of Directors has resolved to extend the current Incen-
tive Plan to 2005; this was resolved in the meeting of February 10th, 2005, at the
proposal of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee set up by the Board of Directors on February 5th,
2002 — in compliance with Art. 8 of the Self-Regulatory Code — for the purpose
of managing remuneration and potential stock option and share assignment plans,

s responsible for the following tasks:

- making proposals to the Board, without the presence of the directly concerned
parties, regarding the remuneration of the CEO, and those covering particular
offices, as well as determining the criteria — in line with the CEO’s suggestions
— for the remuneration of Company top executives;

— formulating proposals relating to possible incentive plans reserved for direc-
tors, employees and collaborators;

- making proposals and overseeing that the information provided to shareholders
and the market guarantees the necessary transparency of the mechanisms
used for determining the amount of remuneration for Company representatives
— in compliance with current regulations on Company information and at any
rate in accordance with the financial markets’ best practice;

— providing opinions on the questions posed from time to time by the Board of
Directors on the subject of remuneration or any other inherent or related
matter.

The Remuneration Committee is currently formed of three directors — the majority

of whom non-executive — as shown in the table below:



members of the remuneration committee

Ernesto Monti (Chairman) Non-executive/Independent
Paolo Astaldi Executive
Vittorio Mele Non-executive/Independent

In 2004, three Committee meetings were held in which the Committee carried out

a consultancy role; these concerned the following, in particular:

— definition of the remuneration for the Chairman, Deputy Chairman and Executi-
ve Deputy Chairman and CEO, in accordance with Article 2389, paragraph 3, of
the Italian Civil Code;

— definition of the Company parameters whose achievement determines the as-
signment of the summary options for corporate year 2004;

— definition of the strike price for the summary options for the year 2004;

— proposal to make Marco Toresi a new beneficiary of the Incentive Plan, follo-
wing termination of the working relationship with Andrea Stramacci, former as-
signee of the summary options;

The CEO of the Company attended the meetings as a guest.

Internal Audit System (Articles 9 — 10 of the Code)

The Company’s Internal Audit is headed by the Internal Audit Manager.

The Manager’s role requires participation in all internal organizational Committees

of the Company.

The Internal Audit is allocated within the corporate organizational chart as part of

the CEO’s “staff” for the purpose of bestowing the function with the prerequisites

of independence and authority that are needed to adequately implement the audit

role attributed to it.

The Internal Audit function is implemented on the basis of national and internatio-

nal best practice, and with the objective of implementing all appropriate and ne-

cessary actions for the audit of the corporate processes, including those relating

to policy, monitoring, and the detection of critical elements and opportunities for

improving corporate organization.

Activities are undertaken on the basis of an annual auditing program which is sha-

red with the Internal Audit Committee and Top Management. The results of these

audits are periodically reported to the Internal Audit Committee itself and the

Board of Statutory Auditors, in addition to top management.

The Company’s Internal Audit System also provides for the presence of an Internal

Audit Committee. This Committee, set up by the Board of Directors on February

5th, 2002, implements consulting and proposal-oriented functions with respect to

the Board of Directors; these functions refer to activities of supervision over the

general management of the Company.

In compliance with the requirements of Article 10 of the Self-Regulatory Code, the

Internal Audit Committee performs, in brief, the following tasks:

— assisting the Board in carrying out the tasks required by Art. 9.2 of the Self-Re-
gulatory Code;

— evaluating the work plan prepared by the Internal Audit Manager and receiving
their periodical reports;
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— evaluating — in conjunction with the Company’s administrative managers and
auditors — the adequacy of adopted accounting principles and their uniformity
in the preparation of the consolidated accounts;

— evaluating the proposals formulated by the audit company for the purposes of
securing the appointment, as well as the work plan prepared for the audit and
the results presented in the audit report and in the advisory letter;

— reporting to the Board on the conducted performed, as well as on the adequacy
of internal audit system — at least every six months at the time of approval of
the financial statements and the first half results;

— monitoring the adequacy of the Self-Regulatory Code;

— undertaking the additional duties assigned by the Board of Directors, particu-
larly as regards relations with the audit company.

The Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors, or an auditor appointed by the

latter, may attend Committee meetings.

The shareholders’ meeting of April 30th, 2004 marked the expiration of the three-

year period of appointment, and the administrative body in question was re-elec-

ted. The new Board of Directors — in the meeting of April 30th, 2004 — thus pro-
ceeded with appointing the new members of the Internal Audit Committee.

The Committee currently consists of the following directors:

members of the internal audit committee

Mario Lupo (Chairman)

Non-executive/Independent

Luigi Guidobono Cavalchini

Non-executive/Non-independent

Franco A. Grassini

Non-executive/Independent

Maurizio Poloni

Non-executive/Independent

In the meeting of March 17th, 2004, the voluntary body that was previously in office
completed the activities initiated during 2003, making note of the auditing activity
results for 2003 and relating to the five selected processes; this activity was under-
taken after the audit of corporate procedures, and confirmed a significant improve-
ment in the efficiency and efficacy of the Internal Audit System.

As a result, the newly formed Committee has continued to implement audit activities

and has addressed — in the three subsequent meetings of 2004 and the first mee-

ting on February 22nd, 2005 — various topics, including the following of particular
relevance:

a. examination of the accounting principles that were and are being adopted — in
the presence and in conjunction with the audit company — and any resulting
adjustments to the administrative system for the detection and accounting of
corporate events (new corporate law, IAS/IFRS);

b. evaluation of the existing Internal Audit System and definition of the work plan
for 2004;

c. verification of internal audit activities that were planned and implemented for
2004 (the 2004 audit on two company procedures selected by the Committee and
the update on the risk self-assessment — Risk Assessment Italy and abroad —
through the acknowledgment of the results from the 2002, 2003 and 2004 audits);

d. verification on significantly important subsidiaries and on the certification ob-
tained for the most important of the latter;



e. audit by sampling on certain corporate processes for the purpose of evaluating
the solutions adopted for solving critical areas revealed in the risk self-asses-
sment process, in the audit phase and in compliance with Legislative Decree
no. 231/2001, while verifying the procedures and audits in detail;

f. verification of company activities implemented in relation to the corporate and
tax law reforms, other than those described in point a.;

g. analysis and evaluation of the “Integrated System for Internal Audit” — meant
as the rationalization, integration and coordination of the verification and audit
activities implemented by various corporate functions — and expressing a fa-
vorable opinion on the implementation of the current system through the Inter-
nal Audit.

With reference to additional actions taken to strengthen the governance system, it

should be noted that on March 18th, 2003 the Board of Directors approved the

Company Code of Ethics which establishes general principles and — through rules

of conduct — regulates the activities of employees and collaborators of the Com-

pany and of all companies of the Group, including those concerning relations with

Shareholders, the Public Administration, suppliers, contractors and subcontrac-

tors.

In particular, this Code establishes:

— the reference values and general principles that Astaldi and the companies of
the Group must observe while performing their activities;

— the rules of conduct that Company representatives, managers and structures
must respect when engaging in relations with a number of commercial, entre-
preneurial and financial interlocutors;

— the main methods for implementing the Code itself within the Company’s struc-
ture.

Within the scope of activities related to Legislative Decree no. 231/2001, the Board

of Directors approved the “Model of Organization, Management and Control as per

D. Lgs. 231/2001” on July 2nd, 2003, identifying the corporate areas and activities

that are potentially at risk in relation to the different offences provided for by the

aforementioned decree, and aiming at safeguarding the Company in the case of of-
fences pursuant to Legislative Decree no. 231/2001 committed by the Company’s
directors, employees and collaborators. In particular, the Model defines:

— the ethical principles relating to conduct that can contribute to the cases of
crime provided for by the aforementioned decree;

— any “sensitive” company activities, i.e. those in which — by their very nature —
the crimes pursuant to Legislative Decree no. 231/2001 may be committed, and
therefore which must be examined and monitored;

— procedures for the management of financial resources allocated for the preven-
tion of crimes;

— the rules for the identification of the Supervisory Body and the allocation of
specific duties for monitoring the correct function of the Model;

— the information flows directed to the Supervisory Body;

— activities for information, awareness, and the spread of established rules of
conduct and procedures at all levels of the Company;

— responsibilities relating to the approval, integration, modification and assimila-
tion of the Model, in addition to verification of the latter’s function and of cor-
porate behaviors, with periodical updates.
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It should be noted in connection with the above that the “Company Code of Ethics”

and the “Model of Organization, Management and Control as per D. Lgs. 231/2001”

have been updated in order to adapt them to current regulations and for the purpo-

se of regulating information flows towards the Supervisory Body, in addition to ack-
nowledging the activities implemented within the Group and related to Legislative

Decree no. 231/2001.

In order to prevent the risks/crimes provided for by Legislative Decree no. 231/2001,

the C.E.O. has appointed — with a communication notice on June 9th, 2003 — the

members of the Supervisory Body who possess the prerequisites required by the ci-
ted provision: autonomy, independence and professionalism. These include: Mr. Mau-
rizio Poloni, a non-executive/independent member of the Board of Directors, and Mr.

Marco Annoni, Mr. Giorgio Luceri and Ms. Nicoletta Mincato — the latter appointed

as Chairman of the Supervisory Body — as experts from outside the Company.

The Body drafted Regulations for itself (which, among other items, sets a minimum

monthly frequency for its meetings) and has been established as a top staff unit re-

porting directly to the CEO.

The Body relies on an Internal Audit Manager for the implementation of its activi-

ties and for the execution of its decisions within the affected corporate structures.

During the course of 2004, the activity of the Supervisory Body — aimed at moni-

toring the function and compliance with the “Model of Organization, Management

and Control as per D. Lgs. no. 231/2001” — thus continued, meeting twelve times
and implementing the following activities, in brief:

— examination of the organizational protocols related to the risks/crimes provided
for by Legislative Decree no. 231/2001, with the aid and collaboration of the
process owners of reference for each protocol;

— identification of corrective actions for the resolution of critical issues emerging
during the examination of the protocols, and verification of their actual imple-
mentation by Company structures;

— confirmation of the results of the audit activity for 2003 in view of a synergy
with the same activity undertaken by mandate of the Internal Audit Committee;

— verification of the proper function of the organizational Model in compliance
with established behavioral rules and procedures;

— training and awareness activities for personnel operating both in Italy and
abroad for the purposes of preventing crimes; this activity is undertaken with
the aid of the Internal Audit Manager and the Personnel Management, as well
as through the publication of an interactive CD-ROM on the company intranet
which explains the administrative responsibility of the entities and the special
part of the Model, combined with the organizational protocols that were re-de-
fined after adopting the instructions of the Supervisory Body.

— the adoption of adequate tools for starting an extensive activity to monitor the
actual application of the protocols by corporate structures.

Transactions with related parties (Art. 11 of the Code)

Regarding the structure of mandates within the Board of Directors, its compliance
with the recommendations of the Self-Regulatory Code can be confirmed for 2004;
this compliance was already verified, with positive results, at the Board Meeting of
April 23rd, 2002.



With particular reference to relations with correlated parties, the Board of Direc-
tors of Astaldi — during the above meeting — resolved to reserve, under its own
exclusive competence, the approval of:

— all transactions between Astaldi and related parties other than subsidiary and
associated companies (so-called “related third parties”);

— all transactions between Astaldi and subsidiaries other than project-specific
companies — i.e. companies and other legal entities created for the execution
of specific contracts — whenever the value of these exceeds 4 million Euro per
transaction.

The Board of Directors also resolved that the C.E.O. must report to the Board at
least once every three months on unusual or atypical transactions — i.e. those not
directly intended for the execution of individual contracts and which are not of a
temporary nature — between Astaldi and project-specific companies, of a value
exceeding 5 million Euro per transaction. With regard to unusual and/or atypical
transactions of lower value, the Board itself resolved that the C.E.O. must provide
this information with the same frequency, summarized by type of transaction and
in consolidated form.

Lastly, in the analysis of transactions with related parties, the Company complies

with the provisions of Art. 11 of the Self-Regulatory Code, paying particular at-

tention to the removal of the director with an interest in said transactions, and

the recourse to independent experts in the case of transactions of particular im-

portance.

Treatment of confidential information (Art. 6 of the Code)

For the purpose of guaranteeing proper internal management and timely external
communication of any important fact occurring within the scope of the activities of
the Company and its subsidiaries which could, at least potentially, significantly in-
fluence the price of the Company’s shares (so-called price sensitive information),
Astaldi makes use of its internal “Continuous information” procedure approved by
the Board of Directors in the Meeting of November 12th, 2002.

In brief, this procedure identifies the timing and methods within the Company that
are needed for the distribution and disclosure of such information, as well as the in-
volvement of the functions affected in each case. This ensures that the resources
that most come into contact with the above-mentioned information act as a link bet-
ween their own area of responsibility and top management, allowing for an adequa-
te evaluation of these facts or issues.

It is also planned — as a successive step — that a special Evaluation Committee
(formed by General & Corporate Affairs, the Investor Relator and the affected ma-
nagement) will be involved for the purpose of providing adequate support in the
proper interpretation of the regulations regarding the sector, and for the concrete
formulation and disclosure of the communication notices in question.

For the purpose of compliance with the provisions of Art. 2.6.3 of the Regulations
for the markets organized and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A., it should be no-
ted that the “Code of conducts with regard to insider dealing” is currently effecti-
ve within Astaldi.

The Code requires so-called “significant persons” to report to the General & Cor-
porate Affairs with regard to transactions on Astaldi shares that exceed given
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amounts within a fixed period of time so that appropriate disclosures can be ma-

de to the market, and with the timing and methods provided for by the Code.

In short, for the above purposes, the Code requires significant persons to notify

the General & Corporate Affairs:

— within three stock market trading days from the end of the reference calendar
quarter, with regard to transactions on Astaldi shares whose value, individually
or cumulatively, exceeds 25,000 Euro;

— promptly, and in any case within one stock market trading day following the day
of execution, with regard to transactions on Astaldi shares whose value is indi-
vidually or cumulatively more than 125,000 Euro.

The Code also establishes so-called close periods — i.e. periods of time that are

close to events of particular importance — in which significant persons may not

perform transactions on Company shares.

In particular, these periods are identified as follows:

— the 30 days prior to communication to the public of the consolidated financial
statements, the draft financial statements and the fist half results;

— the 15 days prior to communication of the quarterly report to the public;

— the 15 days prior to the issue of the first price sensitive communication notice
and concerning potential transactions such as: public takeover bids made by
the Company or on its financial instruments; mergers, spin-offs or acquisitions
of which Astaldi is a part; and any other extraordinary transaction capable of
affecting the price of the Company’s financial instruments.

Relations with institutional investors and shareholders (Arti-
cles 12-13 of the Code)

As of 2002, the Company — also in the light of admission to listing on the STAR
sector of the Milan Stock Exchange — had appointed Alessandra Onorati as the
person responsible for investor relations (Investor Relator).

According to Art. 13 of the Company By-Laws, whereby “The course of the ordi-
nary and extraordinary General Meeting is governed by regulations, approved by
the Ordinary Meeting and valid for all subsequent meetings, until amended or re-
placed”- the Ordinary General Meeting of March 11th, 2002 approved the Meeting
Regulations which establish clear and unambiguous rules for the orderly and func-
tional course of Meetings, without prejudicing the right of shareholders to express
their own opinions and put forward requests for explanations and clarifications re-
garding the matters under discussion.

The Board of Directors in office has not deemed it necessary to present the Mee-
ting with proposals on reducing the thresholds required by law in implement ac-
tions and to exercise the rights put in place for the protection of minority share-
holders.

Moreover, for the purpose of encouraging dialogue with Shareholders and the mar-
ket, the Company regularly publishes information on its web site, both of an ac-
counting nature (financial statements, first half results and quarterly reports) and
that of interest to the majority of shareholders (such as press releases, the Com-
pany Code of Ethics, the Model of Organization, Management and Control as per
D. Lgs. 231/2001, the Code of Conducts with regard to insider dealing, Directors’
Reports on Agenda items of the Meetings, etc.).



Auditors (Article 14 of the Code)

The Board of Statutory Auditors currently in office is composed of the following
members:

members of the board of auditors

Eugenio Pinto Chairman
Pierpaolo Singer Statutory auditor
Pierumberto Spano(*) Statutory auditor
Antonio Sisca Acting auditor
Maurizio Lauri(*) Acting auditor
Marco Zampano (**) Acting auditor

(*) auditor appointed through the lists submitted by the minority shareholders.
(**) auditor appointed on April 30th, 2004.

The By-Laws — in compliance with the provisions of Legislative Decree no. 58/98 —
provide for the “list vote” mechanism in order to ensure the presence of representati-
ves of minority shareholders within the Board of Statutory Auditors.

By express provision of the By-Laws, the lists, together with information on the per-
sonal and professional characteristics of the candidates, must be deposited at the
Company’s registered office at least 10 days before the date set for the Meeting in
first call. In conjunction with each list and by the same deadline, the candidate state-
ments must be lodged; in these statements, the candidates accept their candidacy
and attest, upon their own responsibility, to the non-existence of causes of ineligibi-
lity and incompatibility, as well as the existence of the requirements by law to hold the
office of Auditor.

Each Shareholder may present or run for the presentation of a single list, and each
candidate may be appear on one list only, under penalty of ineligibility.

Those who are statutory auditors in more than four companies listed on the ltalian
stock markets may not be appointed as auditors.

Only shareholders who — alone or together with other shareholders — represent at least
2% of shares and have voting rights in the Ordinary Meeting are entitled to present lists.
Finally, noted below are the additional offices held by the auditors of Astaldi, limited
to those of director or auditor in other companies listed on the Italian Stock Markets:

additional offices held by the auditors

Eugenio Pinto (Chairman) Statutory auditor of Mediobanca S.p.A.

Pierpaolo Singer -

Pierumberto Spano(*) Statutory auditor of Snam Rete Gas S.p.A.

Antonio Sisca -

Maurizio Lauri Statutory auditor of Acea S.p.A.

Marco Zampano -

Incentive plan

With the resolutions of February 5th, 2002 and February 28th, 2002 respectively,
the Board of Directors of Astaldi approved the guidelines for an Incentive Plan up-
dated in the Board meeting of February 10th, 2005.
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The Incentive Plan provided for the assignment, free of charge, of 756,000 own
shares which were in the Company portfolio at the time. The assignment of the
stock grants was completed on May 14th, 2002.

According to the regulations of the Incentive Plan, the Company’s own shares that
are assigned free of charge cannot be transferred — except for mortis causa — for
a period of three years from the date of assignment. If the assignee’s work or col-
laboration relationship is terminated before the three-year period due to the assi-
gnee’s unjustified conduct (justified dismissal, resignation for unjust cause, etc.),
the Company has the right to purchase the shares held by the manager at a price
equal to the par value of the stock.

The Incentive Plan also provides for the annual assignment — free of charge — of
summary options (which grant the right to a remuneration payment but not the ac-
quisition of shares) for the CEO, top management, and a restricted number of au-
tonomous and continuous collaborators of the Group. The modes of assignment
and regulation of summary options are described in detail in the section, “Remu-
neration for Directors (Article 8 of the Code)”, in the Report on Corporate Gover-
nance Model, which should be referred to.



Shares held by directors, auditors and general
managers

In compliance with the provisions of Art. 79 of CONSOB (Italy’s Securities and Ex-
change Commission) resolution no. 11971/1999 — subsequently amended with re-
solution no. 12475/2000 — the following table lists the shares held — directly or
through intermediaries — by directors, auditors and general managers, as well as
non-legally-separated spouses and minor children; these data are derived from the
Shareholders’ register, received communications and information acquired from
the directors, auditors and general managers themselves.

All persons who held offices during the course of financial year 2004, even for
parts of the year, are included.

shares held by directors, auditors and general managers

no. of shares no. of
held at the end purchased
of 2003 shares

Ernesto Monti — _

no. of
sold

shares

Paolo Astaldi Astaldi S.p.A. 21,000 10,000

25,000

6,000

Vittorio Di Paola Astaldi S.p.A. 2,203,000 10,000

10,000

2,203,000

Caterina Astaldi - _

Pietro Astaldi -

Giuseppe Cafiero Astaldi S.p.A. - 10,000

Luigi Guidobono Cavalchini - _

Stefano Cerri - -

Franco A. Grassini — _

Mario Lupo - -

Vittorio Mele - -

Nicola Oliva Astaldi S.p.A. 800 -

Maurizio Poloni - _

Enrico De Cecco (¥) - -

Bruno Lecchi (*) - -

Lucio Mariani (*) Astaldi S.p.A. 9,300 -

Giuseppe Marino (*) — _

Roberto Marraffa (*) - -

Nicoletta Mincato (*) - -

Eugenio Pinto _ _

Pierpaolo Singer - -

Pierumberto Spano - -

(*) Directors in charge at 30 April 2004.
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Adoption of international accounting principles

Reported here is the information required by CONSOB communication notice
no. 501517 of March 10th, 2005.

Following the introduction of EU Regulation no. 1606/2002, effective as of Ja-
nuary 2005, companies listed on the European stock markets are required to
adopt the International Accounting Principles for drawing up consolidated fi-
nancial statements and consolidated interim reports.

For this purpose, a work group was formed to identify the areas of interven-
tion and the methods of transition to the new standards, as well as the areas
within the accounting booking and reporting system that need to be conver-
ted; its aim is also to define the operating guidelines for the new methods of
accounting and representing administrative facts in the financial statements.
The procedures for the transition to international accounting principles have
yet to be completed. Completion is expected during the first half of 2005.

Events after the close of the financial year

As previously mentioned, BNP Paribas was repaid on February 9th, 2005 -
through the subsidiary Astaldi Finance S.A. — for the 150 million Euro deben-
ture loan which was followed by the payment to the underwriters on February
11th, 2005. In this regard, it should be noted that on January 27th the 100
million Euro bank financing contract became fully operational; undersigned by
a pool of leading Italian (European) bank corporations, it is repayable in five
years with bi-annual installments, thereby allowing the Group to align the du-
ration of its financial sources with the average life of the contracts.

The important organizational and commercial effort in Algeria led to the deli-
very of the Kramis dam in January 2005 on behalf of the Group, in full respect
of the contractual period and to the Client’s complete satisfaction. In the
month of January 2005, Astaldi — as part of a grouping of firms — was also
temporarily awarded the contract for works on the aqueduct between the ci-
ties of Akbou and Bejaia. The total value of this contract is approximately 114
million Euro.

Astaldi was also temporarily awarded the contract for the construction of the
Parma-La Spezia railway track doubling for the stretch linking the Solignano
station to the Osteriazza-Parma point of manoeuvre. The contract is valuated
at approximately 165 million Euro.

The Company was also admitted to the pre-qualification phase of the tender
called by Anas S.p.A. for the design, construction and modernization of about
18.2 km. of the Salerno-Reggio Calabria Highway and relating to the stretch
between Altilia and Falerna in the province of Catanzaro. The contract has an
overall valuation of approximately 337 million Euro, and requires a 10-20%
pre-financing share for the General Contractor. Astaldi’s quota in this initiati-
ve is equal to 90%. The deadline of the next phase for the presentation of
bids is set for late February 2005.

As regards major contracts in Italy, Astaldi — as the leading General Con-
tractor in a grouping of firms — presented a bid in January 2005 for the de-
sign and construction of the second phase of the Turin Railway Hub. This ten-



der — initiated by Italferr S.p.A. — provides for the assignment of works for
the completion and expansion of the railway stretch between Corso Vittorio
Emanuele Il and Corso Grosseto, including the construction of a sub-crossing
of the river Dora Riparia. The base value of the tender is equal to approxima-
tely 617 million Euro. It is important to note that this contract represents the
completion of the first phase of the entire railway project which is currently
being completed by Astaldi. The potential acquisition of the contract would
allow significant operational efficiency to be obtained.

As regards the tender for the assignment of the Asti-Cuneo highway conces-
sion, and the one relating to the concession for the re-qualification and sub-
sequent management of the “Niguarda Ca Grande” Hospital in Milan, it should
be noted that the outcomes of both of the tenders were made known in the
first part of 2005 and concluded with the assignment of these concessions to
third parties. The Group had presented bids for these tenders in December
and October of 2004, respectively.

Finally, it should be noted that the Company’s Board of Directors — on Fe-
bruary 28th, 2005 — had resolved, in brief, to:
1) present a proposal to Impregilo S.p.A. — within the context of the debt

restructuring of the latter and the recovery of its financial and economic
asset structure — with the aim of undersigning an increase in the ordinary
share capital of Impregilo S.p.A. for a share not below 30.01%. The pro-
posal is made on the condition that this acquisition retain characteristics
and modalities so as to not contribute to an obligation for the presenta-
tion of a public take-over bid, in accordance with Articles 102 et seq. of
Legislative Decree no. 58/98. This will involve a maximum investment of
250 million Euro, collectable both through an Astaldi S.p.A. share capital
increase and through a medium-to-long-term bank indebtedness.

2) present a proposal to Gemina S.p.A. for regulating the intervention regar-
ding Gemina S.p.A. — as the current reference shareholder of Impregilo
S.p.A. — within the context of Impregilo S.p.A.’s potential ordinary share
capital increase, which must total approximately 600 million Euro, as well
as a syndicate agreement referring to the governance and strategic direc-
tion of Impregilo S.p.A., in line with the overall industrial plan and in or-
der to stabilize the company’s owned assets, as well to define its gover-
nance rules.

Following the meeting of March 17th, 2005, and after evaluating the outcomes of

numerous meetings with Impregilo S.p.A. and Gemina S.p.A. while assisted by the

respective Advisors, in addition to evaluating the results of the due diligence con-
ducted on Impregilo S.p.A., the Board decided not to proceed further in the pro-

posal formulated to the Company for intervention in Impregilo S.p.A.
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Management forecast

The strategy that was previously identified and pursued during the course of the
last few years will be even more effective in execution because of the Group’s fo-
cus on contracts of greater value and of more complex technical, legal and mana-
gerial content, thereby making Astaldi a leading firm within the General Contrac-
tors market in Italy. In this realm, the effects of the so-called Legge Obiettivo will
begin to have important repercussions over the course of the next few years.

In the realm of project financing activities, the Company will consolidate its role as
the market leader of reference in such sectors as healthcare and underground
systems in which great technical/operational skill and financial capacity are the se-
lective elements of the market. For this purpose, it should be noted that Astaldi
serves as sponsor of the Milan underground Line 5 project and of the Appia Anti-
ca Underpass in Rome; the Group awaits the final outcomes on these projects.
Prospects for future years include further growth of the Group — from a technical,
qualitative and economic/financial perspective. This will occur by strengthening
the company’s national leadership role, as well as through the growth of activities
in those foreign areas in which the company operates with stability and considera-
ble success.



Conclusions

Shareholders, the consolidated financial statements show a net profit of 28 million
Euro after amortization, provisions and consolidation adjustments.

For the Board Of Directors
The Chairman
(Ernesto Monti)

e P — o P

Management Report on the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ASSETS
2003
A) Subscribed capital unpaid - -
B) Fixed assets
I Intangible assets
1) Formation and expansion expenses 3,279,036 5,654,181
3) Patents and rights to use patents of others 990,647 1,285,574
4) Concessions, licenses, trademarks and similar rights 29,162 29,162
5) Goodwill - 160,000
7) Other
a) Construction site installation costs 14,042,210 10,867,759
b) Cost of preparing tenders 2,139,190 379,060
c) Others 29,417,124 33,815,553
Total other 45,598,524 45,062,372
Total | - Intangible assets 49,897,369 52,191,289
Il Tangible assets
1) Land and buildings 23,982,464 24,908,951
2) Plant and machinery
a) Specific plants 26,647,038 27,725,302
b) General plants 11,076,363 11,327,729
c) Crafts 846 349
Total plant and machinery 37,724,247 39,053,380
3) Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment
a) Excavators, power shovels, heavy vehicles 23,743,254 28,382,783
b) Light vehicles, ships, planes 2,919,983 3,427,132
c) Various small equipment 1,410,041 1,446,429
d) Light constructions 3,213,595 2,053,667
e) Metal sheet pile and shuttering 1,845,595 1,705,630
T?tal Eools, fittings,fixtures and other equipment 33,132,468 37,015,641
4) Other
a) Electronic office equipment 1,202,587 1,232,640
b) Furniture, fittings and office equipment 1,402,683 1,477,676
c) Freely transferable assets 2,641,076 2,351,713
Total other 5,246,346 5,062,029
5) Tangible assests in course of construction and
payments on account 2,252,225 278,264
Total Il — Tangible Assets 102,337,750 106,318,265
11 Investments
1) Equity investments in
a) Subsidiaries 6,513,116 8,658,095
b) Associated companies 17,241,333 17,091,831
c) Other companies 2,564,801 2,611,564
Total Investments 26,319,250 28,361,490
2) Loans and long-term receivables from
a) Subsidiaries 2,089,300 2,311,109
b) Associated Companies 9,536,797 9,890,181
c) Other equity investments 1,618,318 1,709,673
d) Other entities
Within the next financial year 23,368,410 16,282,639
Beyond the next financial year 45,169,839 53,570,808
Total loans from other entities 68,538,249 69,853,447
Total loans and long-term receivables 81,782,664 83,764,410
4) Own shares (Comprehensive nominal amount Euro 400,000) 897,558 2,385,184
Total Il — Investments 108,999,472 114,511,084
Total fixed assets B) 273,020,638
C) Current assets
I Inventories
1) Raw materials and consumables 32,840,071 39,190,223
2) Products in progress and semi-finished products 1,674,438 -
3) Contracts in progress 192,752,107 187,372,548
4) Finished goods and goods for resale 404,314 659,468
6) Assets and materials in transit 7,912,758 1,466,799
Total | — Inventories 235,583,688 228,689,038
Il Debtors
1) Trade debtors
Within the next financial year 313,355,231 276,245,199
Beyond the next financial year 17,621 3,499,881
Total trade debtors 313,372,852 279,745,080
2) Subsidiaries 31,996,813 31,631,187
3) Associated companies 26,649,009 37,563,408
4) Parent companies 33,296 19,756
4-bis) Tax debtors
Within the next financial year 42,812,195 31,320,805
Beyond the next financial year 2,384,410 18,478,450
Total Tax debtors 45,196,605 49,799,255
4-ter) Deferred Taxes 13,982,943 15,752,740
5) Other debtors
a) Personnel 902,046 953,725
b) Social Security institutions 646,858 782,507
c) Deposits
Within the next financial year 37,295 70,705
Beyond the next financial year 933,732 937,302
Total deposits 971,027 1,008,007
d) Amounts due to equity investements 3,991,835 29,821
e) Other receivables 67,069,674 60,611,615
Total other debtors 73,581,440 63,685,675
Total Il — Debtors 504,812,958 478,197,101
Il Investments which are not permanent
6) Other investments 28,641,013 3,166,899
Total Il - Investments which are not permanent 28,641,013 3,166,899
IV Cash at bank and in hand
1) Bank and postal current account 172,957,763 149,622,621
2) Bank cheques 1,559,238 -
3) Cash on hand 322,486 360,499
Total IV - Cash at bank and in hand 174,839,487 149,983,120
Total current assets C) 860,036,158
D) Prepayments and accrued income
1) Issue premium 41,833 543,833
2) Prepayments and accrued income 10,896,718 8,545,299
Total prepayments and accrued income D 9,089,132

TOTAL ASSETS 1,216,050,288

1,142,145,928



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

LIABILITIES

: 2003
A) Equity
| Subscribed capital 98,424,900 98,424,900
Il Share premium reserve 67,836,096 67,836,096
Il Revaluation reserves 236,369 236,369
IV Legal reserve 7,818,668 7,217,824
V Statutory reserves - -
VI Reserve for own shares 897,558 2,385,184
VIl Other reserves
1) Conversion reserve or loss (22,002,296) (18,594,035)
2) Extraordinary reserve 26,741,363 21,675,196
3) Reserve for specific risks 798,334 798,334
4) Reserve for own shares purchasing 23,702,442 22,214,816
5) Euro conversion difference (2,271) (2,271)
Total other reserves 29,237,572 26,092,040
VIl Profit (loss) carried forward 11,632,259 2,535,208
IX Profit (loss) for the financial period 27,607,042 22,394,581
Total Consolidated Group Equity 243,690,464 227,122,202
Minority interests (416,492) 375,615
Minority interests profit (loss) for the financial period 507,801 (217,326)
Total Equity A) 227,280,491
B) Provisions for risks and charges
2) For taxes 900,590 1,435,296
3) Other
a) for contractual risk 41,177,430 51,599,382
b) for losses on equity investments 27,703,480 11,748,181
c) art 27 company's statue reserve 127,552 37,426
Total other provisions 69,008,462 63,384,989
Total provisions for risks and charges B) 64,820,285
C) Employee severance indemnity 12,189,086
D) Creditors
1) Debenture loans
Within the next financial year 150,000,000 -
Beyond the next financial year - 150,000,000
Total debenture loans 150,000,000 150,000,000
4) Amounts due to banks
Within the next financial year 146,180,312 100,347,156
Beyond the next financial year 69,307,852 75,071,572
Total amounts due to banks 215,488,164 175,418,728
5) Amounts due to other financiers
Within the next financial year 4,657,008 4,870,641
Beyond the next financial year 17,339,421 21,026,860
Total amounts due to other financiers 21,996,429 25,897,501
6) Advances received
Within the next financial year 29,252,431 48,046,899
Beyond the next financial year 89,650,597 99,262,337
Total advances received 118,903,028 147,309,236
7) Trade payables
Within the next financial year 220,054,205 188,214,288
Beyond the next financial year 8,922,624 8,184,958
Total amounts to suppliers 228,976,829 196,399,246
9) Amounts due to subsidiaries 18,495,116 19,471,307
10) Amounts due to Associated companies 77,702,574 60,669,962
12) Amounts due to tax administrations 14,438,302 21,670,170
13) Amounts due to Social Security Insitutions 3,924,068 4,684,402
14) Other creditors
a) Other entity interests 3,757,791 4,995,124
b) Deposits and caution
Beyond the next financial year 19,616 22,229
c) Personnel 6,141,161 4,506,350
d) Other 19,102,917 15,968,197
Total other creditors 29,021,485 25,491,900
Total creditors D) 827,012,452
E) Accruals and deferred income 10,843,614

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,216,050,288

MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS

2003

A) Personal guarantees
1) Guarantees for credit lines

a) For Subsidiaries 42,040,534

b) For Associated companies 44,316,608

c) For Third parties 17,481,572
Total guarantees for credit lines 103,838,714
2) Guarantees for works

a) For Subsidiaries 229,536,306

b) For Associated companies 571,216,662

c) For Third parties 400,368,048
Total guarantees for works 1,201,121,016
3) Other guarantees 88,184,296

Total personal guarantees A)

1,142,145,928

52,551,470
60,251,822
20,686,142
133,489,434

369,607,286
641,353,544
431,526,145
1,442,486,975
119,830,098
1,695,806,507

B) Other off-balance sheet accounts

1) Risk of recourse from factors 79,573,420 86,168,416
2) Other 30,381,213 29,659,679
Total other off-balance sheet accounts 115,828,095
C) Third party guarantees in our favour 22,189,375

TOTAL MEMORANDUM ACCOUNTS 1,528,165,035

1,833,823,977

Consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

2003
A) Value of production
1) Net turnover from sales and services
a) from contracts 797,874,215 778,559,800
2) Variations in inventories for works in progress,
semi-finished goods, raw materials 1,674,438 -
3) Variation in contracts in progress 189,800,280 91,585,117
4) Work performed for own purposes and capitalised 8,044,363 8,021,370
5) Other revenues 51,682,330 44,618,678
Total value of production A) 922,784,965
B) Cost of production
6) For raw materials, consumables and other goods 166,790,431 163,443,272
7) For services 611,664,882 502,101,895
8) For use of assets owned by others 10,389,387 12,873,914
9) For personnel
a) Wages and salaries 93,719,074 87,887,070
b) Social security charges 19,262,432 18,898,156
c) Provision for severance indemnities 5,146,447 4,764,694
e) Other costs relating to staff 10,895,306 11,315,383
Total personnel 129,023,259 122,865,303
10) Amortisation, depreciation and write-down
a) Amortisation of intangible assets 24,463,026 26,936,562
b) Depreciation of tangible assets 20,859,240 18,756,380
d) Allowance for doubtful debtors included in current assets
and other accounts included in cash at bank and in hand 3,100,000 200,000
Total cost for amortisation, depreciation and write-down 48,422,266 45,892,942
11) Variations in inventories of raw materials, consumables
and goods for resale 4,206,145 (5,524,385)
12) Risk allowances
a) Provision for risks 32,226,728 32,984,879
b) Utilisations for risks (42,655,185) (32,010,707)
Total provision for risks (utilisations) (10,428,457) 974,172
14) Other operating charges 14,455,914 13,714,463
Total cost of production B) 856,341,576
Difference between value and cost of production (A-B) 74,551,799 66,443,389
C) Financial income and charges
15) Income from equity investments
a) from Subsidiaries 740,994 2,877,575
b) from Associated companies 4,848 1,012
c) from other equity investements - 7,558
Total income from equity investments 745,842 2,886,145
16) Other financial income
1) to other for other financial income 26,822,480 15,742,030
17) Interest charges and similar charges
1) from others for other financial charges 40,669,262 40,034,418
17 bis) Profit (loss) on exchange
a) exchange profit 8,038,812 6,599,420
b) exchange loss (13,144,955) (11,133,518)
Total exchange profit (loss) (5,106,143) (4,534,098)
Total (15+16-17) (25,940,341)
D) Value adjustments in respect of investments
18) Revaluation
a) of equity investments 994,712 2,681,531
c) of shares recorded under the current liabilities 1,543,535 190,239
19) Write-down
a) of equity investments 4,695,385 7,839,625
b) of shares recorded under the current liabilities 8,634,694 1,517,548
Total adjustments (18 - 19) (6,485,403)
E) Extraordinary income and charges
20) Income
a) other income 8,221,882 8,158,151
21) Charges
a) taxation of previous years 1,488,091 1,868,671
b) other charges 11,286,230 11,271,444
Total extraordinary charges 12,774,321 13,140,115
Total extraordinary charges (20-21) (4,552,439) (4,981,964)
Profit (loss) before income taxes (A-B+C+D+E) 29,035,681
22) Income taxes on the income of the period
a) Current tax 11,525,607 14,994,090
b) Deferred tax assets 1,359,995 (8,135,664)
Total taxes 12,885,604 6,858,426
23) Profit or loss of the period
a) consolidated 28,114,843 22,177,255
b) minority interests profit/loss for the period
(profit)/ loss (507,801) 217,326
26) Group profit (loss) of the period 27,607,042 22,394,581



Total revenues

value of production

Italy

Other

revenues
contract revenues — Italy 497
contract revenues — abroad 492
other revenues 60
total

Abroad

contract revenues by geographical area

Italy
Asia

Africa
Italy 497
Europe 197

America —_— America 193
Africa 74
Asia 28
total

Europe
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Basis of presentation

Astaldi S.p.A. has prepared the consolidated accounts in accordance with the
principles provided for in Law Decree no. 127/91 which enacts the VII EEC Direc-
tive, in addition to subsequent amendments created by Legislative Decree n. 6 of
January 17th, 2003.

The accounts are complete with the table of applied exchange rates, the scope of
consolidation, the list of non-consolidated companies, the schedule of movements
in the net consolidated shareholders’ equity account items, the schedule of rela-
tions between the parent company accounts and the consolidated accounts and
the cashflow statement.

It should be noted that the reference date for the consolidated accounts coincides
with the end of the financial year for the Parent Company Astaldi S.p.A. and for the
majority of subsidiaries included in the scope of consolidation.

The accounts of the latter have been appropriately re-classified and adjusted to
comply with the accounting principles and valuation criteria of the parent compa-
ny. In the case that the financial year for the consolidated companies does not co-
incide with the calendar year, interim accounts reflecting the conventional Group
financial year have been prepared by the Directors.

Moreover, in certain cases, balance sheet and profit and loss items of the previous
financial year have been reclassified for the purposes of better representation;
this is reported in the notes that follow. Credits and debits with subsidiary, asso-
ciated and other companies that are attributable — in significant amounts — to re-
lations with consortia-type companies have been reported at net values and with
reference to the prevailing amount for each individual counterpart.

In the paragraph relative to related parties, the gross amounts of credits and deb-
its are provided with respect to the abovementioned entities.

All the amounts reported in the explanatory note are expressed in thousands of
Euro unless otherwise stated.

According to the art. 16 of the Law Decree 213/1998 and art. 2423, sub-section
5, of the Italian Civil Code, the balance sheet and the profit and loss accounts are
drawn up in Euro as their currency unit.

With regards to the nature of the company’s activities, the main events occurring
after the closing of the financial year, and the information concerning the various
activity sectors or geographical areas in which the company operates, please refer
to the management report.

Consolidation principles

The adopted consolidation principles are the following:

a) The accounting value of the shareholdings held by the Parent Company within the
scope of consolidation have been written-off against the Shareholders’ equity of
the consolidated companies by assuming the assets and liabilities of the latter;

b) Any increased value paid with respect to the book value of the Shareholders’
equity of the shareholding at the date of the purchase is attributed to the indi-
vidual items in assets and liabilities to which this increased value refers;



c) Any remaining positive difference is recorded under the item Consolidation Dif-
ferences; any remaining negative difference is accounted for in the Consolida-
tion Reserve for Risks and Future Charges to cover estimated future losses, or
is deducted — up until the value is reached — from the Consolidation Reserve
included in shareholders’ equity;

d) The balance of the results is entered under the item Profit (losses) carried for-
ward;

e) Debit, credit, costs and revenue entries, as well as collected dividends, allo-
cated losses and any other transactions between the companies included in the
scope of consolidation have been eliminated;

f) Shareholders’ equity quotas and the net income for the financial period per-
taining to third party shareholders are recorded under an appropriate item in
shareholders’ equity and the profit and loss account. In addition, in the case of
losses incurred by companies included in the scope of consolidation, and in
which there are minority shareholders, the portion of loss attributed to the lat-
ter does not exceed their relative shareholders’ equity with the exception of
cases where a commitment to cover the losses has been obtained by the same
minority shareholders.

The accounts for foreign consolidated companies and stable foreign organiza-

tions (the accounting of which is carried out using a multi-currency system) are

converted into Euros, in accordance with the following criteria:

- Assets and liabilities at the exchange rate as at the date of the financial
statements;

— Profit and loss account items are posted by applying the average exchange
rate for the year;

- Shareholders’ equity components are translated at historical exchange rates.

Exchange rate differences deriving from the translation of Shareholders’ equity

at historical exchange rates with respect to year end exchange rates, including

the difference resulting from the translation of net income for the period using
the yearly average exchange rate, are directly ascribed to Shareholders’ equity
in the entry, “Conversion reserve or loss”.

Scope of consolidation

The scope of consolidation, in addition to the Parent Company Astaldi S.p.A.,

comprises:

a) Companies or other legal entities in which the Parent Company owns, either di-
rectly or indirectly, 50% of the company share capital or in which it exercises
overall control; these companies are consolidated using the line-by-line
method,;

b) Companies or other legal entities in which the Parent Company exercises joint
control with other Shareholders; these companies are consolidated using the
proportional integration method.

For the purposes of consolidation, the accounts approved by the General Meeting

of Shareholders or partners or, in the absence of the latter, accounting forecasts

approved by the board of directors, have been used.

Controlling shareholdings in consortia and joint venture companies which — after

redebiting the costs to partners — do not have their own profit and loss results,

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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and for which the relative accounts — after the elimination of intragroup assets
and liabilities — do not present a significant net worth, have been excluded from
the scope of consolidation.

Accounting principles and valuation policies

The accounting principles and evaluation policies comply with the provisions of

Art. 2426 of the Italian Civil Code and reflect those provided for by the National

Council of Professional Accountants and Bookkeepers; these principles are con-

sistent with those of the prior year.

These valuation policies are not separate from those used in drafting the financial

statements of the previous year and are integrated with the new criteria provided

for by Legislative Decree n. 6 of January 17th, 2003 and subsequent amendments.

Furthermore, for the purposes of better representation of the capital asset and fi-

nancial position of the Company, the following is noted:

a) Leased assets, in the absence of a specific Italian accounting principle, have
been accounted for in accordance with [.A.S. accounting principle no.17, which
provides for:

— recording of the cost of the asset in fixed assets, with the resulting depre-
ciation;

— reporting of the financial debt to the grantor, with the relative accounting of
financial charges;

b) Accounts receivable transferred with recourse have been removed from the
balance sheet while highlighting the level of risk of recourse in the memoran-
dum accounts.

There have been no departures with respect to Articles 2423 and 2423 bis of the

Italian Civil Code.

It should also be noted that the items represented by Arabic numerals and which do

not show a balance in the current and the previous financial year have not been in-

cluded in the accounting schedules; as a result, the numbering is not progressive.

The adopted accounting principles and valuation policies are as follows.

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets represent costs and expenses with multi-year utility and have

been accounted for and recorded on the basis of the cost effectively incurred —

inclusive of directly attributable ancillary charges.

This amount is presented in the accounts net of the relative amortization, which is

calculated in relation to the residual useful life of the asset; in particular:

e Start-up and expansion costs show charges incurred by the Parent Company
and other companies for the constitution and increase in share capital and are
amortized with a straight-line method over five years;

e Costs relative to the acquisition of intellectual property rights and licences,
trademarks or similar rights are booked in the profit and loss account on the
basis of the expected length of time over which the asset will be used;

= Concession rights represent the value, net of payments received, of the land
rights relative to parking spaces that are intended for sale in car parks con-
structed in the municipalities of Turin and Bologna. Entering in the profit and
loss account occurs in the year of sale;



e Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price with respect to the cur-
rent value of goods and other assets that were assimilated during shareholding
acquisitions. Amortization systematically occurs over the estimated future peri-
od of benefit using a straight line method and over no more than a five years.
In the case of a longer period, adequate disclosure is provided in the explana-
tory notes.

e Building yard installation costs report the costs incurred for the planning and
organization of acquired contracts and are amortized on the basis of the phys-
ical progress of the contract;

e Tender preparation costs — for participation in contract tenders, while await-
ing formal contract awards — have been written down of costs for which there
is not a reasonable certainty of contract award; this was done while booking
them in the profit and loss account. In the event of a contract award, such
costs are ascribed — after their classification in the item “building yard instal-
lation costs” — on the basis of the physical progress of the works;

e Other intangible assets are mainly attributable to the value of contractual rights
acquired within the scope of current initiatives in Italy and abroad, as well as
to costs for studies and planning, charges sustained for the organization, def-
inition and start-up of complex operations of structured finance for foreign
works, and contractual charges and other fixed assets.

With regards to amortization policies of costs included in this item we highlight be-

low the various methods that were utilized:

e The value of contractual rights, contractual charges and other fixed assets is
amortized — in compliance with current legislation — on the basis of the phys-
ical progress of the relative contracts;

e Expenses for studies and planning are amortized using a straight line method
at a constant rate on the basis of the lesser period between the residual con-
tract duration and five years;

e Charges sustained for structured finance operations relating to foreign con-
tracts are amortized in relation to the usage of the sums which are overall made
available by financial institutions.

Tangible fixed assets

The valuation of tangible fixed assets — represented by fixed assets and by assets
which include the machinery and equipment used for the purposes of production
— was calculated on the basis of the purchase price or the construction cost, and
inclusive of directly attributable ancillary charges.

For certain property assets (land, buildings, plant, machinery and equipment),
revaluations have been applied in application of current laws in the countries in
which the group operates.

Costs for modernization and improvement which extend the economical life of the
assets are added to the value of the same.

Tangible assets also include leased assets, as described previously.

Depreciation is calculated with the straight line method at a constant rate in rela-
tion to the residual useful life of the assets, and within the limits of the tax rates
that are considered representative of the estimated useful life of the assets.
Freely transferable assets are depreciated in accordance with the financial method
over the lesser period between the useful estimated life of the asset and the dura-
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tion of the concession. Payments into the plant account — thereby reducing the
cost of the assets to which they refer — are recorded at the time of formalization
of the relative resolution.

Equity investments

Equity investments in subsidiary and associated companies that are excluded from
the scope of consolidation are accounted for, if relevant, by means of the equity
method, which involves recording the investment at a value equal to the pertaining
percentage of Shareholders’ equity; this is done after having applied adjustments
in accordance with the principles used in drafting the consolidated financial state-
ments.

Other investments are stated at cost, inclusive of directly attributable ancillary
charges, and adjusted if necessary to reflect permanent value losses.

Companies in liquidation are stated at cost; the latter is adjusted to take liquida-
tion charges into account.

Dividends are recorded on an accruals basis when the right to drawing is ascribed
as a result of the resolution made by the Shareholders’ Meeting of the sharehold-
ing company (or by the Board of Directors in the case of controlled companies)
which relates to the distribution of profit or, as appropriate, of the reserves. This
is on the condition that the date of approval of the accounts of the shareholding
company and the relative resolution for distribution of profits occurs prior to ap-
proval of the Company accounts.

Losses from equity investments exceeding the book value and for which there is a
commitment to settlement are accounted for (after having written-off the book val-
ue) in the provision for losses in equity investments.

In the financial year in which the reasons for the write-down cease to exist, the eq-
uity investments are re-valued within the limits of the previously effected write-
down, and the adjustment is recorded to the profit and loss account.

Own shares

Own shares are booked in fixed assets as per the decision of the administrative
board to maintain them in the own treasury for more than a fiscal year. The latter
are stated in the financial statements at their purchase cost — and reduced in the
case of permanent capital loss — in accordance with the weighted average cost
method applied to each individual transaction.

Receivables and payables

Receivables are stated at their presumed realizable value by means of adequate al-
locations booked in adjustment of nominal values.

Payables are stated at their nominal value.

Assets and liabilities in foreign currency

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies — with the exception of
fixed assets — are recorded at the spot exchange rate in effect at the date of the
closing of the year, and the relative profit/loss from exchange rates is booked in
the profit and loss account; any potential net income is allocated in a specific re-
serve that is not distributable until realized. Fixed assets denominated in foreign
currencies are booked at the exchange rate of the date of their purchase, or to the



lower rate on the date of closing of the financial year if the reduction is deemed to
be lasting.

Inventories of raw materials and consumables
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or market value.

Contracts in progress

Long-term contracts in progress at year end are stated in accordance with the
stage of completion of works that have been implemented, but which are not yet
officially recognized by the customer, and thus not yet billed and included in rev-
enues (the so-called method of physical measurement); the latter are identified
with reasonable certainty and evaluated on the basis of the contractually agreed
revenue levels. This evaluation also takes into account the revised compensation
that has not yet been recognized.

In the case of a negative trend of a contract in progress, the final estimated loss
is quantified and accrued in the reserve for contractual works. This reserve also
reflects the outcomes related to the overall implementation of the works.

Charges considered for the implementation of works include:

— Raw material purchase costs;

— Costs relative to services rendered by subcontractors;

- Labor costs;

— Indirect costs (sale costs, general costs and administrative costs).

The revision of contract margin estimates that are made during the contractual pe-
riod are reflected during the accounting period in which these estimates are re-
vised.

Contracts are considered totally implemented on completion of all the main fore-
casted activities, including testing support and acceptance by the customer.

The valuation of reserves — as indicated by the rules of the “Legge Quadro” in
connection with contracts with public entities, as well as in accordance with inter-
national regulations — was made on the basis of technical and legal considera-
tions as to the reasonable positive outcome of claims with customers; these re-
serves represent claims with economic contents other than those due to the con-
tractor pursuant to legal or contractual provisions.

Finished goods and goods for resale
This records the construction cost of buildings ready for sale and which is lower
than current market prices.

Investments which are not permanent

Securities and investments that do not constitute fixed assets are recorded at the low-
er of the specific purchase cost — inclusive of accessory charges — and the market
value deduced from regulated markets or from other financial market indicators.

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand represents the liquid amounts available at year end.

Discounts and premiums on loans
Discounts and premiums on loans comprise prepaid financial costs or revenue, net
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of the portion recorded in previous financial years, as well as that recorded in the
current year. The discount on loans is booked as an asset and is amortized over
the duration of the loan.

Accruals and deferred income
These are booked on an accrual basis.

Provision for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges are intended to cover liabilities of a determinate na-
ture — with certain or probable existence — and for which, however, the exact amount
or the date of contingency can not be determined at the end of the financial year.

Provision for severance indemnities

The provision for severance indemnities is determined systematically on the basis
of matured liability in compliance with current legislation and the employment con-
tracts that are in force in the countries in which the Group operates.

This reserve reports the debt with respect to employees. Utilization of the same
occurs after termination of employment and payment of advances in accordance
with Law no. 297/82.

Memorandum accounts

= Personal guarantees are mainly represented by commitments in favor of third
parties and in the interest of Group companies against liabilities and other
commitments taken on by the latter; these guarantees are recorded at the no-
minal amount of the guarantee provided.

= Purchase and sale commitments relating to derivatives contracts which provide
for the forward exchange of capitals, or other assets or their differentials, are
stated at contract value. Commitments for other derivative contracts are stated
at the nominal value of the underlying asset.

e The risk of recourse pertaining to receivables assigned to the factor is recor-
ded at the nominal value of the receivables themselves.

Memorandum accounts that were originally expressed in values other than the Eu-

ro are adjusted to the exchange rate at the end of the year.

Income tax

Current income taxes are recorded in relation to the effective tax burden for the
period and are based on a reasonable estimate of the individual profit and loss
items — in compliance with the tax regulations in force in the countries in which
Group companies operate.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are accounted for by using the liability method
which reflects the tax effects of all significant temporal differences between the
basis of assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidate financial statements
and their tax basis.

Deferred tax assets are recorded if there is a reasonable possibility that they will
be realized; deferred tax liabilities are not recorded if it is not probable that the li-
ability will be paid.

Deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets are recorded in the provisions for
risks and charges or in the special account opened under floating capital in the



balance sheet, respectively. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are compensated if
the compensation is legally allowed.

Derivative products

The Group uses derivative products to manage exposure to fluctuations in interest
rate (IRS) and foreign currencies (DCS). The differential on IRS for hedging of ob-
tained financing is recorded on an accrual basis to interest income/expense.

In order to manage exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates on loan
agreements, liquid assets and liabilities — and mainly relating to long-term con-
tracts denominated in foreign currencies — the Group enters into currencies swap
(DCS). The cost of forward contracts (the difference between the spot rate and the
forward rate at contract inception) is stated in the profit and loss account on the
basis of the duration of the contract.

Transactions with subsidiaries, associates, and related parties

Transactions with subsidiaries (consolidated and non-consolidated), as well as
with associated firms and other correlated parties are carried out under normal
market conditions.

There are no transactions of significant commercial or financial nature that were
initiated with the Parent Company.

Profit and loss account

Positive and negative income components are recorded on an accrual basis.

Revenues from sales are recognized upon delivery of the goods; revenues from

services are recognized on the basis of service completion and in accordance with

the relevant contracts.

The change in inventories resulting from the profit and loss account does not co-

incide with the difference between the final inventories for the financial year and

those of the previous period that were reported in the balance sheet; this is due
to:

— The difference in adopted exchange rates (average exchange rate for the profit
and loss account, year-end exchange rate for the balance sheet);

— Variations in the scope of consolidation;

— Assignments of credit with recourse involving a number of claims towards cu-
stomers;

— The recording of the value of implemented works — whose payments were col-
lected during the course of work upon the completion of the individual work
phases - in deduction of the value of advances and in order to privilege sub-
stance over form;

— The valuation of implemented works — whose payment was collected on a tem-
porary basis, but without the presence of any guarantee in favor of the purcha-
ser — in deduction of advances and reflecting the relevant recourse risk within
the scope of the memorandum accounts.

Foreign entities operating in countries with high inflation rates show — where sig-

nificant — the necessary adjustments for eliminating the effects of inflation.

Revenues and proceeds, as well as the costs and charges, relating to operations

in foreign currency are calculated by using the exchange rate in force on the date

of the operation.
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Comments on the main balance sheet and income
statement items

Balance sheet - Assets
B - Fixed Assets: Euro 261,235
B.l - Intangible Fixed Assets: Euro 49,897

The changes in the fixed assets are given in the following table.

intangible fixed assets
13003 otte. " yem 0 Tamncs  toother  formtmancar bl e
cost balance sheet sheet categories year of consolidation

formation and expansion expenses 5,654 - - - - (2,361) (14) - 3,279
patents and rights to use patents
of others 1,286 - 178 - 2 (476) - 1 991
concessions, licenses, trademarks
and similar rights 29 - - - - - - - 29
goodwill 160 - - - - - (160) - -
other -
— construction site installation costs 10,868 4,232 3,046 - 2,343 (6,445) - (2) 14,042
— cost of preparing tenders 379 1,909 - (36) - (113) - - 2,139
— other 33,816 1,903 12,235 (1,119) (2,345) (15,067) (6) - 29,417
total 52,192 8,044 15,459 (1,155) - (24,462) (180) (1)

The main movements that concerned the individual items are summarized below.

B.l.1 - Start-up and Expansion Costs

The item in question — for a total of Euro 3,279 — almost exclusively represents the
value that still needs to be amortized for costs incurred by the Parent Company for
defining the listing project which occurred in 2002. The item in question underwent
a decrease of Euro 2,375 — mainly due to the amortization quota for the year.

B.I.3 - Patents and rights to use patents of others

The item in question — for a total of 991 Euro and representing the charges capi-
talized in previous years in reference to the implementation and development of an
integrated corporate management system and the acquisition of new software with
a limited licence for use — had an overall net decrease of 295 Euro; the latter was
primarily derived from increases for new acquisitions for 178 Euro (mostly pertain-
ing to the Parent Company) and 476 Euro for the decreases due to amortization for
the year in question.

B.l.4 - Concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights

The item in question — totalling 29 Euro — reports the valuation of the parking
space rights for the “Palazzo” and “Piazza VIII Agosto” car parks in Turin and
Bologna, respectively. This item was unchanged with respect to the previous year.

B.l.7.a — Building yard installation costs
The value of 14,042 Euro recorded in the accounts underwent a gross increase



of 9,621 Euro that is ascribable to costs incurred for the plant, organization
and start-up of new building yards in Italy and abroad, and totalling 7,278 Eu-
ro, in addition to 2,343 Euro referring to re-classifications of the Other Multi-
Year Entries class. In particular, the charges sustained during 2004 for the or-
ganization and start-up of the following building yards in Italy should be noted:
a) the Brescia Subway for 2,557 Euro;

b) the High Speed Railway Station of Bologna for 933 Euro;

c) the Melito Dam for 916 Euro;

d) the Hospital in Mestre for 392 Euro;

With regards to foreign entities, the increase attributable to the stable organiza-
tion in Venezuela — totalling 1,267 Euro — relating to the start-up of new works
for the construction of the Los Teques.e subway for 386 Euro and referring to the
capitalization undertaken by the subsidiary Astaldi-Max-Bogl-CCCF JV S.r.l. in
Romania.

The reported decrease of 6,447 Euro almost exclusively pertains to the amortiza-
tion quotas for the year in question.

B.I.7.b — Cost of preparing tenders

The value of 2,139 Euro recorded in the accounts, had a net decrease of 1,760 Eu-

ro with respect to the previous year, and imputable for:

- 1,909 Euro relevant to the capitalization of costs that were primarily incurred for
tenders in Italy and for which there is reasonable certainty of being awarded the
contract;

— 149 Euro for the amortization of charges relevant to tenders in Italy and abroad
and for which there were negative outcomes during the year.

In particular, note should be made of the charges sustained for the imple-
mentation of the contract award procedurs — using the General Contractor
method — and relating to the following stretches of the “Jonica 106" State
Highway: Squillace Simeri Crichi and Palizzi Caulonia, totalling 622 Euro, in
addition to the costs sustained thus far for the contract award procedure re-
lating to the construction of the Milan Subway (Lines 4 and 5) for 423 Euro.

B.l.7.c - Other

The value recorded in the accounts totals Euro 29,417. This item reported a net in-

crease of 536 Euro.

The increases — totalling 14,138 Euro — are mainly imputable for:

- 2,518 Euro for charges sustained by the parent company for the organization of
an articulated operation of financial nature in support of the financing operation
created with the subsidiary Astaldi Finance S.A.;

- 5,033 Euro for the acquisition of contractual rights relative to a co-operation
agreement with a local partner that is part of the stable organization of the Pa-
rent Company in Turkey;

— 480 Euro for charges pertaining to the planning activities for the new works re-
lating to the High-Speed Verona-Venezia Link;

— 280 Euro for the acquisition of the quota of contractual rights pertaining to
works for the construction of the Genoa Subway;

- 1,506 Euro for charges sustained for the organization, definition and start-up
of the structured finance operations in support of the ongoing works in Turkey;
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1,607 Euro for pre-operational charges sustained for the start-up of works in
the stable organization of Astaldi S.p.A. in Costa Rica;

567 Euro for the acquisition of contractual rights from other partners concer-
ning the implementation of a quota of the works for the railway superstructure
of the Caracas-Cua stretch of the permanent organization of the Parent Com-
pany in Venezuela.

The overall decrease for a total of Euro 18,537 includes the following:

10,873 Euro for the amortization applied to the Turkish branch of the Parent

Company; these are broken down as follows:

— 5,211 Euro for the amortization of part of the charges sustained for the or-
ganization and definition of the financing modalities for the works in pro-
gress;

— 4,150 Euro for the amortization of costs incurred by the Turkey branch in re-
lation to the effects of the liquidation of the previous joint venture, as well
as the relevant contractual charges;

- 1,512 Euro for amortization of part of the costs sustained for the acquisition
of contractual rights;

1,529 Euro for amortizations applied by the subsidiary Romairport S.r.l. during

the course of the financial year;

463 Euro for the following:

— 203 Euro for the amortization of contractual charges relating to works for
the Genoa subway, and

— 256 Euro for the total amortization of the residual costs linked to the con-
tractual rights of the associated firm Consorzio Astaldi-Federici-Todini
Kramis;

584 Euro for the quota of amortization of accessory charges sustained for the

financing initiated with our subsidiary Astaldi Finance S.A.



B.lIl - Tangible Fixed Assets Euro 102,338

The changes in tangible fixed assets are given in the following table.

tangible fixed assets

2003 purchases disposal transfers changes exchange
reclassifi- in consolidation rate
cation area difference

tangible fixed assets (A)
- land and buildings 30,089 3 (143) - - (115) 29,834
- specific plants 53,966 5,908 (5,860) 3 (110) (11) 53,896
— general plants 16,730 2,903 (1,280) (3) (56) (186) 18,108
— crafts 790 1 (98) - - - 693
— excavators, power shovels, heavy vehicles 53,903 7,410 (5,835) - (110) (699) 54,669
— light vehicles, ships, planes 12,161 1,139 (712) - (67) 2 12,523
— various small equipment 5,043 1,295 (370) 32 (36) - 5,964
— light constructions 4,245 1,839 (332) - (41) 1 5,712
— metal sheet pile and shuttering 3,792 1,004 (389) - - - 4,407
— electronic office equipment 3,570 297 (82) (21) (9) 1 3,756
— furniture, fittings and office equipment 4,138 500 (124) (11) (25) (14) 4,464
— freely transferable assets 2,542 377 - - - 1 2,920
— tangible assests in course of construction

and payments on account 278 2,141 (167) - - - 2,252
total A 191,247 24,817 (15,392) - (454) (1,020)
amortization fund (B)
- land and buildings 5,179 724 - - - (51) 5,852
— specific plants 26,243 4,844 (3,797) - (32) (9) 27,249
— general plants 5,403 1,990 (284) - (9) (68) 7,032
— crafts 790 - (98) - - - 692
— excavators, power shovels, heavy vehicles 25,519 8,490 (2,859) - (33) (191) 30,926
— light vehicles, ships, planes 8,733 1,344 (451) - (25) 2 9,603
— various small equipment 3,595 1,262 (309) 25 (20) 1 4,554
— light constructions 2,191 553 (239) - (8) 1 2,498
— metal sheet pile and shuttering 2,086 747 (272) - - - 2,561
— furniture, fittings and office equipment 2,092 338 (50) (27) (1) 1 2,353
— electronic office equipment 2,906 479 (109) 2 (8) (9) 3,261
— freely transferable assets 191 88 - - - - 279
total B 84,928 20,859 (8,468) - (136) (323)

total net assets (A - B) 106,319
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The most significant net changes refer to the normal renewal of assets, and partly

to new investments. The latter mainly concerned the categories of Specific plants,

General Plants, Excavators and Light Constructions—mostly relating to the new

contracts in Italy, permanent organizations located in Honduras, Venezuela and

Rumania, and the new investments of the Astaldi Construction Corporation.

The amount referring to the item, “Assets under Construction & Advances”—to-

talling 2,252 Euro—includes:

- 1,349 Euro for the quota of Project Financing investments relating to the com-
pletion of the technological tunnels in the municipality of Cologno Monzese;

— 903 Euro for fixed assets of the company and of permanent foreign organiza-
tions which had not yet been assigned at the end of the year.

B.Ill - Financial Assets: Euro 108,999

The most significant changes for the period, as given in the appendix, are mainly
due to the evaluation of certain shareholdings using the equity method.

In accordance with Art. 2426 no. 3 of the Italian Civil Code, it should be noted that
— with regards to certain equity investments in subsidiaries and associated com-
panies specified in the attached statement — the values entered in the financial
statements, and valuated on the basis of costs incurred, are higher than those that
would result from the application of the net equity method.

These differences, which are not significant, do not represent lasting losses of value.
Amounts due from subsidiaries, associated companies, shareholding companies
and third parties — recorded in the accounts for a total value of Euro 81,783 —
underwent a decrease of Euro 1,982.

These receivables basically represent the financial transactions made by the Com-
pany in support of works in progress — mainly abroad — as well as financing
granted to companies in liquidation. Please refer to the statement at the foot of
these notes for a detailed examination of single positions.

It should likewise be noted that the sum of Euro 68,538 was entered in the item
Other loans, and pertaining mostly (Euro 64,894) to the part of the payment of
credit assignments (with recourse) not paid by financial institutions — reported
further on in these Notes — and for an amount of circa Euro 3,644 relevant to the
contribution (as per the Tognoli Law) imputable to the “Piazza VIII Agosto” car park
in Bologna.

During the financial year, pursuant to the resolutions of the Ordinary Sharehold-
ers’ Meeting of November oth, 2004 — relating to the buy-back of own shares
within the limits provided for by current regulations — the Parent Company ne-
gotiated its own shares on the Electronic Share Market (see the following table
for the main data).



change in own shares

quantity value medium price
own shares 2,409,978 5,088,984.05 2.1116
shares sold (2,009,978) 5,916,245.03 2.9434
share in portfolio 400,000 897,558.39 2.2439
capital gain 1,308,205.00

The unit nominal value of the own shares is 1 (one) Euro.

C. Current Assets

C.l. Inventories: Euro 235,584

These overall total 235,584 Euro and include:

» Raw materials and consumables for 32,840 Euro that primarily refer to building
yards in Italy and within the permanent organizations of the parent company in
Venezuela and Turkey, as well as the permanent organizations of Italstrade
S.p.A. in Morocco and Venezuela; with respect to the previous year, a decrea-
se of 6,350 was reported. The latter should be compared to the activities un-
dertaken in Venezuela, Honduras, Guinea and El Salvador, as well as the works
implemented by subsidiary Italstrade CCCF JV Romis S.r.l. in Rumania;

e Goods in progress and semi-finished products — an item totalling 1,674 Euro
and not present in the previous year — refers to the value of the inventories lin-
ked to the “Ex Manifattura Tabacchi” car park which is currently being built in
Bologna;

e Contracts in progress for 192,752 Euro. This amount is net of:

- Reserves for 72,768 Euro transferred with recourse — whose risk of re-
course, equal to the corresponding amount of the transfer paid by the fac-
tor, 37,519 Euro — is given in the memorandum accounts, whereas the dif-
ference not yet paid by the factor, equal to Euro 35,249, was entered in the
financial credits;

— The value of implemented works, whose payments were collected during the
course of implementation upon the completion of single work stages, and
totalling 280,625 Euro; the most significant amount refers to works for the
completion of the New Milan Expo Fair Center, totalling 275,288 Euro, whi-
le the residual 5,337 Euro refers to works for the Brescia Subway;

- Payments collected on a provisional basis, but without any guarantee in fa-
vor of the purchaser, totalling Euro 30,437, and whose risk of recourse was
in any case recorded in the memorandum accounts for the specific purpose
of representing the case in question;

e Finished goods and goods for resale — totalling 404 Euro — reports the sale of
building initiatives that were completed and sold in the municipalities of Milan
and Rome. During the course of the year, the entry decreased after the sale of
the property in Via Beolchi in Milan for 255 Euro.

e Assets and materials in transit for 7,913 Euro; the increase with respect to the
previous year is 6,446 Euro and mostly refers to the following permanent fo-
reign organizations:

— Astaldi branch in Turkey: Euro 4,462;
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— Astaldi branch in Venezuela: Euro 1,498;
— Astaldi branch in Rumania: Euro 1,431.

C.lIl - Accounts Receivable: Euro 504,813

The total increase of Euro 26,616 with respect to the last financial year is the re-
sult of the following items.

C.Il.1 - Trade receivables: Euro 313,373

Trade receivables are entered net of the provision for doubtful debtors for 7,673

Euro and the overdue interest provision for 12,269 Euro.

With respect to 2003, the item records a positive change equal to Euro 33,628.

This net increase mainly refers to:

— 28,527 Euro relating to the settlement of the arbitration ruling with the Croatian
contractor for the construction of the Zagabria—Gorican highway;

— 11,768 Euro pertaining to works for the construction of the Rome-Naples High-
Speed Railway;

— 11,350 Euro relating to the settlement of the dispute with the contractor Ferro-
via Alifana for the construction of the Benevento-Cancello-Napoli railway;

— 11,000 Euro relating to the liquidation of indemnities on the part of the Ministry
of the Treasury for war damages sustained by the ex-Italstrade during the im-
plementation of works in Ethiopia;

— 4,258 Euro for works implemented by the Parent Company in relation to the
Rome-Pantano railway.

In addition, the following increases are noted in relation to:

- Works implemented by the Parent Company for the construction of the North-
West Railway Link in Rome, totalling 9,476 Euro;

— Works within the permanent organization of the Parent Company in Congo, to-
talling 4,178 Euro;

- Works conducted in Venezuela by shareholding Consorcio Metros Los Teques
for 5,967 Euro;

— Works conducted by the permanent organization of our subsidiary Italstrade in
Morocco, totalling 5,449 Euro;

The most significant net decreases refer to:

— Works conducted by the Parent Company for the New Milan Expo Fair Center,
totalling 17,011 Euro;

- Works in progress in the permanent organization in Venezuela, totalling 13,231
Euro;

— Advances for the new works on the Venezia-Verona High-Speed Railway, total-
ling 10,887 Euro;

— The permanent organization in Honduras, totalling 5,466 Euro;

- Works implemented in the United States by subsidiary Astaldi Construction
Corporation, totalling 3,468 Euro.

The change in the scope of consolidation triggered a decrease of 1,818 Euro as a

result of the exit of the firm Legnami Pasotti Italia I.C. S.r.l. from the former.

In addition to the above, credits were assigned with recourse — as summarized be-

low — to financial institutions during the course of the year, enabling a part of the

invested capital to be rendered liquid.



assignment of credits with recourse

original credit amount paid residual credit
assignment in advance assignment
various foreign works 23,969 19,415 4,554
various works in Italy 53,485 28,394 25,091
total 77,454 47,809 29,645

The following table summarizes the trend in the assignments in 2004.

trend in the assignments of credits with recourse
total 2003 movements for 2004
credit collected transfers
foreign works - - 23,969 23,969
works in italy 76,863 (76,863) 53,485 53,485
total 76,863 (76,863) 77,454

The movement of funds bringing a direct reduction to the described receivables is
given below.

provision for doubtful debtors

valuation at 31.12.2003 9,573
increases in the financial year 3,100
utilization of reserves during the financial year (5,000)

provision for delayed payment interest

valuation at 31.12.2003 4,239
increases in the financial year 8,635
utilization of reserves during the financial year (568)
decrease in reserves over the financial year (37)

Provision for doubtful debtors

The increase of 3,100 Euro should be compared to the prudential allocation for
the risk of irrecoverableness of certain receivables with respect to the Parent
Company (2,000 Euro) and the contractors of our subsidiary Romstrade S.r.l.
(1,100 Euro).

The decrease of 5,000 Euro refers to the settlement of the ruling relating to the
construction of the Zagabria-Gorican Highway in Croatia and with which the Arbi-
tration Board acknowledged the right to compensation for works to Astaldi on the
past 18th of June; these works include conducted activities, the profit loss and
matured interest and therefore the credit risk did not occur as was forecasted and
allocated for in the provision for doubtful debtors.

Provision for delayed payment interest
Allocation within this fund, totalling 8,635 Euro, primarily refers to the Croatian
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dispute, and was prudentially implemented while awaiting the completion of the
procedures that aim at making the ruling enforceable.

C.ll.2 - Receivable from subsidiaries: Euro 31,997

An increase of Euro 366 with respect to the previous financial year was recorded.
For an analysis of the composition of accounts receivable see the statement given
at the end of these Notes and relevant to transactions with correlated parties.

C.l1.3 - Receivable from associated companies: Euro 26,649

A decrease of Euro 10,914 with respect to the previous financial year was recorded.
For an analysis of the composition of accounts receivable see the statement given
at the end of these Notes and relevant to transactions with correlated parties.

C.lI.3 - Receivable from parent companies: Euro 33
This refers to relationships of a commercial nature entered into with Fin.Ast. S.r.l..

C.ll.4bis — Tax receivables: Euro 45,197

The amount is reported net of a provision for delayed payment interest and equal
to 197 Euro; there were no movements during the financial year. The item in ques-
tion — which was subject to a net decrease of Euro 4,603 during the course of the
year — is detailed in the table below.

taxes

Italy abroad total
a) indirect taxes
vat credit < 12 months 9,962 16,958 26,920
vat credit > 12 months 207 - 207
total indirect taxes. 10,169 16,958 27,127
b) direct taxes
direct credit < 12 months 14,358 1,732 16,090
direct credit > 12 months 1,980 - 1,980
total direct taxes 16,338 1,732 18,070
total receivable from tax authority 26,507 18,690 45,197

In addition to the details given in the above table, it is pointed out that the VAT

credit mainly refers to:

— Works in progress in Venezuela, for circa 9,277 Euro, of which 6,760 Euro re-
fers to the permanent organization of the Parent Company - this item has de-
creased by over Euro 4,958 with respect to the previous year; it is reasonable
to expect that the latter will be partly absorbed by the new works and partly
paid by the purchaser;

- The permanent organization of the Parent Company in Guinea for a value of cir-
ca 1,652 Euro, which will be partly used in the invoicing of payments for im-
plemented works (this will be done reasonably over the course of 2005), and
partly recovered from the local tax authorities;

— Activities carried out in Italy for 10,166 Euro, of which 9,694 is relevant to the
Parent Company. This amount contributes to forming the normal taxation dyna-



mics for VAT purposes which at times show significant peaks, and which are in

any case consistent with work and invoicing flows;

- 1,024 and 1,126 Euro for the consolidated companies Astaldi-Max-Bogl-CCCF
JV S.r.l. and Romairport S.r.l., respectively;

- the permanent organization Italstrade S.p.A. in Morocco for Euro 1,896.

It should also be noted that credit for direct taxes, recorded net of the overdue in-

terest provision equal to Euro 198 and unchanged in the period, consists of:

1. 10,529 Euro for IRES being formed with the Parent Company, and which is
composed of:

a. the credit derived from the calculation of the taxes for 2004 ;

b. the credit for foreign taxes, and referring to the part that is recoverable in
accordance with the provisions of Article 165 of the new Unified Text on In-
come Tax (“TUIR”) as well as with the international conventions on double
taxation;

2. 3,780 Euro pertaining to the Parent Company, and referring to other credits for
direct and refundable taxes (2,214 Euro), as well as interest that accrued on
part of the credit requested for refund (605 Euro) and other tax credits which
accrued locally for permanent foreign organizations (1,051 Euro);

3. 1,235 Euro for credit that accrued for the subsidiary Italstrade S.p.A. and
mostly due to tax credits that accrued locally by permanent foreign organiza-
tions;

4. 972 Euro for credit accrued by the subsidiary Romairport S.r.l., and almost ex-
clusively consisting of 876 Euro for tax credits which accrued locally by the
permanent organization in Rumania.

It is useful to note that the simplified procedure required by Article 43-ter of the
Decree of the President of the Republic n. 602 of September 29”‘, 1973 — which
provides for the assignment to subsidiaries of part of the IRPEG (individual tax)
credits that are not requested for a refund — was initiated. This was undertaken
during the course of 2004 for the purpose of rationalizing the financial relations
between the companies of the Group, as well as for the purpose of recovering the
accruing Irpeg credit. The overall assigned amount in 2004 was 1,260 Euro.

In the month of December 2004, the pro-soluto assignment of Irpeg credits that

were requested for refund with Unico (tax return) 2003 and Unico 2004 was initi-

ated with respect to the factoring company Capitalia L&F for the purpose of trans-
forming part of the tax receivables into liquid assets; these assignments totalled

5,000 and 13,000 Euro for the two above tax returns, respectively. The change in

the scope of consolidation had a negative effect of 258 Euro.

C.ll.4ter - Prepaid Taxes: Euro 13,983

This item summarizes the overall effects deriving from the recording of prepaid and
deferred taxes since they are legally remunerable. With respect to the previous
year, a net decrease of 1,770 Euro was reported; this was derived from the joint
effect of decreases pertaining to the Parent Company (for 6,897 Euro) and the
subsidiary Astaldi Construction Corporation (for 773 Euro), as well the increases
referring to the subsidiary Italstrade S.p.A. for 5,900 Euro (relating to total prepaid
taxes deriving from fiscal losses that will be recovered in future years).

The valuation of prepaid taxes is 13,983 Euro, and is described in detail in the table
below.
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2003 change
1.a) Italy
— Astaldi S.p.A. 3,635 10,532 (6,897)
— Italstrade S.p.A. 5,900 - 5,900
1.b) abroad
— Astaldi Construction Corporation 4,448 5,221 (773)
total prepaid taxes 15,753 (1,770)

For an analytical breakdown please refer to the attached statement at the foot

of these explanatory notes.

Receivable from personnel for 902 Euro: this item decreased by 52 Euro (ne-
gative change in the scope of consolidation equal to 1 Euro);

Receivable from Social Security Institutions for 647 Euro: this item decreased
by 136 Euro (negative change in the scope of consolidation equal to 3 Euro);
Guarantee deposits for 971 Euro: these increased by 37 Euro (negative
change in the scope of consolidation equal to 44 Euro);

Receivable from other shareholding companies for 3,992 Euro: this item in-
creased by 3,662 Euro;

Other receivable for 67,070 Euro: this item increased, net of the negative
change in the scope of consolidation that is equal to 1,556 Euro, by 6,458
Euro.

Some of the most significant entries are summarized below:

C

Other trade receivables, for the sale of goods and services (services to sub-
contractors, sales of equipment and goods, sale of property assets), for
22,487 Euro;

Receivable from subcontractors and suppliers, for contractual advances on
services and supplies to be provided, equal to 29,194 Euro;

Receivable for advances granted to members of the arbitration boards
established in relation to specific disputes existing with purchasers, as
well as receivable from liquidators and other receivables equal to circa
15,389 Euro.

1l - Investments which are not permanent

Il 6 — Other investments: Euro 28,641

The item in question underwent an overall increase of 25,474 Euro which was

mainly due to:

The acquisition of part of the debenture loan issued by the subsidiary Astal-
di Finance S.A. for 20,001 Euro. This operation — undertaken at the price of
0.991 — was planned as part of the plan for procurement of resources nee-
ded to reimburse the current financing with the subsidiary; this reimburse-
ment occurred last February;

The acquisition of securities issued by the Venezuelan Government; this ope-
ration occurred during the past year and was conducted by our shareholding
Consorcio Metros Los Teques for 2,865 Euro.

For a more detailed examined of the item in question, please refer to the follo-

wing summary statement.



other securities

2003 change
Astaldi Finance Bonds 20,001 - 20,001
Futher Credit - Arner Fund 5,000 5,000 -
Venezuelan securities (Consorcio Metros Los Teques) 2,865 - 2,865
Gefin Comm. Union Fund 1,022 992 30
BNL Real Estate Fund 254 254 -
Other minor securities 210 83 127
Acer Bonds 10% 1990/2002 2 2 -
Fineco Bond Fund 908 - 908
total 6,331 23,931
securities write-down fund 1,621 3,164 (1,543)
total net securities 3,167 25,474

To further clarify the preceding table it should be noted that the amount of 1,621 Eu-
ro in the item “Securities Write-down Fund” should be correlated with the Futher Cred-
it-Arner Fund of 5,000 Euro. During the course of the year, the securities write-down
fund was used to restore the value of the abovementioned “Futher Credit Fund”.

C.IV - Cash at bank and in hand: Euro 174,839

Cash at bank and in hand consists of bank deposits for 172,958 Euro, checks for
1,559 Euro and currency and cash values for 322 Euro. The items underwent in-
creases of 23,335 Euro and 1,559 — since the items checks was not present in the
financial statements of last year — and a 38 Euro decrease, respectively, com-
pared with the previous financial year.

Deposits in foreign currencies are valuated by using the exchange rates at the end
of the period — with the resulting booking of relating adjustments in the profit and
loss account.

The change in the scope of consolidation produced a negative change of 299 Eu-
ro, mainly relevant to the exit of Legnami Pasotti Italia I.C. S.r.l. from the scope of
consolidated companies.

Shown below is the geographical breakdown of cash at bank and in hand.

cash at bank and in hand by geographic areas

Italy 120,211
United States 31,279
Romania 13,062
Venezuela 1,787
other countries 8,500
total 174,839

D - Prepayments and accrued income: Euro 10,939

This account, which underwent an increase of 1,849 Euro , mainly concerns pre-
payments for 2,975 Euro relating to revenues from financial transactions, 7,922
Euro for accrued income, relevant insurance costs, commissions on guarantees,
interest and other components of residual value, and 42 Euro for premiums rele-
vant to the debenture loan.
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Balance sheet - Liabilities
A - Net equity

For an analysis of the individual items of Net equity see the attached statement of

movements in the net consolidated equity occurring in the period.

In the month of April, the Shareholders’ Meeting of the Parent Company — while

meeting to approve the financial statements at December 3151, 2003 — resolved

to distribute a dividend per share of 0.065 Euro for an overall 6,306 Euro (net of

the dividend’s value referring to own shares).

Oon November 9th, 2004 the Shareholders’ Meeting of the Parent Company again

authorized the Board of Directors to purchase the company’s ordinary shares on

the M.T.A. (Electronic Share Market), in accordance with the provisions of Art.

2357 of Italian Civil Code.

On December 31, treasury stocks were equal to 400,000, for a total value of

898 Euro.

The decrease in the conversion reserve, with respect to December 31St, 2003, is

attributable to the exchange rate trend, particularly in relation to the US dollar and

currencies linked to it. In this respect, the conversion reserve reflects temporary

exchange rate fluctuations at the closing date with respect to previous periods.

These variations are considered temporary and recurrent with respect to the spe-

cific nature of the reserve and do not imply permanent effects.

In accordance with the Shareholders’ Register — supplemented by the notices re-

ceived in accordance with Art. 120 of Legislative Decree no. 58 of February 24th,

1998 and other available information — the direct shareholders, as of December

315t 2004, holding more than 2% of the Company’s share capital fully paid-up and

represented by shares with voting rights, are as follows.

- Fin.Ast. S.r.l., owner of 39,578,033 shares equal to 40.211%;

— Finetupar International S.A. (Luxembourg) (formerly Finetupar S.A), owner of
12,327,967 shares equal to 12.525%);

— Gartmore Investment Management PLC., owner of 5,236,246 shares equal to
5.32%;

— Famifin S.A. (Luxembourg), owner of 2,000,000 shares equal to 2.032%

- Nextra Investment Management Sgr, owner of 2,160,000 shares equal to
2.195%.



B - Provisions for risks and charges: Euro 69,909

On December 31St, 2004, provisions for risks and charges totalled 69,909 Euro,
against 64,820 Euro for the previous year.
The movement of this provision for the financial year is as follows.

provisions for riskd and

value increases in the year decreases in the year changes in
as of p&l balance sheet p&l balance sheet scope of
31.12.03 consolidation

provision for contractual liabilities 51,599 32,227 11 (42,655) (5) - 41,177
provision for equity investment liabilities 11,748 4,278 11,832 (126) (29) - 27,703
taxation reserve 1,435 - - - (534) - 901
provision ex-art.27 of company statute 38 - 90 - - - 128
total 64,820 36,505 11,933 (42,781) (568) -

e It should be noted that the provision for contractual risks is established to co-
ver the progress and final result of works. The decrease in the reserve is due to
the availment to off-set losses accumulated over the period in relation to Italian
and foreign contracts, whose economic effects have already been provided for
in previous years.

» Allocations to the equity investment reserve refer to the effect of the deva-
luation in equity investments in the companies put into voluntary liquidation
for the purpose of providing for losses — of a fixed nature and certain or pro-
bable existence — but whose amount and date of extraordinary costs are not
determined at the end of the financial year. The provision reported a net in-
crease of 15,955 Euro in relation to the valuation of our shareholding Copen-
hagen Construction Group JV using the net equity method and previously
consolidated with the proportional method. This change — which has no ef-
fect on the net income or Shareholders’ equity of the Group — must be com-
pared to the final completion of works and the contextual start-up of the li-
quidation phase.

e The taxation provision, for a total of 901 Euro, underwent a net decrease of 534
Euro, imputable for:

— 236 Euro for the automatic definition of fiscal year 2002, provided for by
Law no. 289 of December 27th, 2002 and later amendments and supple-
ments.

— 298 Euro, on payment of the amounts deriving from the judicial settlement
carried out for 1997 and 1998, in accordance with Art. 48 of Legislative De-
cree no. 546/1992, with the Revenue Office — Rome 4 office — relevant to
the dispute over the presumed omitted taxation of the so-called Contrac-
tors’ reserves. The amount that remains debited to the provision refers to
the presumed charges that the company must sustain in relation to the Ro-
me 1 office in 1997 and 1998 (for 474 Euro) and in 1999 with the Rome 4
office (for 427 Euro).

e The fund under article 27 of the By-Laws — established for liberality purposes
— reported a 90 Euro increase during the present year after allocating a part of
the profit for 2003; this was resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting on April
30th, 2003.
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employee

C - Employee severance indemnity: Euro 12,473

The changes in the year are as follows.

severance indemnity

value as of increase decrease exchange change in
31.12.2003 during during scope of
the year the year consolidation
employee severance indemnity 12,189 5,146 (5,023) 186 (25)

D - Debts and other payables: Euro 878,946

Debts and other payables are composed of the following items:

A debenture loan amounting to Euro 150,000, issued by Astaldi Finance S.A. on

February 11th, 2002, with the following characteristics:

— duration: 11/2/2002 - 11/2/2005;

— repayment: with interest calculated according to a fixed annual rate of 6.5%;

— due date: annual interest on February 11th of each year.

It should be noted that the debenture loan was regularly repayed on the date of

maturity.

In addition, it should be noted that on June 30th, 2004, a financing contract of

100,000 Euro was undersigned between the Parent Company Astaldi S.p.A.

(the mutuary) and Astaldi Finance S.A., MCC S.p.A. (as Agent), MCC S.p.A.,

Sanpaolo IMI S.p.A. and Efibanca S.p.A. (as financing banks); this contract

presented the following characteristics:

— date of disbursement: January 28”‘, 2005

— duration: 60 months from the date of disbursement;

— repayment: in 10 constant installments, with the first due on August 9th,
2005, and the others on the oth of February and August of each year; the
last installment will be repayed on February oth 2010;

— interest rate: the applicable rate will be equal to the 6-month Euribor rate,
calculated on an annual basis of 360 days plus a margin of 1.85%;

— interest rate period: the interest rate period will have a delayed half-year
duration, effective from the date of issue.

The due date for interest payment will coincide with the due date of the fi-

nancing.

Amounts owed to banks, for Euro 215,488: this item has increased by Euro

40,069. The increase refers to the typical availment of lines of credit for the

execution of single contracts in Italy and abroad. For greater clarity, individual

credit lines are summarized below, highlighting their utilization on December

315t 2004.



credit lines

lines utilization
overdraft 61,541 19,710
hard cash 54,082 50,082
short-term financing 36,816 35,892
medium-term financing 203,111 55,233
self-liquidating funds 247,803 47,894
loans 6,702 6,677
overall total 610,055 215,488

With regards to medium and long-term financing, inclusive of loans, the individual
due dates are reported below.

annual due date

2005 2006 2007 2008 beyond
medium-term financing 25 17 13 - -
loans 1 1 1 1 3

The main debts and payables included in the balance and backed by guarantees
are detailed by type, as follows:

m CARISBO LOAN: Euro 5,831
secured by a mortgage of Euro 18,076 on the building relating to the Bologna car
park;

m CARIPRPC LOAN: Euro 177

secured by mortgage of Euro 2,789 on the building relating to the Turin car park

(Palazzo). In accordance with company procedures, adequate operations for cov-

erage of interest rate risk were put into place; these are known as as Interest Rate

Swaps;

e amounts owed to other financiers, equal to Euro 21,996, against Euro 25,898
in 2003: this item mainly reflects amounts due to suppliers of leased assets
calculated according to the financial method;

advances, for Euro 118,903: this item concerns advances paid by purchasers
for execution of the works and had a net decrease of Euro 28,404 in the year.
The most significant increases are related to the works of the Parent Company
in Italy (11,971 Euro) concerning the advance received from the contractor for
the construction of the Brescia Subway, as well as the permanent foreign or-
ganizations in Rumania (12,910 Euro) and Venezuela (4,063 Euro), overall to-
talling 28,973 Euro.

Decreases mainly refer to the works undertaken by the Parent Company for the
construction of the New Milan Expo Fair Center; the value of implemented
works has broadly surpassed the value of received advances (44,518 Euro) in
this project. Other decreases include the permanent foreign organizations of
the Parent Company, and include:

- Guinea branch: Euro 4,111
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— Croatia branch: Euro 3,578
— EI Salvador branch: Euro 1,658
— Turkey branch: Euro 763

Finally, note should be made of the decreases reported by our subsidiaries Astal-
di Arabia Ltd (Euro 1,567) and Italstrade CCCF JV Romis S.r.l. (Euro 1,716);

Amounts owed to suppliers, for Euro 228,977:

This item underwent a net increase of Euro 32,578 with respect to the previous

year. It should be noted that this change is mostly due to the following primary

changes:

— 22,901 Euro for investments for the start-up of the new initiatives of the Pa-
rent Company in ltaly, particularly in reference to the construction of the
Brescia Subway and the High Speed Station in Bologna;

- 12,263 Euro for increases referring to the permanent organizations of the
Parent Company in Turkey (6,900 Euro), Rumania (4,230 Euro) and Hondu-
ras (1,133 Euro);

— 11,739 Euro for increases that primarily refer to the activities implemented
by Astaldi-Max-Bogl-CCCF JV S.r.l. for (1,606) Euro, Consorcio Metro Los
Teques (6,579 Euro) and the permanent organization of Italstrade S.p.A. in
Morocco (3,555 Euro); these increases must be directly compared to the
corresponding increase in works and are therefore in direct correlation with
the increase in receivables due from the respective contractors.

Decreases primarily refer to the following:

- 7,454 Euro for the permanent organizations of the Parent Company in Gui-
nea (5,730 Euro) and in El Salvador (1,724 Euro);

— 4,589 Euro for the change in the scope of consolidation after the exit of Co-
penhagen Construction Group JV (Comet JV) for 2,316 Euro and of Legna-
mi Pasotti Italia I.C. S.r.l. (in liquidation) for 2,273 Euro;

— 2,645 Euro pertaining to the subsidiary of Italstrade CCCF JV Romis S.r.l.;

Amounts owed to subsidiaries, equal to Euro 18,495, a decrease of 976 Euro

with respect to the previous financial year.

For an analysis of the composition of Debts and other payables see the state-

ment included at the end of these Notes;

Amounts owed to associated companies, equal to 77,703 Euro, an increase of

17,033 Euro with respect to the previous financial year. For an analysis of the

composition of Debts and other payables see the statement included at the end

of these Notes;

Amounts owed to the tax authorities, for Euro 14,438,;

This item — which reports a decrease of 7,232 Euro with respect to the pre-

vious year — primarily refers to:

- 3,806 Euro owed to the Revenue for income tax due in settlement by the en-
tities operating in Venezuela;

— 1,814 Euro for withholding tax on subordinate and independent work, in ad-
dition to the balance of various taxes that are relevant to the permanent or-
ganizations of the Parent Company operating abroad;

— 5,420 Euro owed to the Revenue for VAT, 2,122 Euro of which relating to
works carried out in Italy, and 3,298 Euro pertaining to the permanent orga-
nizations of the Parent Company abroad — the most significant being those
in Turkey (996 Euro), Congo (1,785 Euro) and Guinea Conakry (337 Euro).



- 2,572 Euro for payables to Revenue for income taxes due from the sub-
sidiaries Astaldi Finance S.A. (1,078 Euro) e Romairport S.r.l. (1,494
Euro).

Amounts owed to Social Security institutions for 3,924 Euro; the item decrea-

sed by 760 Euro net of the decrease that was also due to the change in the

scope of consolidation for 9 Euro;

Other payables, equal to a total of 29,021 Euro, reporting a decrease of 3,529

Euro with respect to the previous year. The most significant entries are analy-

zed below:

- Amounts owed to shareholding companies, totalling 3,758 Euro. This item
underwent a decrease of 1,237 Euro;

- Deposits and guarantees, for 20 Euro, with a decrease of 2 Euro with re-
spect to 20083;

- Amounts due to personnel, for Euro 6,141, with an increase of 1,635 Eu-
ro; the decrease due to the change in the scope of consolidation was
equal to 18 Euro. This item details the amount due for remuneration re-
levant to December, as well as the amount due for holidays accrued and
not taken.

— Other payables for 19,103 Euro, reporting an increase of 3,135 Euro with
respect to 2003. The negative change in the scope of consolidation contri-
buted to the net decrease of 2,601 Euro.

Some of the most significant entries are summarized below:

— Amounts due to representative companies, within the scope of work carried
out through the establishment of consortia, for collections made in their na-
me and on their behalf, equal to 9,780 Euro;

— Advances from customers, for 1,186 Euro;

— Other items relevant to transactions not directly deriving from production
activity, but in any case connected with the latter, and totalling 8,137 Euro.

E - Accruals and deferred income: Euro 10,941

This account, which underwent a decrease of 97 Euro, mainly refers to accrued li-

abilities determined by the recording of interest on the debenture loan for 8,640

Euro, fourteen month salary payments and interest on loans.

Balance sheet — Memorandum accounts

A)

Personal guarantees

The total amount recorded in the accounts is 1,393,144 Euro and refers to the fol-

lowing matters:

1.

Guarantees for credit lines, intended to ensure a regular cash-flow on the indi-
vidual contracts issued in the interests of subsidiaries, associated companies
and other non-consolidated shareholding companies, and established for this
purpose in accordance with current tax legislation for a total amount of
103,839 Euro;

Guarantees for works, issued in the interests of the Group, banking Institutions
and/or insurance companies, in favor of contracting entities for various purpo-
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ses, on behalf of subsidiaries, associated companies and other shareholding
companies, for a total of 1,201,121 Euro;
3. other guarantees issued for various purposes for a total of 88,184 Euro.

B) Other memorandum accounts

The item, which amounts to 109,955 Euro, represents the risk of loss for 79,573
Euro resulting from the assignment of credits with recourse of factors, commented
on previously, and which decreased by 6,595 Euro with respect to the previous
year; 30,381 Euro is attributable to non-contractual works, paid as a provisional
item, pertaining to construction works on the Pont Ventoux hydroelectric plant in
Val di Susa, on behalf of AEM Torino.

C) Third party guarantees in our favor

These represent — totalling Euro 25,066 — the guarantees furnished by bank cor-
porations and insurance companies in the interest of Italian and foreign suppliers
and subcontractors and relating to the contractual obligations assumed by the lat-
ter with respect to your company.

Profit and loss account

A - Value of production: Euro 1,049,076

Revenue from works total an overall 989,349 Euro. The breakdown by work cate-
gory, including the change in inventories with respect to 2003 that was equal to
191,475 Euro, is given in the following table.

contract revenues by line of busiess

2003 %
transport infrastructure 625,419 63.2 608,030 69.9
hydraulic works and energy production plants 143,771 14.5 114,974 13.2
civil and industrial buildings 220,159 22.3 147,141 16.9
total 989,349 100.0 870,145 100.0

The production for works, which increased overall by about 14%, is derived from
the following aggregated data.

contract revenues

31.12.2003 change
initial contract work in progress (392,815) (305,357) (87,458)
final contract work in progress 584,290 396,943 187,347
revenues from long-term contractual works 795,823 778,078 17,745
revenues from short-term contractual works 2,051 481 1,570
total 989,349 870,145 119,204




The geographical distribution is as follows.

contract revenues by geographic areas

2003 %
Italy 497,207 50.3 425,444 48.9
Europe 196,799 19.9 91,533 10.5
America 192,979 19.5 268,025 30.8
Africa 74,224 7.5 74,104 8.5
Asia 28,140 2.8 11,039 1.3
total 989,349 100.0 870,145 100.0

The increases in assets for internal works, already detailed under item Bl — in-
tangible fixed assets — amount to 8,044 Euro and refer to capitalized costs. The
main entries forming the item mainly refer to internal costs relevant to the
plant, organization and start-up of new building yards - including those relat-
ing to the construction of the Brescia Subway, the Melito Dam and the High
Speed Railway Station of Bologna — in addition to costs incurred for the analy-
sis of tenders in Italy.

Other revenues, equal to 51,682 Euro, are largely represented by items that are
not directly linked to the production activity of Group works, but which are
characterized by a continuous nature over the course of the various financial
years.

The breakdown of the items is as follows.

other revenues

2003 variazione
revenue from sales of goods 10,031 3,446 6,585
services provided to third parties 9,593 16,091 (6,498)
extraordinary income, inexistence of liabilities 7,544 7,756 (212)
sponsorship 5,884 4,489 1,395
use of provision for risks 5,709 574 5,135
rentals 4,196 1,441 2,755
other revenue 2,557 4,290 (1,733)
rents receivable 1,993 1,829 164
capital gain on sale of fixed assets 1,149 705 444
insurance premiums 1,111 3,479 (2,368)
receivable discounts and allowances 1,096 435 661
capital gain on debtor purchase and sale 819 84 735
total 51,682 44,619 7,063

The most significant differences of the above data include:

— 5,135 Euro for the usage of the provision for credit risk; this change is almost
exclusively due to the usage of funds by the Parent Company which were pre-
viously allocated to cover the receivable due from the Croatian contractor for
5,000 Euro;

- 2,755 Euro for rentals of machinery and industrial equipment, and implemented
with respect to third parties through the permanent organizations of the Parent
Company in Venezuela and Guatemala;

- 6,585 Euro relating to the increase in revenue from sales of materials to sub-
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contractors, and mostly pertaining to the Permanent Organizations of the Pa-
rent Company in Venezuela and in Guinea.

— Cost of production: Euro 974,524

The costs of raw materials and consumables, net of remainders, amount to
170,997 Euro (157,919 Euro in 2003) and increased by 13,078 Euro with re-
spect to the previous financial year. It should also be noted that the costs for
customs charges on the acquisition of materials were also included in this item
since they are directly linked to the costs of materials; for greater comparabi-
lity, these were re-classified from the item Other operating costs of the pre-
vious year (for Euro 2,743).

Costs for services amount to 611,665 Euro (502,102 Euro in 2003) and increa-
sed by 109,562 Euro with respect to the previous financial year.

The breakdown of costs for services is as follows.

costs for services

2003 change
consortium costs 308,172 234,593 73,579
subcontractors 180,545 146,096 34,449
works and services 35,100 36,674 (1,574)
materials in progress 25,273 18,133 7,140
technical and commercial consultancies 23,713 25,983 (2,270)
legal, fiscal and administrative services 10,409 10,214 195
other costs and services 9,686 12,279 (2,593)
insurance 7,000 5,079 1,921
utilities 5,778 6,155 (377)
travels & travelling indemnities 2,308 3,717 (1,409)
maintenance & repairing 2,154 1,951 203
directors’ and auditors' fees 1,527 1,228 299
total 611,665 502,102 109,562

The most significant increase refers to:

— 73,579 Euro for the overturning of consortium costs on the part of the specific
companies, and mostly pertaining to works for the New Milan Expo Fair Center;

— 34,449 Euro for subcontracting costs within the permanent organizations of
the Parent Company in Venezuela, Turkey, Rumania and Honduras.

Costs for use of assets owned by third parties, equal to 10,389 Euro (12,874 in

2003), include the following:

- rentals for 7,072 Euro;

— rentals and condominial expenses for 2,621 Euro;

— maintenance costs on third-party goods for 250 Euro;

— other rental costs for 446 Euro.

The depreciation of credits entered in the current assets, equal to 3,100 Euro,

is attributable to the prudential allocation of the risk of non-payment linked to

certain receivables from various creditors of the Parent Company (2,000 Euro)

and of our subsidiary Romstrade S.r.I. (1,100 Euro); this is described in detalil

in the section on the provision for doubtful debtors.



— The net utilization equal to 10,428 Euro is the result of the difference between
the provisions made in the year, equal to 32,227 Euro (32,985 Euro on Decem-
ber 31st, 2003), and availments for 42,655 Euro (32,011 Euro on December
31st, 2003).

— Other operating costs total 14,456 Euro, an increase of 742 Euro with respect-
to the previous year; they are represented by the following items.

other operating costs

2003 change

extraordinary charges and non-existent liabilities

due to value adjustments. 7,018 5,857 1,161
fiscal charges 3,625 4,201 (676)
other administrative costs 2,811 2,680 131
agency expenses 629 740 (111)
capital losses on sales of assets 473 236 237
total 14,456 13,714 742

For the purpose of greater clarity it should be noted that other tax charges mainly
refer to indirect taxes such as stamp duty, ICI (local property tax), government
concessionsand registration taxes incurred in Italy and abroad.

In addition — with regards to adjustment extraordinary items and non-existence of
assets — the entry mainly includes the differences in estimates derived from the
overturning of costs for the specific companies in the previous year.

Finally, it should be noted — as previously discussed in Costs of Raw Materials —
that the year 2003 was reclassified for customs charges.

C.15/ C.16 - Financial income: Euro 27,568
Financial income from the financial statements of the previous year (18,629 Euro)

reported a net increase of 8,939 Euro during 2004, and their breakdown (with a
comparison to the previous year) is shown in the table that follows.

financial income

2003 change

income from subsidiaries 741 2,878 (2,137)
income from associated companies 5 1 4
income from other shareholdings - 8 (8)
other financial income:
— interest versus third parties 16,618 6,563 10,055
— income from hedging operations 5,320 4,830 490
— bank interest 2,043 3,361 (1,318)
— income from alienation of securities

and capital gains on own shares 1,872 24 1,848
- commissions on guarantees 661 682 (21)
— interest on third party loans 308 282 26

total 27,568 18,629 8,939
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interest

Income from non-consolidated subsidiaries includes dividends distributed to the
Parent Company by Astaldi Rwanda Ass.Mom. which was liquidated for 97 Euro,
and by Porrettana S.c.r.l. (liquidated for 114 Euro), as well as the dividends dis-
tributed to our subsidiary Astaldi International Ltd. by Astaldi Rwanda Association
Momentanée (liquidated during the course of the year for 65 Euro) and by Astaldi
International Malawi JV (liquidated in the past year for 449 Euro)

The increase in receivable interest versus third parties results from — as previous-
ly highlighted — the settlement of the arbitration ruling relating to the construction
of the Zagabria-Gorizan Highway whose effects were partially allocated in the cor-
responding provision while awaiting collection.

The item “Income from alienation of securities” includes income realized during the
course of the year for the assignment of Own Shares, totalling 1,308 Euro. Finally,
it is useful to note that net income from exchange rate fluctuations in 2003 — in
compliance with the provisions of Legislative Decree n. 6 of January 17th, 2003 —
has been reclassified from item C16 - Other financial Income to item C17 bis - Ex-
change Rate Gains (Losses).

C.17 - Interest payable and similar charges: Euro 40,669
Interest payable and similar charges for the year — which in the previous year

amounted to 40,034 Euro — increased by 635 Euro. The breakdown is given in the
following table.

payable and similar charges

2003 change
bond loan interest 9,750 9,750 -
commissions on guarantees 6,300 5,788 512
long term debt bank interests 6,028 4,962 1,066
hedging operation costs 4,778 2,580 2,198
factoring interests and costs 4,203 4,277 (74)
discount and other financial charges 4,024 4,708 (684)
short term bank borrowing interests 3,745 5,880 (2,135)
bank fees and commissions 1,085 1,250 (165)
issue discount on bonded loan amortization 502 502 -

254 337 (83)
40,669 40,034 635

Finally, it is useful to note that net income from exchange rate fluctuations in 2003
— in compliance with the provisions of Legislative Decree n. 6 of January 17th,
2003 — has been re-classified from item C17 - Interest Payable and Similar
Charges to item C17 bis - Exchange Rate Gains (Losses).

C17 bis — Exchange Rate Gains (Losses): Euro 5,106

The item in question includes the following in the exchange rate losses:

- 4,322 Euro for negative differences realized in connection with the permanent
organizations in Guinea Conakry and Bissau which substantially completed
their operational activities and initiated liquidation operations;

— 4,444 Euro for part of the conversion deficit that accrued with the subsidiary
Astaldi de Venezuela C.A. since it was considered a lasting value loss. This
item can be broken down as follows.



exchange rate gains (losses)

2003 change
exchange rate gains 8,039 6,599 1,440
exchange rate losses (13,145) (11,133) (2,012)
total (5,106) (4,534) (572)

In order to better clarify the item in question, it is useful to note that the valuation
component deriving from the adjustment of currency items — in accordance with
paragraph 8-bis of Article 2426 of the Italian Civil Code — yielded a net loss of
170 Euro that is exclusively attributable to the Parent Company.

D - Value adjustments with respect to investments: Euro (10,792)

The aggregate in question shows a negative balance of 10,792 Euro (-6,485 Euro
in 2003), as detailed below.

Revaluation of equity investments: Euro 995
This item — totalling 995 Euro on December 315t 2004 — underwent a decrease
of 1,686 Euro and excusively refers to the revaluationof equity investments that
were valuated with the net equity method.
The main changes include:
- amongst subsidiaries:
- Astaldi Mozambico J.V. for 375 Euro;
— Astaldi Sénégal Association en Participation for 177 Euro;
— Astur Construction and Trade A.S. for 235 Euro;
- amongst associated companies:
- S.E.I.S. S.p.A. for 205 Euro;

Revaluation of securities and credits entered into current assets Euro 1,543

This item — reporting a valuation of 1,543 Euro in the accounts — increased by
1,353 Euro with respect to the previous year, and completely refers to the use of
the devaluation fund for securities entered in current assets — booked in the pre-
vious years for the purpose of re-aligning the value of the underlying assets to the
sustained cost in relation to the specific price that is deduced from the market
trend at the end of the financial year.

Devaluation of equity investments: Euro 4,695

This item — which was recorded for 7,840 Euro in the previous year — had a net
increase of 3,145 Euro and refers to losses due to shareholding companies, lev-
elled for a total of 352 Euro, in addition to the devaluation of equity investments
for a total of 4,343 Euro,of which 4,278 Euro through allocation to the equity in-
vestment risk provision. For greater clarity and comparability of the data — even
in reference to the previous year — the same breakdown prepared for the year
closing on December 315t 2004 is given below.
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a) Balanced losses

balanced losses

2003 change
from subsidiaries 256 875 (619)
from associated companies 96 2,862 (2,766)
from other companies 261 (261)
total 3,998 (3,645)

The most significant losses include:
— Those relevant to subsidiaries:
— Legnami Pasotti Italia I.C. S.r.l. in liquidation for 250 Euro;
— Those relevant to associated companies:
- S.A.A.L.P. S.n.c. in liquidation for 77 Euro.
The remaining part — 25 Euro — refers to the closing of allocation plans forcom-
panies in voluntary liquidation.

b) Write-down of equity investments

write-down of equity investments: analytical breakdown

2003 change
from subsidiaries 20 104 (84)
from associated companies 24 33 (9)
from shareholdings 21 11 10
total 148 (83)

The write-downs equal to 65 Euro are derived from the joint effect of the devalua-
tion of equity investments in companies in liquidation, and the capital transactions
in other non-consolidated shareholding companies.

c) Provisions for equity investments risks

The provisions for equity investments risks reserve of 4,278 Euro can be broken
down as follows.

provisions for equity investments risks
2003 change
from subsidiaries 2,676 2,523 153
from associated companies 505 1,171 (666)
from other companies 1,097 - 1,097
total 3,694 584

This item — which in the previous year totalled 3,694 Euro — refers to the alloca-
tion of part of the balance sheet deficit, with particular reference to companies in
liguidation or those which have substantially completed their operating activities.
The main allocations include those relevant to the subsidiaries Legnami Pasotti
Italia 1.C. S.r.I. in liquidation (2,089 Euro), Seac S.p.a.r.l. (259 Euro), IFC due
S.c.r.l. in liquidation (92 Euro), Diga di Arcichiaro S.c.r.l. in liquidation (46 Euro),



Tecro S.c.r.l. in liquidation (100 Euro), Bussentina S.c.r.l. in liquidation (47 Euro),

as well as the associated companies Astaldi Ferrocemento J.V. Pakistan (95 Euro),

Piceno S.c.r.l. in liquidation (104 Euro), Alosa immobiliare S.p.A. in liquidation

(228 Euro), Isclero S.c.r.l. in liquidation (21 Euro) and other shareholding compa-

nies such as Comet J.V. (917 Euro) and Imprese Riunite Genova Seconda S.c.r.l.

in liqguidation (180 Euro).

Write-down of securities and credits entered into current assets: Euro 8,635

This item — totalling 1,518 Euro in the accounts of the previous year — reported

a net increase of 7,117 Euro, and almost entirely represents the allocations made

to the delayed interest payment risks reserve during the present year within the

permanent organizations of the Parent Company in Croatia and Congo.

E - Extraordinary income (charges): Euro (4,552), Euro (4,982) in 2003

e Extraordinary income is almost entirely composed of items of an extraordinary

nature and non-existence of assets for 8,222 Euro (8,158 Euro in 2003).

The most significant include:

extraordinary income resulting from the use of the limited tax credit of the
subsidiary R.I.C. S.p.A. (merged by incorporation into Italstrade S.p.A.) for
315 Euro;

extraordinary income resulting from the actual credit for taxes paid abroad,
totalling 1,585 Euro, and used in compliance with the current legislation re-
gulating this area;

extraordinary income resulting from the acknowledgment — on the part of
the financial administration of the Parent Company — of the credit reque-
sted for refund and pertaining to IRAP (regional production tax, 427 Euro)
and Invim (tax on increasing real estate value, 43 Euro);

extraordinary income resulting from the higher provision for taxation made
in the previous year by our subsidiary Astaldi de Venezuela C.A. for 847
Euro;

extraordinary income resulting from the higher provision for taxation madein
the previous year by the permanent organization of the Parent Company in
Venezuela for 549 Euro;

extraordinary income resulting from the greater costs that were previously
allocated to the Parent Company and relating to services provided for 1,178
Euro.

e Extraordinary charges recorded in the accounts for a total of 12,774 Euro —

against 13,140 Euro in 2003 — include contractual charges, taxes from pre-

vious years, damages, extraordinary costs and non-existence of assets, tran-

sactions, and other charges ofresidual value.

The most significant items include:

1,488 Euro relating to taxes of previous years and primarily accruing for the
Parent Company for 988 Euro, Italstrade CCCF JV Romis S.r.I. for 223 Euro
and Romairport S.r.I. for 243 Euro;
2,453 Euro as the difference reported while valuating certain items relating
to services of a non-operational but rather accessory nature, and accruing
for permanent foreign organizations;
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- 8,833 Euro resulting from the aggregate of extraordinary items, non-exi-
stenceof assets, damage and accidents, transactions, fines and otherchar-
ges of residual value.

22 - Income taxes: Euro (12,886)
This item—recorded in the previous year for 6,858 Euro, includes current taxes of
the Parent Company and of other consolidated companies for 11,526 Euro, and

1,360 Euro for the net effects of deferred and prepaid taxes; these are determined
as follows.

income taxes

2003
total irpeg total irap total

temporary fiscal effect differences fiscal effect fiscal

differences 34% for irap 4.25% effect
prepaid taxes
unpaid director emoluments (0) (0) - - (0)
— unpaid emoluments 485 165 - - 165
— recovery of unpaid emoluments (485) (165) - - (165)
costs accruing in other years (3) (0) 25 (1) (1)
- agency 136 47 79 3 51
— agency (recovery from past years) (93) (32) (54) (2) (34)
— other postponed costs - - - - -
— other postponed costs (recovery from past years) (46) (16) (27) (2) (18)
taxed reserves 21,780 7,405 12,189 519 7,924
— allocation to contractual risk reserves 29,231 9,939 17,062 726 10,665
— use of contractual risk reserves (7,988) (2,716) (4,873) (207) (2,923)
— allocation to equity investment risk reserves 1,075 366 - 366
— use of equity investment risk reserves (538) (183) - (183)
— allocation to provision for doubtful debtors - - - -
— use of provision for doubtful debtors - - - -
— allocation to delayed interest payment reserves - - - -
— use of delayed interest payment reserves - - - -
adjustments fron previous years - - - -
total 21,777 7,405 12,214 518 7,923
deferred taxes
receivable dividends from equity investments 315 (107) - - (107)
— dividends to be distributed 315 (107) - - (107)
— recovery of dividends to be distributed - - - - -
receivable interest - - - - -
- interest to be distributed - - - - -
— recovery of interest to be distributed - - - - -
total 315 (107) - - (107)
net deferred (prepaid) taxes 7,298 12,214 518 7,816
fiscal losses 1,923 890 - - 890
— losses of the year- abroad 15,505 5,508 - - 5,508
— losses of the year- Italy - - - - -
— recovered losses from previous years- abroad (6,535) (2,222) - - (2,222)
— recovered losses from previous years- Italy (7,047) (2,396) - - (2,396)

prepaid taxes pertaining to fiscal losses
of the previous year - - - - -
net 24,015 8,188 12,214 518 8,706




(23) (7) - - (7)
462 152 - - 152
(485) (160) - - (160)
(21) (7) (12) (1) (7)
115 38 67 3 41
(113) (37) (66) (3) (40)
(23) (8) (13) (1) (8)
(7,386) (2,437) (6,157) (262) (2,699)
30,307 10,001 17,690 752 10,753
(40,856) (13,482) (23,848) (1,014) (14,496)
(472) (156) - - (156)
(5,000) (1,650) - - (1,650)
8,635 2,849 - - 2,849
(21) (] - 56 49
(315) 104 - - 104
(315) 104 - - 104
13,137 (4,335) - - (4,335)
13,137 (4,335) - - (4,335)
(6,690) (6,170) (206) (6,897)

3,872 1,258 - - 1,257
4,910 1,620 - - 1,620
(1,038) (363) - - (363)
12,970 4,280 4,280
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The net amount recorded in the accounts as prepaid tax is equal to 5,900 Euro and
exclusively refers to the subsidiary Italstrade S.p.A..

This effect was therefore recorded — in accordance with the principleof prudence
and local tax regulations — as there is reasonable certainty,backed by objective
supporting information including multi-year forecasts, of theexistence of sufficient
levels of taxable income in future years.

It should also be noted that there were no allocations of deferred taxes for non-dis-
tributed income from subsidiaries and associated companies given that this distribu-
tion is not expected. The residual credit for prepaid taxes equal to 13,983 Euro — to
be recovered in future years — is substantially attributable to a combination of resid-
ual fiscal losses (Astaldi Construction Corporation and ltalstrade S.p.A.), funds of a
civil and tax law nature that were not deducted and not utilized for tax purposes in
their respective years of accrual, as well as other temporary taxation differences of
residual value. This amount — recorded in the receivables of current assets, and
which will be recovered in subsequent years — includes the following.

residual credit for prepaid taxes

amounts ires irap total
1) temporary differences deductible in upcoming years
— provision for risks in the accounts (item b3a+b3b) 40,202
— allowance for doubtful receivables decreasing asset value 6,254
(a) total provisions in the accounts 46,456
including:
— taxed contractual risk reserves 33,935 11,199 833 12,032
— taxed provision for equity investment risks 743 245 - 245
— taxed provision for risk on receivables 739 244 - 244
— delayed interest payment reserves 8,635 2,850 - 2,850
(b) total taxation on provisions 44,052
— foreign fiscal losses 13,230 4,448 - 4,448
— fiscal losses in Italy 17,880 5,900 - 5,900
— directors’ and board of auditors’ fees 462 152 - 152
— osts accrued in other years 382 126 9 135
total deductible temporary differences 1) 44,896 25,164 842 26,006
2) temporary differences taxable in upcoming years
— provision for fiscal risks 21,667 (7,150) (538) (7,688)
— delayed interest payments 13,137 (4,335) (4,335)
total temporary taxable differences 2) 34,804 (11,485) (538) (12,023)
receivable totals (1+2) 13,679 304 13,983

With regards to that given in the Notes to the financial statements closing on

31/12/20083, the following is noted:

1. Recording of that contained in the P.V.C. relating to the presumed tax omission for
the so-called contractor’s reserves was notified to the Company and the incorpora-
ted Gruppo Dipenta S.p.A..

— With regards to the years 1997 and 1998, the Rome 1 Revenue Office notified
the Company with two separate notices of assessment; these concerned the
analogous disputes raised in reference to the incorporated Company Gruppo
Dipenta and confirming the increasing recoveries in the quantitative content, as
had been already previously and officially agreed for tax years 1996-7. These
notices were settled in the month of December 2004 by means of an overall
payment of 357 Euro which included sanctions and interest.



— For the years 1997 and 1998, the Rome 1 Revenue Office has fundamentally
settled these remarks with the undersigning of the judicial conciliation deeds in
the past month of December and with the office of competence. Since the
amount of that settlement has still not been paid (474 Euro), it remains alloca-
ted in the specific provision for risks.

— or the year 1999, the Rome 4 Revenue Office has notified a notice of as-
sessment, thereby confirming — from a quantitative point of view — the ad-
justments which were previously agreed upon. As described above, even
this notice — for which the Parent Company has already presented an as-
sessment request with assent — may be considered to be fundamentally
settled. It should be noted that the relevant charge — equal to 427 Euro
gross of the relative sanctions — remains allocated in the specific provision
for risks.

2. Recording of that contained in the P.V.C. notified to the Company and concerning the
presumed non-deductibility of the losses suffered by some joint ventures - located in
non-EU countries and covered by the Parent Company in fiscal years 1997, 1998 and
1999, pursuant to Art. 61, sub-sec. 5, T.U.l.R. (Unified Text on Income Tax).

— For the years 1997 and 1998, the remarks which were previously contested by

the Rome 1 Revenue Office were substantially settled by effect of the judicial
conciliation deed that was undersigned by the Office itself after the impugnment
of the notices of assessment.
During the conciliation, the Office — in compliance with the position held by the
Regional Revenue Office of Lazio — agreed with the defensive theory of the
Company, particularly in reference to inapplicability of Article 61, paragraph 3
bis, of the TUIR to the case disputed by the auditors; the Office therefore con-
firmed renewal of the latter within the realm of paragraph 5 of the cited Article
61 of the T.U.I.R.. At the outcome of the conciliation the original finding — ove-
rall equal to 22,749 Euro — was settled with a greater taxable amount totalling
158 Euro. The charge relating to this settlement was equal to 96 Euro (gross of
sanctions).

— For the year 1999, the Rome 4 Revenue Office disputed the Parent Company’s
claim regarding the presumed non-deductibility of losses, and totalling 9,537
Euro. As described above, even this notice — for which the Parent Company
has already presented an assessment request with assent — may be considered
substantially settled. The relative charge is equal to 5 Euro (gross of sanctions).

Transactions with related parties

In accordance with the provisions of CONSOB (Italian Securities and Exchange
Commission) communication no. 97001574 of February 20”‘, 1997 and no.
98015375 of February 27th 1998, the most significant amounts resulting from
transactions of a financial and commercial nature with non-consolidated share-
holding companies are given below.

It should be noted, however, that the relationships entered into with consortia and
consortium companies (the so-called purpose companies), and considering the
particular sector in which the Company operates, must be correlated with the
rights of receivables due from third parties — entered in the item Trade receivables
(C.11.1) — and which are not summarized in the following table.
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transactions with correlated

parties

trade financial total commercial net trade
receivables assets receivable debts receivables
balance

subsidiaries not consolidated

Astaldi Burundi Association Momentanée 650 - 650 694 -
Associacién Accidental Astaldi S.p.A. - C.B.l. S.r.l. 322 - 322 - 322
Astaldi International Inc - - - 388 -
Astaldi International JV Mozambique 1,660 - 1,660 11 1,649
Astaldi Sénégal Association en participation 3,536 - 3,536 - 3,536
Astur Construction and Trade A.S. 244 - 244 594 -
Bussentina S.c.r.l in liguidation 838 - 838 70 769
C.0.MES.S. S.c.r.l. 785 - 785 3,608 -
CO.ME.NA. S.c.r.l. 37 - 37 336 -
CO.NO.CO. S.c.r.l. 1,043 - 1,043 2,252 -
Colli Albani S.c.r.l. in liquidation 819 2 821 355 464
Consorzio A.R.Z.Ast.-R.I.C.ZAIRE in liquidation 379 - 379 191 188
Consorcio Astaldi-C.B.I. 4,264 789 5,053 418 3,847
Consorzio Astaldi-C.M.B.Due in liquidation 2,191 - 2,191 7 2,184
Consorzio Olbia Mare in liquidation 145 3 148 - 145
Cospe S.c.r.l. 337 - 337 - 337
Diga di Arcichiaro S.c.r.l. in liquidation 299 - 299 186 113
DIP.A. S.c.r.l. in liquidation 124 - 124 130 -
DP 2M S.c.r.l. in liquidation 1 44 45 25 -
Eco Po Quattro S.c.r.l. 1,137 - 1,137 527 610
Euroast S.r.l. in liquidation 173 369 542 1 172
Fiorbis Scrl in liguidation - - - 5 -
Forum S.c.r.l. 1,036 - 1,036 1,080 -
I.F.C. Due S.c.r.l. in liquidation 1,836 - 1,836 97 1,739
I.F.C. S.c.r.l. in liquidation 575 - 575 - 575
Legnami Pasotti Italia I.C. Srl in liquidation 2,677 - 2,677 - 2,677
Linea A S.c.r.l. in liquidation 15 - 15 281 -
Montedil-Astaldi S.p.A. (MONTAST) in liquidation 136 20 156 24 113
Mormanno S.c.r.l. in liquidation 2 64 66 2 1
Palese Park Srl - - - 709 -
Portovesme S.c.r.| 1,069 - 1,069 3,854 -
Quattro Venti S.c.r.l. 2,726 - 2,726 2,587 138
Redo Ass. Moment. 961 - 961 45 917
S. Filippo S.c.r.l. in liguidation 1,327 - 1,327 89 1,238
S. Leonardo S.c.r.l. in liquidation 2,630 - 2,630 808 1,822
Seac S.p.a.r.l. 8,106 - 8,106 510 7,596
Silva S.r.I. in liquidation 28 21 49 - 28
Susa Dora Quattro S.c.r.l. 3,071 - 3,071 12,349 -
TE.CRO. S.c.r.l. in liquidation 147 776 923 82 65
Todaro S.r.l. in liquidation 1 - 1 3 -
Toledo Scrl in liguidation 2,557 - 2,557 2,811 -
Tri.Ace. S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation 561 - 561 411 150
Viadotti di Courmayeur S.c.r.l. 617 - 617 62 555
Viadotto Fadalto S.c.r.l. in liquidation 42 - 42 - 42
others 5 1 6 9 6
total subsidiaries not consolidated 49,112 2,089 51,201 35,611 31,997




net trade revenues from costs of financial financial extraordinary extraordinary

payables rendered services production costs returns costs revenues
balance

44 - - - - - —
388 - - - - - -
- 5 - - - - -
350 - 4,146 - - - -
— 7 7 _ — — —
2,822 220 6,258 - 13 8 31
300 175 3,954 - - 4 -
1,210 260 4,883 - 9 - -
- 40 1 - - - -
- 83 811 - - - -
6 - 9 - - - -
23 - - - - - -
- 7 46 - 17 - -
- - - - 3 - -
5 — - — — - -
44 43 282 - - - -
— — — — 61 - —
- 167 - - 151 - -
266 - 45 - - - -
- — - - — 15 -
709 - - - - - -
2,785 266 4,674 - 9 - -
- 587 4,993 - 41 15 -
— — - — — 1 -
9,278 523 19,417 - 43 - -
- - 172 - - - -
2 — — — — — —
254 79 6,203 - - 2 -
— 4 2 — — - -
- - 91 — — - -
9 1 1 - - - 1
18,495 2,467 55,995 - 347 45 32

(table follows)
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transactions with correlated parties

trade financial total commercial net trade
receivables assets receivable debts receivables
balance

associated companies not consolidated

Adduttore Ponte Barca S.c.r.l. - - - 254 -
Almo S.c.r.l. in liquidation 10 - 10 13 -
Alosa Immobiliare SpA in liquidation 9 1,145 1,154 11 -
Astaldi - Ferrocemento J.V. 814 261 1,075 33 781
Astaldi Bayndir J.V. 6,451 - 6,451 489 5,962
Astaldi Maroc S.A. - - - 3 -
Avola S.c.r.l. in liquidation 686 - 686 162 524
Blufi 1 S.c.r.l. in liquidation 48 - 48 - 48
C.F.M. S.c.r.l. in liquidation 42 - 42 207 -
Cogital S.p.A. in liquidation 147 - 147 3 144
Consorcio Brundisium - - - 4 -
Consorcio DEI - - - 4 -
Consorcio Grupo Contuy 716 - 716 1,474 -
Consorzio A.F.T. (Algerian Branch) 1,224 - 1,224 678 546
Consorzio AFT Kramis 18,348 - 18,348 11,893 6,456
Consorzio A.F.T. 75 - 75 - 75
Consorcio Astaldi-ICE 417 - 417 - 417
Consorzio Bonifica Lunghezza - - - 4 -
Consorzio C.I.R.C. in liquidation 11 - 11 667 -
Consorzio Carnia 433 - 433 18 416
Consorzio C.E.A.A.V. 944 - 944 498 446
Consorzio Co.Fe.Sar. 264 - 264 453 -
Consorzio Cogitau S.c.n.c. in liquidation 457 - 457 1 457
Consorzio Consarno 35 227 262 - 35
Consorzio Consavia S.c.n.c. in liquidation 62 - 62 4 58
Consorcio Contuy Medio 457 117 574 253 204
Consorzio Dipenta S.p.A.-Ugo Vitolo in liquidation - - - 2 -
Consorzio Ferrofir in liquidation 45 - 45 6,556 -
Consorzio Gi.lt. in liquidation - - - 194 -
Consorzio Iricav Due 119 - 119 2,066 -
Consorzio Iricav Uno 2,462 - 2,462 22,149 -
Consorzio Ital.Co.Cer. - - - 150 -
Consorzio Italvenezia - - - 81 -
Consorzio L.A.R. in liguidation 181 1,304 1,485 1,261 -
Consorzio Ponte Stretto di Messina 217 - 217 - 217
Consorzio Qalat 5 - 5 1,138 -
Consorzio Recchi S.p.A.- Astaldi S.p.A. 69 610 679 1,396 -
Consorzio Tre Fontane in liquidation - - - 1 -
Diga di Blufi S.c.r.l. 6,554 - 6,554 3,865 2,689
Ecosarno S.c.r.l. - 118 118 1,008 -
Fiume Santo Mare S.c.r.l. in liquidation - - - 1 -
Fosso Canna S.c.r.l. in liquidation 182 204 386 117 65
Groupement Cir S.p.A. 18 - 18 - 18
Groupement Eurolep - - - 9 -
Groupement Italgisas 944 - 944 19 925
HECA SpA in liquidation 168 15 183 46 122
Hydro Honduras S.A. - - - 105 -
Infraflegrea S.c.r.l. 237 - 237 2,235 -
Isclero S.c.r.l. in liquidation 200 1,518 1,718 1,592 -
Italsagi Sp. Zo. O. 1 - 1 - 1
Italsagi Sp. Zo. O. 367 - 367 - 367

M.N. Metropolitana di Napoli S.p.A. 113 - 113 - 113




net trade revenues from costs of financial financial extraordinary extraordinary

payables rendered services production costs returns costs revenues
balance

254 - 48 - - - -
3 8 - - - 2 3
2 6 - - - - -
— 3 - — - - —
- - 489 - - - -
3 — — — — - —
- 2 1 - - - 12
165 - 24 - 5 28 -
- - - - - 6
4 — — — — — —
3 - - _ _ - -
758 - - - - - -
- 18,986 11,379 - 140 8 -
— 16 - — - - —
4 - 1 - - - -
656 124 48 - - - 124
— — - — — 13 -
- 1,113 1,117 - - 1 -
189 - 76 - - - -
- - - - 26 - 72
2 — - - - - -
6,511 30 872 - - 4 -
194 - 29 - - - -
1,947 64 - - - 17 -
19,687 657 28,479 - - 279 -
150 - 104 11 - 1 -
81 - 7 - - - -
1,080 - 1,261 - - - -
- 217 - - - - -
1,133 - 2 - - - -
1,327 - 610 - - - 52
1 — - — — - -
- 86 2 - 3 - -
1,008 - 748 - - - -
1 — — — — — —
- - - - 10 - 24
9 — - — — - -
— - - — - 46 —
105 - - - - - -
1,998 231 3,043 - - - -
1,393 90 - - - - -
- 6 - 41 - - 12

(table follows)
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transactions with correlated parties

trade financial total commercial net trade
receivables assets receivable debts receivables
balance

associated companies not consolidated

ME.SA. S.c.r.l. in liquidation - - - 3 -
Messina Stadio S.c.r.l. 3,068 2,508 5,576 1,862 1,206
Metro Veneta S.c.r.l. 1,433 - 1,433 4,692 -
Metrogenova S.c.r.l. 1,139 - 1,139 4,400 -
Monte Vesuvio S.c.r.l. 647 - 647 - 647
Mose Treponti S.c.r.l. 244 - 244 3,350 -
Nova Metro S.c.r.l. in liquidation 20 - 20 179 -
Nuovo Polo Fieristico Scrl 1,496 - 1,496 11,040 -
Pegaso S.c.r.l. 3,809 - 3,809 2,297 1,512
Piana di Licata S.c.r.l. in liquidation 475 - 475 139 336
Piceno S.c.r.l. in liquidation 988 335 1,323 875 114
Pont Ventoux S.c.r.l. 9,860 - 9,860 25,748 -
Principe Amedeo S.c.r.l. in liquidation 512 - 512 232 280
Priolo Siracusa S.c.r.l. - - - 168 -
Raggruppamento Astaldi-Vianini in liquidation 80 - 80 - 80
S.A.A.L.P. S.n.c. in liquidation 82 458 540 158 -
S.A.C.E.S. S.r.l. in liquidation - - - 1,698 -
S.E.l.S. S.p.A. 1 125 126 - 1
S.E.P.Soc. en Partic.Ast S.p.A. - 16 16 22 -
Sa.Di.Pe. S.c.r.l. in liquidation 15 - 15 - 15
Santangelo S.c.r.l. in liquidation 41 156 197 - 40
SO.GE.DEP. S.r.l. in liguidation 270 271 541 285 -
S0.Gr.Es. S.c.p.A. in liguidation 50 - 50 - 50
Tangenziale Seconda S.c.r.l. in liquidation 128 - 128 7 120
Transeuropska Autocesta D.o.o 12 - 12 - 12
Truncu Reale S.c.r.l. 177 - 177 4 173
V.A.S.CO. Imprese Riunite 491 - 491 - 491
Val Pola S.c.r.l. in liquidation 22 - 22 - 22
Valle Caudina S.c.r.l. 904 119 1,023 2,462 -
Veneta Sanitaria Finanza di progetto S.p.A. 16 - 16 294 -
Vesuviana Strade S.c.r.l. 525 - 525 63 462
other minor amounts - 30 -

total associated companies not consolidated 70,038 9,537 79,545 121,093 26,647

other partecipated companies not consolidated

Aguas de San Pedro Sula S.A. 10 - 10 - 10
Bocca di Malamocco S.c.r.l. - - - 185 -
Comet J.V. 3,170 - 3,170 - 3,170
Consorzio Tagliamento 27 - 27 1 26
Consorzio Team 28 - 28 72 -
Consorzio TRA.DE.CI.V. 113 - 113 262 -
G.G.O. S.c.r.l. in liguidation 1 - 1 1 -
Imprese Riunite Genova Seconda S.c.r.l. in liquidation 1 - 1 - 1
Imprese Riunite Genova S.c.r.l. in liquidation - - - 227 -
Italstrade CCCF JV Bucaresti Srl 3 - 3 - 3
Napoli Porto S.c.r.l. in liquidation 62 - 62 - 62
Pantano S.c.r.l. - - - 2,273 -
Plus S.r.l. - 1,344 1,344 - -
Roma Lido S.c.r.l. - 274 274 754 -
Yellow River Contractors J.V. 92 - 92 1 90
other minor amounts 28 - 28 99 54
total other partecipated companies not consolidated 3,533 1,618 5,151 3,875 3,416

total 122,684 13,244 135,898 160,579 62,060



net trade revenues from costs of financial financial extraordinary extraordinary

payables rendered services production costs returns costs revenues
balance
3 - 2 - - - -
- - 176 - 6 - -
3,259 139 5,506 - 41 1 -
3,260 498 4,952 - - - -
- 24 178 - - - 24
3,107 171 3,480 - - - -
159 - 72 - - - -
9,544 3,040 169,009 - - 2 -
- 2,658 10,664 - 1 32 44
15,888 804 13,753 - 103 6 -
- 13 - - - 42 3
168 - 162 - - - -
76 - - - - - 82
1,698 - - - - - -
22 - 3 - - - -
- - - - - - 26
15 - - - 7 - -
- 1 - - - - -
— - 1 — 2 - —
- 34 23 - 2 - -
1,558 554 1,978 - 125 14 -
278 23 3 - - - -
- 194 798 - 8 - -
2 20 18

77,700 29,794 259,120 52 479 514 484
185 - - - - - -
44 - - - - 9 -
149 15 228 - - - -
- - 5 - - 11 -
227 - - - - - -
— — 9 — — — —
2,273 - 1,697 - - - -
754 - 314 - - - -
123 12 - - - 65 -
3,756 27 2,253 - - 85 -
99,951 32,288 317,368 Y 826 644 516

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For greater clarity, it should be noted that the most significant amounts included
in the receivables refer to the support provided to organizations that were estab-
lished for the execution of specific contracts — both in Italy and abroad — and in-
clude provision of goods and services (in particular. industrial equipment, con-
struction means, support of specialized personnel, etc.), as well as financial sup-
port. The latter, however, are deemed to be of a commercial nature — considering
their specific connection with the activity sector in which the group operates, as
well as the particular legal structure of the organizations in question which re-
quires associates to share profits, assets and financial assets of individual ven-
tures on a pro-rata basis.

Regarding debts and payables, it should be noted that the nature of these is main-
ly attributable to the allocation of consortium costs by purpose companies that
were established solely for the execution of the specific works.

The following table summarizes the net change, with respect to 2003, in debit and
credit transactions existing with subsidiary and associated companies.

net change in debit and credit transactions with subsidiaries and associated companies

creditors debtors
company 2003 difference 2003 difference
subsidiaries 31,631 31,997 366 19,471 18,495 (976)
associated companies 37,563 26,649 (10,914) 60,670 77,703 17,033
total 69,194 58,646 (10,548) 80,141 96,198 16,057

Regarding the changes indicated in the above statement, it should be noted that
the most significant differences refer to debt versus associated companies and
mostly pertaining to the overturning of the costs of the companies Nuovo Polo
Fieristico S.c.r.l. and Consorzio Iricav Uno, as well as the debt of the shareholding
Metrogenova S.c.r.l. which was reclassified from the payables due to other share-
holdings during the course of 2004. In any case, these differences should be con-
sidered typical for the sector in which the companies operate.

Average number of employees
The average number of employees for the reference period, by category, is as follows.

average number of employees

managers 98
cadres 30
clerks 1.348
workers 5.048




Remuneration to Directors, Auditors and General
Managers

The remuneration due to Directors, Auditors and General Managers of the Parent
Company for carrying out these functions — even in other subsidiary companies —
is outlined in the following table.

remuneration of directors auditors and general managers

office duration emoluments non- bonus other
held in office for the monetary & other compensation
office benefits incentives
Anselmino Adriano Honorary Chairman 01/03/2004 10,330
Monti Ernesto Chairman 31/12/2006 26,000 210,000"
750 ™
Astaldi Paolo Deputy Chairman 31/12/2006 26,000 200,000 @
750 @
260,549"
Di Paola Vittorio Executive Deputy Chairman 31/12/2006 26,000 360,094 © 597,893 @
and CEO 153,084
Astaldi Pietro Director 31/12/2006 26,000 205,908 @
10,500®
3,500 @
Astaldi Caterina Director 31/12/2006 26,000 76,097 ©
Cerri Stefano Director and General Manager 31/12/2006 26,000 111,349 © 298,091 ©
10,000 ®
Cafiero Giuseppe Director and General Manager 31/12/2006 6,500 111,349 ® 343,480 ©
Grassini Franco Director 31/12/2006 26,000 750®
Guidobono
Cavalchini Luigi Director 31/12/2006 26,000 750 @
Lecchi Bruno Director 31/12/2006 26,000
Lupo Mario Director 31/12/2006 26,000 750 ®
Mele Vittorio Director 31/12/2006 26,000 750
QOliva Nicola Director and General Manager 31/12/2006 6,500 111,349 © 363,960 ©
Poloni Maurizio Director 31/12/2006 26,000 750 ®
15,000 @
Pinto Eugenio Chairman of the Board
of Statutory Auditors 30/04/2005 52,020
Singer Pierpaolo Auditor 30/04/2005 34,680 1,500 @
Spand Pierumberto Auditor 30/04/2005 34,680

(1) Remuneration for offices held under Art. 2389, paragraph 3 of the Italian Civil Code.

(2) Remuneration for offices held in subsidiaries. in accordance with Art. 2389, paragraph 3 of the Italian Civil Code.
(3) Remuneration for the office of director in subsidiary companies.

(4) Remuneration for the office of auditor in subsidiary companies.

(5) Salaries.

(6) Assigning of summary options free of charge.
(7)
(8)
(9)

Remuneration as a member of the Remuneration Committee.
Remuneration as a member of the Internal Control Committee.
Remuneration as a member of the Supervisory Body.

With the Board of Directors’ resolutions of April 23rd, 2002 and May 9th, 2002,
and for the purpose of implementing the incentive plan, the Company assigned
shares owned by Astaldi — free of charge — to the following members of the
Board of Directors and General Managers.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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company sha

s assigned to memb

at the beginning
of the financial year financial year

options held options awarded

during the

options taken up

s of board of directors

during the
financial year

options expired
during the
financial year of the financial year

options held
at the end

(A) (B) m @ @B @ ©6) (6) 7 6 (9 (10) (11=1+4-7-10 (12)  (13)
Vittorio Executive Deputy Chairman

Di Paola CEO 203,000 203,000

Giuseppe Director &

Cafiero General Manager 105,000 105,000

Stefano  Director &

Cerri General Manager 105,000 105,000

(A) Name & Surname
(B) Office Held
(1) Number of options
(2) Average price for financial year
(3) Average expiry
(4) Number of options
(5) Average price for financial year
(6) Average expiry
(7) Number of options
(8) Average price for financial year
(9) Average price mercato all'esercizio
(10) Number of options
(11) Number of options
(12) Average price for financial year

(13) Average expiry

for The Board of Directors

The Chairman

(Prof. Ernesto Monti)

e 3 — o P
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exchange rates applied for the conversion of accounts in foreign currency (source: i.c.)
country currency exchange average

12.31.2003 exchange

2003

Albany lek ALL 126.251 127.269 133.548 136.715
Algeria Algerian Dinar DZD 95.955 87.915 83.006 85.480
Angola Readjustado Kwarza  AOA 115.363 103.607 95.605 83.517
Saudi Arabia Saudi Riyal SAR 5.021 4.658 4.601 4.236
Bolivia Boliviano BOB 10.836 9.907 9.537 8.649
Burundi Burundi Franc BIF 1,445.120 1,334.440 1,304.090 1,188.000
Caribbean Carib dollar XCD 3.620 3.356 3.317 3.050
Central Africa. C.F.A Repub. CFA Franc XAF 655.957 655.957 655.957 655.957
Chile Chilean Peso CLP 769.904 756.958 739.119 779.566
Colombia Colombian Peso COP 3,262.240 3,295.820 3,509.040 3,283.570
Democr. Republic of Congo Congolese Franc CDF 578.199 485.349 450.864 448.503
Costa Rica Colon Costa Rica CRC 592.148 535.701 499.327 443.516
Croatia Kuna HRK 7.554 7.489 7.670 7.557
Denmark Danish Crown DKK 7.434 7.440 7.442 7.431
Dominican Republic Dominican peso DOP 35.672 49.891 45.094 32.744
El Salvador Salvadorian Colon SvC 11.732 10.884 10.750 9.898
Japan Japanese Yen JPY 139.14 134.445 132.431 130.971
Gibuti Gibuti Franc DJF 238.279 220.35 217.392 200.951
Guatemala Quetzal GTQ 10.563 9.982 10.088 9.055
Guinea Guinean Franc GNF 3,470.052 3,470.052 2,450.980 2,240.710
Honduras Lempira HNL 25.016 22.656 22.042 19.752
Indonesia Indonesian Rupee IDR 12,368.500 11,117.800 10,421.700 9,679.260
Kenya Kenya Shilling KES 106.695 98.413 93.279 85.778
Libya Libyan Dinar LYD 1.743 1.627 1.651 1.437
Malawi Kwacha MWK 142.667 132.47 129.261 108.462
Morocco Moroccan Dirham MAD 11.152 11.013 11.012 10.812
Mozambique Metical MZM 25,396.100 27,217.700 28,296.600 26,004.000
Nicaragua Cordoba Oro NIO 21.788 19.799 18.952 17.025
Norway Norway Corona NOK 8.221 8.370 8.242 8.003
Pakistan Pakistani Rupee PKR 79.804 72.625 70.473 65.277
Qatar Riyal Qatar QAR 4.880 4.528 4.472 4.117
United Kingdom British pound GBP 0.695 0.679 0.702 0.692
Rumania Leu ROL 38,695.800 40,509.700 40,572.600 37,550.600
Rwanda Rwandan Franc RWF 741.977 696.109 684.282 596.179
Singapore Singapore Dollar SGD 2.201 2.102 2.102 1.970
United States US Dollar usbD 1.341 1.244 1.229 1.131
South Africa Rand ZAR 7.685 8.009 7.993 8.532
Switzerland Swiss Franc CHF 1.536 1.544 1.554 1.521
Taiwan Taiwanese Dollar TWD 43.135 41.506 41.780 38.852
Tanzania Tanzanian Shilling TZS 1,401.530 1,332.410 1,287.430 1,169.160
Thailand Baht THB 52.559 50.052 48.796 46.898
Tunisia Tunisinian Dinar TND 1.621 1.546 1.512 1.453
Turkey Turkish Lira TRL 1,870,690.000 1,777,052.000 1,761,551.000 1,694,851.000
European Monetary Union Euro EUR 1 1 1 1
Venezuela Bolivar VEB 2,567.820 2,337.200 1,960.780 1,829.430
Zambia Kwacha ZMK 6,073.100 5,917.130 5,749.130 5,411.830

The exchange rate concerns the amount of foreign currency necessary in order to

buy 1 euro.

(*) Source Banque Centrale — Republique de Guinée

Attachments to the consolidated financial statements
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consolidation area at 31st december

subsidiary companies

2004

m 1 ASTAC. Sl 100.00%
m 2 |talstrade S.p.A. (Ex Place Moulin S.p.A.) 100.00%
m 3 Astaldi International Ltd 100.00%
m 4 Astaldi de Venezuela C.A. 99.80%
m 5 Astaldi Construction Corp.Of Florida 99.80%
m 6 |[talstrade CCCF JV Romis S.r.l. 51.00%
m 7 Romstrade S.r.l. 51.00%
m 8 I|TS.S.p.A. 100.00%
m 9 |talstrade Somet JV Rometro S.r.l. 51.00%
m 10 S.U.G.C.T. S.A. Calarasi 50.53%
m 11 Astaldi Arabia Ltd. 100.00%
m 12 Astaldi Finance S.A. 99.96%
m 13 Romairport S.r.l. 99.26% *
m 14 Astaldi-Max Bogl-CCCF JV S.r.l. 50.00% *
other equity investments
15 Consorcio Metro Los Teques 30.00%

changes in the consolidation area

equity interests leaving the consolidation area

equity interests entering the consolidation area

equity equity

holding holding

1 Comet J.V. 15.00% * 1 Astaldi-Max Bogl-CCCF JV S.r.l. 50.00% *
2 R.I.C. - Railway International Construction S.p.A.  100.00% *
3 Legnami Pasotti Italia I.C. S.r.l. 80.00% *

NB: The companies marked =

are aggregated with the line by line method.

The others with the proportional method

The companies marked * ha

ve been changed in the financial year

Romairport S.r.I. changed holding % during the year.



reconciliation between the parent company's financial statements and the consolidated financial statements

net profit (loss)
equity for the year
31.12.2003 31.12.2003

equity and profit/loss for the year as stated
in the parent company's financial statements 254,625 31,277 229,665 12,017
(net of the conversion reserve)

conversion reserve (22,002) (18,594)

elimination of the carrying value of consolidated
equity interests:
- difference between carrying value
and pro rata value of equity 1,455 10,783
— pro-rata profit/loss of the companies invested in (1,137) (1,137) 4,020 4,020
— differences from consolidation - -

elimination of the effects of transactions
between consolidated companies:

— profit from intercompany transactions (5,475) - (5,475) 65
— amortization on intercompany sales 4,770 1,007 3,763 1,255
— provision for losses on consolidated companies 5,568 2,991 2,327 9,724
— coverage for losses of consolidated companies - 7 - 21,721
— dividends from consolidated companies (1,500) (6,992) (6,300) (27,934)
leasing under the financial method 7,387 454 6,933 1,526
equity and profit/loss for the year pertaining to the group 243,691 27,607 227,122 22,394
minority interest 91 508 158 (217)

equity and profit/loss for the year as stated
in the consolidated financial statements 243,782 28,115 227,280 22,177

Attachments to the consolidated financial statements
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changes in consolidated net equity

share share revaluation legal reserve for reserve for conversion
capital premium reserves reserve own own shares reserve
reserve shares purchasing (loss)
balance at 31 december 2001 58,421 8,757 14 4,962 361 20,413
2002 fluctuations
increase of share capital 20,300 42,630
free increase of share capital 4,883 (4,883)
bond loan conversion 14,821 21,332
profit allocation 1,662
distribution of dividends
change in (loss)
conversion reserve (27,661)
other changes 222 (361)
result of the period
balance at 31 december 2002 98,425 67,836 236 6,624 (7,248)
2003 fluctuations
setting-up of the reserve
for own shares purchasing 2,385 22,215
profit allocation 594 840
distribution of dividends
fund allocation as per art. 27
of the company's by-laws
change in (loss)
conversion reserve (12,186)
other changes
result of the period
balance at 31 december 2003 98,425 67,836 236 7,218 2,385 22,215 (18,594)
profit allocation 601
distribution of dividends
fund allocation as per art. 27
of the company's by-laws
change in (loss)
conversion reserve (3,408)
purchase (sale) own shares (1,487) 1,487

other changes

result of the period




extraordinary reserve for euro profit (loss) profit (loss) min. interest total
reserve special conversion carried for the period capital equity
liabilities difference forward and reserves
6,506 798 (2) 17,825 30,027 6 148,088
62,930
36,153
18,186 (3,224) (16,624)
(13,403) (13,403)
55 (27,606)
361 611 (196) 637
15,070 442 15,512
25,053 798 (2) 15,212 15,070 307 222,311
(9,670) (14,930)
6,288 2,343 (10,065)
(4,916) (4,916)
(89) (89)
73 (12,113)
4 (90) (5) (91)
22,395 (217) 22,178
21,675 798 (2) 2,535 22,395 158 227,280
5,066 10,331 (15,998)
(6,306) (6,306)
(90) (90)
(150) (3,558)
(1,234) (425) (1,659)
27,607 508 28,115

Attachments to the consolidated financial statements
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group companies

A - Consolidated companies with line by line method

Assistenza Sviluppo e Tecnologie Ausiliarie
alle Costruzioni (A.S.T.AC.) S.r.I.

Astaldi Arabia Ltd.

Astaldi Construction Corporation

Astaldi de Venezuela C.A.

Astaldi Finance S.A.

Astaldi International Ltd.

Astaldi-Max Bogl-CCCF JV S.r.l.

Italstrade CCCF JV Romis S.r.l.

Italstrade S.p.A.

Italstrade Somet JV Rometro S.r.l.
Romairport S.r.l.

Romstrade S.r.l.

S.U.G.C.T. S.A. Calarasi

Servizi Tecnici Internazionali - I.T.S. S.p.A.

B - Consolidated companies with proportional method

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

P.O. Box 58139 - Riad - Saudi Arabia

8220 State Road 85 Davie - Florida - U.S.A.

C.C. C.T. 1ra Etapa Piso 6 Of. 620 - Caracas - Venezuela
Boulevard du Prince Henri 19-21 - Luxembourg

34-36 Gray's Inn Road - London - United Kingdom
Str.Carol Davilla n°70 - Bucharest - Romania

Piata Pache Protopopescu. 9 - Bucharest - Romania

Via Agrigento. 5 - Rome - Italy

Str. Cap. Av. A. Serbanescu. 49 Sector 1 - Bucharest - Romania
Via G.V. Bona. 65 - Rome - Italy

Piata Pache Protopopescu. 9 - Bucharest - Romania
Varianta Nord. 1 - Calarasi - Romania

Via G.V. Bona. 65 - Rome - Italy

Consorcio Metro Los Teques

C- Companies consolidated with the equity method

Caracas - Venezuela

Astaldi International Inc.

Astaldi-Astaldi International J.V.
Astaldi-Burundi Association Momentanée
Astaldi-Ferrocemento J.V.

Astaldi-Sénégal Association en participation
Astur Construction and Trade A.S.
Copenhagen Metro Construction Group J.V. (COMET)
Euroast S.r.l. In liquidation

Legnami Pasotti Italia I.C. S.r.l. in liquidation
Redo-Association Momentanée

S.E.I.S. S.p.A.

Seac S.p.a.r.l. in liquidation

Yellow River Contractors

Bank of Liberia Building P.O. Box 660 - Monrovia - Liberia
R. Armando Tivane. 466 - Matola Maputo - Mozambique
Avenue de I'O.U.A. B.P. 325 - Bujumbura - Burundi

10-Ha Khayaban-E-Shujat - Karachi - Pakistan

Avenue Roume Dakar. 16 4éme G. S. - Dakar - Senegal
Aydinpinar Cad. Kucukmehmetler Koyu - Ankara - Turkey
Refshaleoen. 147 P.O. Box 1920 - Copenhagen - Denmark
Via G.V. Bona. 65 - Rome - Italy

Via Agrigento. 5 - Rome - Italy

B.P. 8734 - Dem. Republic of Congo

Via Monte Santo. 1 - Rome - Italy

Avenue des Fleurs - Kinshasa/Gombe - Dem. Republic of Congo
P.O. Box 073 - Luoyang - People's Republic of China

D - companies carried at cost

A.M.P. S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Adduttore Ponte Barca S.c.r.l. in liquidation
Aguas de San Pedro S.A. de C.V.

Almo S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Alosa Immobiliare S.p.A. in liquidation
Asociacion Accidental Astaldi S.p.A. - C.B.I. s.r.l.
Association en participation SEP Astaldi-Somatra-Bredero
Astaldi Africa S.p.A. in liquidation

Astaldi Bayindir J.V.

Astaldi-Caldart AS.CAL. S.c.r.l. in liquidation
Astaldi-Sarantopulos J.V.

Avola S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Blufi 1 S.c.rl. in liquidation

Bocca di Malamocco S.c.r.l.

Bussentina S.c.r.l. in liquidation

C.F.C. S.c.rl.

C.F.M. S.c.r.l. in liquidation

C.O.MES. s.C.r.l.

Carnia S.c.r.l. in liquidation

CO.ME.NA. S.c.r.l.

CO.NO.CO. s.c.r.l.

Co.Sa.Vi.D. S.c.r.l.

Cogital S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Colli Albani S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Consorcio Astaldi - C.B.I.

Consorcio Astaldi-ICE

Consorcio Contuy Medio

Consorcio DEI

Consorcio Grupo Contuy - Proyectos y Obras de Ferrocarriles
Consorzio A.F.T.

Consorzio A.F.T. Kramis

Viale Caduti di tutte le guerre, 7 - Bari - Italy

Via di Pietralata, 140 - Rome - Italy

Departamento de Cortes - San Pedro Sula - Honduras
Via privata D. Giustino, 3/A - Naples- Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Locality "El Portillo" - Tarija - Bolivia

Tunisia

Addis Abeba - Ethiopia

llkadim Sokak, 19 Gaziomanpasa- Ankara - Turkey
Via Giovanni Pacini, 12 - Palermo - Italy

Athens - Greece

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Zona Industriale - Agrigento - Italy

Via Salaria,1039 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via privata D. Giustino, 3/A - Naples - Italy

Via privata D. Giustino , 3/A - Naples - Italy

Via G.V.Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via Morghen, 36 - Naples - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Carini - Contrada Foresta Z.I. - Palermo - Italy

Viale Italia, 1 - Milan - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Av. Iturralde 1308 Esquina San Salvador - La Paz - Bolivia
Av. Libertador Bolivar, 1842 - Cochabamba - Bolivia
Avida Andres Bello, Ed. Atlantic Piso 7, Of. 1-7 - Venezuela
Via San Nazaro, 19 - Genoa - Italy

CCC T. 1ra Etapa Piso 6 Of. 620 Chuao - Caracas - Venezuela
Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy



par value of

%

%

entity holding

currency share owned owned indirect
capital directly indirectly investment
EUR 46,800.00 100.000% 0.000%
SAR 5,000,000.00 60.000% 40.000% Astaldi International Ltd.
uUs$ 4,290,000.00 90.000% 10.000% Astaldi de Venezuela
VEB 110,300,000.00 99.804% 0.000%
EUR 250,000.00 99.960% 0.000%
GBP 2,000,000.00 100.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,000.00 50.000% 0.000%
LEI 5,400,000,000.00 0.000% 51.000% Italstrade S.p.A.
EUR 25,563,340.00 100.000% 0.000%
LEI 22,000,000.00 0.000% 51.000% Italstrade S.p.A.
EUR 500,000.00 0.000% 99.260% Italstrade S.p.A.
LEI 10,000,000,000.00 0.000% 51.000% Italstrade S.p.A.
LEI 13,618,975,000.00 0.000% 50.367% Italstrade S.p.A.
EUR 232,200.00 0.000% 100.000% Astaldi International Ltd.
VEB 30.000% 0.000%
uUss$ 3,000,000.00 0.000% 100.000% Astaldi International Ltd.
US$ 10,000.00 0.000% 100.000% Astaldi International Ltd.
uss$ 50,000.00 0.000% 100.000% Astaldi International Ltd.
us$ 50,000.00 50.000% 0.000%
XOF 50,000,000.00 0.000% 100.000% Astaldi International Ltd.
TRL 23,790,610,000.00 99.000% 0.000%
DKK 0.000% 15.000% Astaldi International Ltd.
EUR 15,300.00 100.000% 0.000%
EUR 51,000.00 0.000% 80.000% Italstrade S.p.A.
ZRZ 50,000.00 75.000% 25.000% Astaldi International Ltd.
EUR 3,877,500.00 48.330% 0.000%
ZRZ 200,000,000.00 0.000% 100.000% Astaldi International Ltd.
uUs$ 999,336.00 0.000% 14.000% Italstrade S.p.A.
EUR 25,822.00 0.010% 0.000%
EUR 45,900.00 24.330% 0.000%
HNL 98,000,000.00 15.000% 0.000%
EUR 46,481.00 35.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,320,000.00 50.000% 0.000%
- 70.000% 0.000%
TND 40.000% 0.000%
EUR 1,033.00 100.000% 0.000%
- 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 46,800.00 60.000% 0.000%
- 14.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 25,823.00 32.000% 0.000%
EUR 30,987.00 0.010% 0.000%
EUR 25,500.00 78.800% 0.000%
EUR 45,900.00 0.010% 0.000%
EUR 41,317.00 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 20,000.00 55.000% 0.000%
EUR 45,900.00 33.000% 0.000%
EUR 20,658.00 70.432% 0.000%
EUR 25,500.00 80.000% 0.000%
EUR 25,500.00 0.010% 0.000%
EUR 60,044.00 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 25,500.00 60.000% 0.000%
US$ 100,000.00 60.000% 0.000%
- 50.000% 0.000%
uUss$ 40,000.00 28.300% 0.000%
EUR 26,000.00 0.000% 35.000% I.T.S. S.p.A.
VEB 32.330% 0.000%
EUR 46,481.00 33.330% 0.000%
EUR 100,000.00 49.995% 0.000%

(table follows)
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companies carried at cost

Consorzio A.R.Z. - Astaldi-R.I.C.- ZAIRE in liquidation
Consorzio Asse Sangro in liquidation

Consorzio Astaldi-C.M.B. Due in liquidation
Consorzio Bonifica Lunghezza - C.B.L.

Consorzio Brundisium

Consorzio C.I.R.C. in liquidation

Consorzio Carnia in liquidation

Consorzio Centro Uno

Consorzio Co.Fe.Sar.

Consorzio Cogitau S.c.n.c. in liquidation

Consorzio CONC.I.L. in liquidation

Consorzio Consarno

Consorzio Consavia S.c.n.c. in liquidation
Consorzio Dipenta S.p.A. - Ugo Vitolo in liquidation

Consorzio Europeo Armamento Alta Velocita - C.E.A.A.V.

Consorzio Ferrofir in liquidation
Consorzio Ferroviario Vesuviano
Consorzio Gi.lt. in liquidation

Consorzio Groupement Lesi-Dipenta
Consorzio Iricav Due

Consorzio Iricav Uno

Consorzio Ital.Co.Cer.

Consorzio Italvenezia

Consorzio L.A.R. in liquidation

Consorzio Metrofer

Consorzio Novocen

Consorzio Olbia Mare in liquidation
Consorzio Qalat

Consorzio Recchi S.p.A.- Astaldi S.p.A.
Consorzio Tagliamento

Consorzio Team

Consorzio TRA.DE.CI.V.

Consorzio Tre Fontane Nord in liquidation
Cospe S.c.r.l.

Costruttori Romeni Riuniti Grandi Opere S.p.A.
Diga di Arcichiaro S.c.r.l. in liquidation
Diga di Blufi S.c.r.l.

DIP.A. S.c.r.l. in liquidation

DP 2M S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Eco Po Quattro S.c.r.l.

Ecosarno S.c.r.l.

Fiorbis S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Fondazione Accademia Nazionale di S. Cecilia
Forum S.c.r.l.

Fosso Canna S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Fusaro S.C.r.I.

G.G.O. S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Groupement Astaldi SpA - Astaldi International Ltd.
Groupement Cir S.p.A.

Groupement Eurolep

Groupement ltalgisas

Holding Eléctrica Centroamericana S.p.A. - (Heca S.p.A.)

in liquidation

Hydro Honduras S.A. (Hydro West y Asociados S.A.)
|.F.C. Due S.c.r.l. in liquidation

|.F.C. S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Imprese Riunite Genova S.c.r.l. in liquidation
Imprese Riunite Genova Seconda S.c.r.l. in liquidation
Infraflegrea S.c.r.l.

Irimuse S.c.r.l.

Isclero S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Italsagi Sp. Zo. O.

Italstrade CCCF JV Bucuresti S.r.l.

Linea A S.c.r.l. in liquidation

M.N. Metropolitana di Napoli S.p.A.

M.N.6 S.C.r.l.

Marsico Nuovo S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Max Bogl-Astaldi-CCCF Asocierea JV S.r.l.

ME.SA. S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Messina Stadio S.c.r.l.

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via della Fonte di Fauno, 2/A bis - Rome - Italy
Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via Calderon de la Barca, 87 - Rome - Italy
Via Caboto n°1 - Corsico - Milan - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona,65 - Rome - Italy

C.so Vittorio Emanuele, 130 - Naples- Italy
Viale Liegi, 26 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via Passeggiata di Ripetta, 35 - Rome - Italy
Via Napoli, 329 - Castellammare di Stabia (NA) - Italy
Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via Chiatamone, 57 - Naples- Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via F.Tovaglieri, 17- Rome - Italy

Via Argine, 425 - Naples- Italy

Via privata D. Giustino, 3/A - Naples - Italy
Via Indonesia, 100 - Rome - Italy

Via F. Tovaglieri, 413 - Rome - Italy

Via F. Tovaglieri, 413 - Rome - Italy

Piazza Buenos Aires, 5 - Rome - Italy

Via Salaria, 1039 - Rome - Italy

Via Palestro, 30 - Rome - Italy

Viale Liegi, 26 - Rome - Italy

Via Oraz, 143 - Naples - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Corso Carlo Marx, 19 - Misterbianco (CT) - Italy
Via Salaria, 1039 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 101/C - Rome - Italy

Viale Sarca, 336 - Milan - Italy

Via G. Verdi, 35 - Naples - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via P. Stanislao Mancini, 2 - Rome - Italy
Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Viale Italia,1 - Sesto S. Giovanni (Ml) - Italy
Viale Sarca, 336 - Milan - Italy

Via Vittoria, 6 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via privata D. Giustino, 3/A - Naples - Italy
Zona Industriale - Agrigento - Italy

B.P. 4230 - Djibouti

Via Agrigento, 5 - Rome - Italy
Shifflandestrasse, 35 - Aaran 5000 - Switzerland

Angle Boulevard de la Resistance et Rue de Puissesaux - Casablanca - Morocco

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Ap.3199, Salida Norte Blvd. Fuerzas Armadas - El Carrizal - Tegucigalpa - Honduras

Via G. V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G. V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via A. Gramsci, 20 - Genoa - Italy

Via Serra, 2/9 - Genoa - Italy

Via privata D. Giustino, 3/A - Naples - Italy
Via Salaria, 1039 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Ul. Powstancow - Katowice - Poland
Gheorghe Manu, 20 Sector 1 - Bucharest - Romania
Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via Galileo Ferraris, 101 - Naples - Italy

Via G.Ferraris n.101 - Naples - Italy

Via Dora, 2 - Rome - Italy

Blv.Eroi Sanitar,49 - Bucharest - Romania
Via della Cooperazione, 30 - Bologna - Italy
Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy



par value of % % entity holding
currency share owned owned indirect
capital directly indirectly investment
EUR 25,823.00 1.000% 99.000% Italstrade S.p.A.
EUR 464,811.00 4.762% 0.000%
EUR 10,329.00 99.995% 0.000%
EUR 10,000.00 49.000% 0.000%
EUR 12,000.00 33.333% 0.000%
EUR 51,000.00 25.000% 0.000%
EUR 51,646.00 33.000% 0.000%
EUR 154,937.00 2.000% 0.000%
EUR 51,646.00 30.000% 0.000%
EUR 61,975.00 38.100% 0.000%
EUR 10,329.00 0.000% 50.000% I.T.S. S.p.A.
EUR 20,658.00 25.000% 0.000%
EUR 20,658.00 25.000% 0.000%
EUR 2,582.00 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 206,583.00 0.000% 25.000% Italstrade S.p.A.
EUR 30,987.00 66.666% 0.000%
EUR 154,937.00 0.004% 0.000%
EUR 2,582.00 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 258,228.00 0.010% 0.000%
EUR 510,000.00 32.990% 0.000%
EUR 520,000.00 27.910% 0.000%
EUR 51,600.00 30.000% 0.000%
EUR 77,450.00 25.000% 0.000%
EUR 206,583.00 29.410% 0.000%
EUR 25,823.00 33.320% 0.000%
EUR 51,640.00 40.760% 0.000%
EUR 15,494.00 72.500% 0.000%
EUR 10,327.00 40.000% 0.000%
EUR 51,646.00 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 154,937.00 15.000% 0.000%
EUR 45,900.00 11.111% 0.000%
EUR 154,937.00 17.727% 0.000%
EUR 15,494.00 33.333% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 100.000% 0.000%
EUR 5,164,568.00 1.000% 0.000%
EUR 35,700.00 100.000% 0.000%
EUR 45,900.00 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 100.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 72.000% 0.000%
EUR 25,500.00 80.000% 0.000%
EUR 50,490.00 33.334% 0.000%
EUR 46,481.00 99.980% 0.000%
EUR 0.000% 0.000%
EUR 51,000.00 59.990% 0.000%
EUR 25,500.00 32.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 0.010% 0.000%
EUR 25,500.00 10.000% 0.000%
us$ 60.000% 40.000% Astaldi International Ltd.
EUR 156,000.00 0.000% 33.330% Italstrade S.p.A.
CHF 100,000.00 22.000% 0.000%
MAD 207,014,000.00 0.000% 40.000% Italstrade S.p.A.
EUR 100,000.00 50.000% 0.000%
HNL 35,440,000.00 20.293% 0.000%
EUR 45,900.00 99.990% 0.000%
EUR 45,900.00 66.660% 0.000%
EUR 25,500.00 16.100% 0.000%
EUR 25,000.00 16.100% 0.000%
EUR 46,600.00 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 619,745.00 0.100% 0.000%
EUR 12,000.00 31.170% 0.000%
PLN 100,000,000.00 0.000% 34.000% Italstrade S.p.A.
LEI 2,000,000.00 0.000% 1.000% Italstrade S.p.A.
EUR 25,500.00 100.000% 0.000%
EUR 3,655,397.00 22.620% 0.000%
EUR 51,000.00 1.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 25.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,000.00 25.000% 0.000%
EUR 40,800.00 25.000% 0.000%
EUR 45,900.00 33.330% 0.000%

(table follows)
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companies carried at cost

Metrogenova S.c.r.l.
Metroveneta S.c.r.l.
Monte Vesuvio S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Montedil-Astaldi S.p.A. (MONTAST) in liquidation

Mormanno S.c.r.l. in liquidation
Mose-Treporti S.c.r.l.

N.P.F. - Nuovo Polo Fieristico S.c.r.l.
Napoli Porto S.c.r.l. in liquidation
NO.VI.F.IN. Nova Via Festinat Industrias S.c.r.l.
Nova Metro S.c.r.l. in liquidation
Palese Park S.r.l.

Pantano S.c.r.l.

Pavimental S.p.A.

Pegaso S.c.r.l.

Piana di Licata S.c.r.l. in liquidation
Piceno S.c.r.l. in liquidation
Platamonas Sarantopulos J.V.

Plus S.r.l.

Pont Ventoux S.c.r.l.

Portovesme S.c.r.l.

Principe Amedeo S.c.r.l. in liquidation
Priolo Siracusa S.c.r.l.

Quattro Venti S.c.r.l.
Raggruppamento Astaldi-Vianini in liquidation
Rome Lido S.c.r.l.

S. Filippo S.c.r.l. in liquidation

S. Leonardo S.c.r.l. in liquidation
S.A.A.L.P. S.n.c. in liquidation
S.A.C.E.S. S.r.l. in liquidation
Sa.Di.Pe. S.c.r.l. in liquidation
Salgit S.r.I.

Santangelo S.c.r.l. in liquidation
Silva S.r.l. in liquidation

Skiarea Valchiavenna S.p.A.
SO.GE.DEP. S.r.l. in liquidation
So0.Gr.Es. S.c.p.a. in liquidation
Sociedad Concesionaria BAS S.A.
Susa Dora Quattro S.c.r.l.
Tangenziale Seconda S.c.r.l. in liquidation
TE.CRO. S.c.r.l. in liquidation
Todaro S.r.l. in liquidation

Toledo S.c.r.l.

Transeuropska Autocesta d.o.o
Tri.Ace S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation
Truncu Reale S.c.r.l.

V.A.S.CO. Imprese Riunite

Val Pola S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Valle Caudina S.c.r.l.

Veneta Sanitaria Finanza di Progetto - V.S.F.P. S.p.A.

Vesuviana Strade S.c.r.l.
Viadotti di Courmayeur S.c.r.l.
Viadotto Fadalto S.c.r.l. in liquidation

Via IV Novembre snc -Spianata Acquasola - 16121 Genoa - Italy
Piazza Castello, 16 - Padua - Italy

Viale Italia, 1 - Sesto S. Giovanni (Ml) - Italy
Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via C.Battisti n°2 - (Venice) - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G. Verdi, 35 - Naples - Italy

Riviera di Chiaia, 72 - Naples - Italy

Via Montello, 10 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via Montello, 10 - Rome - Italy

Piazza Ferdinando De Lucia, 15 - Rome - Italy
Via F. Tovaglieri, 17 - Rome - Italy

Via G. V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Viale Italia, 1 - Sesto S. Giovanni (MI) - Italy
Athens - Greece

Via del Tritone, 53 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Piazza Velasca, 4 - Milan - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

S.P. per Fisciano Km.1 - Fisciano (SA) - Italy
Via Carlo Pesenti, 121/123 - Rome - Italy
Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via Boncompagni, 47 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via della Dataria, 22 - Rome - Italy

Via della Dataria, 22 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via Monte Santo, 1 - Rome - Italy

Via del Crotto, 52 - Campodolcino - Italy
Via dell’Astronomia, 9 - Rome - Italy

Via Molise, 11 - Rome - Italy

Santiago de Chile - Chile

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via Giovanni Pacini, 12 - Palermo - Italy
Via Morghen, 36 - Naples - Italy
Maksimirska 120/111 10000 - Zagreb - Croatia
Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via Montello, 10 - Rome - Italy

Viale Sarca, 336 - Milan - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via Cesare Battisti, 2 - Mestre - VE

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy

Viale Sarca , 336 - Milan - Italy




par value of % % entity holding
currency share owned owned indirect
capital directly indirectly investment
EUR 25,500.00 21.810% 0.000%
EUR 25,500.00 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 45,900.00 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 408,000.00 100.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 74.990% 0.000%
EUR 10,000.00 35.000% 0.000%
EUR 40,000.00 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,328.00 15.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,329.00 0.010% 0.000%
EUR 40,800.00 24.100% 0.000%
EUR 1,020,000.00 99.000% 0.000%
EUR 40,800.00 10.000% 0.000%
EUR 4,669,132.00 1.303% 0.000%
EUR 260,000.00 43.750% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 43.750% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 50.000% 0.000%
- 14.450% 0.000%
EUR 765,000.00 11.640% 0.000%
EUR 51,000.00 56.250% 0.000%
EUR 25,500.00 80.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 11,000.00 20.000% 0.000%
EUR 51,000.00 60.000% 0.000%
EUR 25,823.00 50.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 19.115% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 80.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 51.000% 0.000%
EUR 51,646.00 30.000% 0.000%
EUR 26,000.00 37.000% 0.000%
EUR 40,800.00 49.950% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 0.000% 33.000% Italstrade S.p.A.
EUR 51,000.00 45.000% 0.000%
EUR 15,300.00 99.000% 0.000%
EUR 7,419,680.00 0.710% 0.000%
EUR 20,400.00 22.840% 0.000%
EUR 129,000.00 25.000% 0.000%
Chilean Pesos  8,876,340,000.00 0.100% 0.000%
EUR 51,000.00 90.000% 0.000%
EUR 45,900.00 42.730% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 100.000% 0.000%
EUR 233,580.00 0.000% 100.000% Italstrade S.p.A.
EUR 50,000.00 90.394% 0.000%
HRK 49,019,600.00 49.000% 0.000%
EUR 45,900.00 80.000% 0.000%
EUR 30,600.00 34.000% 0.000%
EUR 51,646.00 29.000% 0.000%
EUR 46,481.00 35.000% 0.000%
EUR 50,000.00 52.240% 0.000%
EUR 20,500,000.00 31.000% 0.000%
EUR 45,900.00 30.000% 0.000%
EUR 10,200.00 66.670% 0.000%

EUR 51,129.00 80.000% 0.000%
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non consolidated companies

companies a) share b) stockholders*
capital equity

1 - subsidiaries
carrying method: cost
Asociacion Accidental Astaldi S.p.A. - C.B.I. s.r.l. Locality "El Portillo" - Tarija - Bolivia - -
Astaldi Africa S.p.A. in liquidation Addis Abeba - Ethiopia 1,032.91 1,032.91
Astaldi-Caldart AS.CAL. S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via Giovanni Pacini, 12 - Palermo - Italy 46,800.00 (8,761.00)
Bussentina S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 25,500.00 (60,044.00)
C.0.MES. S.C.r.l. Via G.V.Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 20,000.00 20,000.00
CO.ME.NA. S.c.r.l. Via Morghen, 36 - Naples- Italy 20,658.28 20,658.28
CO.NO.CO. S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 25,500.00 25,822.84
Colli Albani S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 25,500.00 9,190.00
Consorcio Astaldi - C.B.I. Av. Iturralde 1308 Esquina San Salvador -

La Paz - Bolivia - (6,381,512.86)
Consorzio A.R.Z. - Astaldi-R.I.C.- ZAIRE
in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 25,822.84 19,222.00
Consorzio Astaldi-C.M.B. Due in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 10,329.14 7,577.00
Consorzio Olbia Mare in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 15,493.71 (726,340.00)
Cospe S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 10,200.00 10,329.14
Diga di Arcichiaro S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 35,700.00 (46,447.00)
DIP.A. S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 10,200.00 (26,283.00)
DP 2M S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 10,200.00 (28,802.00)
Eco Po Quattro S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 25,500.00 25,822.84
Fiorbis S.c.r.l. in liquidation Viale Sarca, 336 - Milan - Italy 46,481.12 20,131.77
Forum S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 51,000.00 51,645.69
Groupement Astaldi SpA - Astaldi International Ltd. B.P. 4230 - Djibouti - -
|.F.C. Due S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G. V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 45,900.00 (303,427.00)
I.F.C. S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G. V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 45,900.00 38,645.00
Linea A S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 25,500.00 25,822.84
Montedil-Astaldi S.p.A. (MONTAST) in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome- Italy 408,000.00 1,223,171.00
Mormanno S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 10,200.00 (64,578.00)
Palese Park S.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 1,020,000.00 984,638.00
Portovesme S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 25,500.00 25,822.84
Quattro Venti S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 51,000.00 51,645.69
S. Filippo S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 10,200.00 (69,357.00)
S. Leonardo S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 10,200.00 (17,257.00)
Silva S.r.l. in liguidation Via Monte Santo, 1 - Rome - Italy 15,300.00 (31,831.00)
Susa Dora Quattro S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 51,000.00 51,645.69
TE.CRO. S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 10,200.00 (291,659.00)
Todaro S.r.l. in liquidation Via Giovanni Pacini, 12 - Palermo - Italy 233,580.00 179,299.00
Toledo S.c.r.l. Via Morghen, 36 - Naples Italy 50,000.00 50,000.00
Tri.Ace S.c.a.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 45,900.00 46,481.12
Viadotti di Courmayeur S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 10,200.00 10,329.14
Viadotto Fadalto S.c.r.l. in liquidation Viale Sarca , 336 - Milan - Italy 51,129.23 34,078.84
total carrying method: cost
carrying method: equity
Astaldi International Inc. Bank of Liberia Building P.O. Box 660 - Monrovia -

Liberia 3,404,062.17 1,690,492.70
Astaldi-Astaldi International J.V. R. Armando Tivane, 466 - Matola Maputo -

Mozambique 7,457.12 227,986.42
Astaldi-Burundi Association Momentanée Avenue de I'O.U.A. B.P. 325 - Bujumbura - Burundi 29,062.55 142,565.63
Astaldi-Sénégal Association en partecipation Avenue Roume Dakar, 16 4eme G. S. - Dakar -

Senegal 91,004.86 (172,494.73)
Astur Construction and Trade A.S. Aydinpinar Cad. Kucukmehmetler Koyu - Ankara -

Turkey 528,333.50 1,442,973.77
Euroast S.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 15,300.00 (14,773.85)
Legnami Pasotti Italy I.C. S.r.I. in liquidation Via Agrigento, 5 - Rome - Italy 51,000.00 (2,039,226.00)
Redo-Association Momentanée B.P. 8734 - Dem. Republic of Congo - 689,782.09
Seac S.p.a.r.l. in liquidation Avenue des Fleurs - Kinshasa/Gombe -

Dem. Rep. of Congo 337,101.85 (8,873,883.58)
total carrying method: equity
total 1 - subsidiaries
2 - associated companies
carrying method: cost
Adduttore Ponte Barca S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via di Pietralata, 140 - Rome - Italy 45,900.00 46,481.12
Almo S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via privata D. Giustino, 3/A - Naples - Italy 46,481.12 46,481.12
Alosa Immobiliare S.p.A. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 10,320,000.00 (41,405,770.00)
Association en participation SEP
Astaldi-Somatra-Bredero Tunisia - 17,406.75
Astaldi Bayindir J.V. Ilkadim Sokak, 19 Gaziomanpasa- Ankara - Turkey - -
Avola S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 10,200.00 (53,035.00)
Blufi 1 S.c.rl. in liquidation Zona Industriale - Agrigento - Italy 25,822.84 13,089.14
C.F.M. S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via privata D. Giustino , 3/A - Naples - Italy 41,316.55 41,316.55
Carnia S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 45,900.00 (102,003.00)
Cogital S.c.r.l. in liquidation Viale Italia, 1 - Milan - Italy 60,044.00 59,826.00
Consorcio Astaldi-ICE Av. Libertador Bolivar, 1842 - Cochabamba - Bolivia - -
Consorcio Contuy Medio Avida Andres Bello, Ed. Atlantic Piso 7, Of. 1-7 - Venezuela - (428,045.19)
Consorcio DEI Via San Nazaro, 19 - Genoa - Italy 26,000.00 26,000.00
Consorcio Grupo Contuy -
Proyectos y Obras de Ferrocarriles CCC T. 1ra Etapa Piso 6 Of. 620 Chuao - Caracas - Venezuela - 498,464.14
Consorzio A.F.T. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 46,481.12 46,481.12




c) profit (loss) d) % e) book f) share of net g) share of h) coverage i) distributed 1) equity as per
for the year ownership value equity provision for of profits art. 2426 sub. 1
min. inter. risks losses n. 4 it. civ.code
- 70.000% - - - - -
- 100.000% - 1,032.91 - - (1,032.91)
(13,116.00) 60.000% - (5,256.60) 5,256.60 - -
(69,046.00) 78.800% - (47,314.67) 47,314.67 - -
- 55.000% 11,000.00 11,000.00 - - -
- 70.432% 14,549.62 14,550.04 - - (0.42)
- 80.000% 11,620.28 20,658.27 - - (9,037.99)
(3,371.00) 60.000% 5,514.00 5,514.00 - - -
(1,633,826.38) 60.000% - (3,828,907.72) - - 3,828,907.72
(5,595.00) 100.000% 24,761.22 19,222.00 - - 5,539.22
(3,502.00) 99.995% 7,576.62 7,576.62 - - -
(2,618.00) 72.500% - (526,596.50) 526,596.50 - -
- 100.000% 5,681.03 10,329.14 - - (4,648.11)
(48,922.00) 100.000% - (46,447.00) 46,447.00 - -
(8,749.00) 100.000% - (26,283.00) 26,283.00 - -
(2,546.00) 72.000% 4,179.56 (20,737.44) - - 24,917.00
- 80.000% 20,658.28 20,658.27 - - 0.01
(4,664.53) 99.980% 20,127.74 20,127.74 - - -
- 59.990% 30,982.25 30,982.25 - - -
- 100.000% - - - - -
(92,360.00) 99.990% - (303,396.66) 303,396.66 - -
(7,256.00) 66.660% 15,493.71 25,760.76 - - (10,267.05)
- 100.000% 25,822.84 25,822.84 - - -
(13,797.00) 100.000% 650,735.69 1,223,171.00 - - (572,435.31)
(3,115.00) 74.990% - (48,427.04) 48,427.04 - -
(11,581.00) 99.000%  1,022,584.66  974,791.62 - - 47,793.04
- 80.000% 20,658.28 20,658.27 - - 0.01
- 60.000% 30,987.41 30,987.41 - - -
(16,247.00) 80.000% - (55,485.60) 55,485.60 - -
(16,485.00) 51.000% - (8,801.07) 8,801.07 - -
(1,130.00) 99.000% - (31,512.69) 31,512.70 - (0.01)
- 90.000% 46,481.12 46,481.12 - - -
(96,986.00) 100.000% - (291,659.00) 291,659.00 - -
151,820.00 100.000% 236,537.26  179,299.00 - - 57,238.26
- 90.394% 45,197.00 45,197.00 - - -
- 80.000% 37,184.90 37,184.90 - - -
- 66.670% 3,718.49 6,886.44 - - (3,167.95)
- 80.000% 27,263.07 27,263.07 - - -
2,319,315.03 (2,435,670.32) 1,391,179.84 - 3,363,805.51
- 100.000%  1,690,492.70 1,690,492.70 - - -
374,585.29 100.000% 227,986.42 227,986.42 - - -
3,485.34 100.000% 142,565.63  142,565.63 - - -
176,722.12 100.000% - (172,494.73) 172,494.73 - -
235,336.77 99.000%  1,442,973.77 1,442,973.77 - - -
(5,359.41) 100.000% - (14,773.85) 14,773.85 - -
(2,089,000.00) 80.000% - (1,631,380.80) 1,631,380.80 - -
- 100.000% 689,782.09 689,782.09 - - -
(259,143.21) 100.000% - (7,383,413.14) 7,383,413.14 - -
4,193,800.61  (5,008,261.91) 9,202,062.52 - -
6,513,115.64 (7,443,932.23) 10,593,242.36 - 3,363,805.51
- 24.330% 11,308.86 11,308.86 - - -
- 35.000% 16,268.39 16,268.39 - - -
(456,676.00) 50.000% —-(20,702,885.00) 228,338.00 20,474,547.00 -
17,406.75 40.000% - 6,962.70 - - (6,962.70)
- 50.000% - - - - -
(33,034.00) 50.000% - (26,517.50) 26,517.50 - -
- 32.000% 4,188.52 4,188.52 - - -
- 50.000% 20,658.28 20,658.28 - - -
(54,932.00) 33.000% - (33,660.99) 33,660.99 - -
(578.00) 50.000% 29,913.00 29,913.00 - - -
- 50.000% - - - - -
(431,244.90) 28.300% 109,617.98 (121,136.79) - - 230,754.77
- 35.000% 12,134.44 9,100.00 - - 3,034.44
(836,103.70) 32.330% - 161,153.46 - - (161,153.46)
- 33.330% 15,493.71 15,492.16 - - 1.55

(table follows)
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non consolidated companies
companies a) share b) stockholders*
capital equity

carrying method: cost
Consorzio A.F.T. Kramis Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 100,000.00 100,000.00
Consorzio Bonifica Lunghezza - C.B.L. Via Calderon de la Barca, 87 - Rome - Italy 10,000.00 10,000.00
Consorzio Brundisium Via Caboto n°1 - Corsico - Milan - Italy 12,000.00 -
Consorzio C.I.R.C. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 51,000.00 51,645.69
Consorzio Carnia in liquidation Via G.V. Bona,65 - Rome - Italy 51,645.69 51,645.69
Consorzio Co.Fe.Sar. Viale Liegi, 26 - Rome - Italy 51,645.69 51,645.00
Consorzio Cogitau S.c.n.c. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 61,974.83 1,213,749.00
Consorzio CONC.I.L. in liquidation Via Passeggiata di Ripetta, 35 - Rome - Italy 10,329.14 6,564.00
Consorzio Consarno Via Napoli, 329 - Castellammare di Stabia (NA) - Italy =~ 20,658.28 20,658.28
Consorzio Consavia S.c.n.c. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 20,658.28 12,570.00
Consorzio Dipenta S.p.A. - Ugo Vitolo in liquidation Via Chiatamone, 57 - Naples - Italy 2,582.28 -
Consorzio Europeo Armamento Alta Velocita - C.E.A.A.V. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 206,583.00 206,584.00
Consorzio Ferrofir in liquidation Via F.Tovaglieri, 17- Rome - Italy 30,987.41 534,800.45
Consorzio Gi.lt. in liquidation Via privata D. Giustino, 3/A - Naples - Italy 2,582.28 2,582.28
Consorzio Iricav Due Via F. Tovaglieri, 413 - Rome - ltaly 510,000.00 516,456.90
Consorzio Iricav Uno Via F. Tovaglieri, 413 - Rome - ltaly 520,000.00 520,000.00
Consorzio Ital.Co.Cer. Piazza Buenos Aires, 5 - Rome - Italy 51,600.00 51,644.00
Consorzio Italvenezia Via Salaria, 1039 - Rome - Italy 77,450.00 77,468.00
Consorzio L.A.R. in liquidation Via Palestro, 30 - Rome - Italy 206,582.76 206,582.76
Consorzio Metrofer Viale Liegi, 26 - Rome - Italy 25,822.84 25,822.84
Consorzio Novocen Via Oraz, 143 - Naples - Italy 51,640.00 1,105,785.00
Consorzio Qalat Corso Carlo Marx, 19 - Misterbianco (CT) - Italy 10,327.00 10,329.14
Consorzio Recchi S.p.A.- Astaldi S.p.A. Via Salaria, 1039 - Rome - Italy 51,645.69 51,645.69
Consorzio Tre Fontane Nord in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 15,493.71 (15,873.00)
Diga di Blufi S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 45,900.00 46,481.12
Ecosarno S.c.r.l. Viale Italia,1 - Sesto S. Giovanni (Ml) - Italy 50,490.00 51,129.00
Fosso Canna S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 25,500.00 10,967.00
Groupement Cir S.p.A. Via Agrigento, 5 - Rome - Italy 156,000.00 195,063.00
Groupement Eurolep Shifflandestrasse, 35 - Aaran 5000 - Switzerland 62,127.39 56,334.78
Groupement ltalgisas Angle Boulevard de la Resistance et Rue de Puissesaux -

Casablanca - Morocco - -
Holding Eléctrica Centroamericana S.p.A. -
(Heca S.p.A.) in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 100,000.00 (86,631.00)
Hydro Honduras S.A. (Hydro West y Asociados S.A.) Ap.3199, Salida Norte Blvd. Fuerzas Armadas -

El Carrizal - Tegucigalpa - Honduras 2,518,655.24 1,582,346.02
Infraflegrea S.c.r.l. Via privata D. Giustino, 3/A - Naples - Italy 46,600.00 46,600.00
Isclero S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 12,000.00 (67,397.00)
Italsagi Sp. Zo. O. Ul. Powstancow - Katowice - Poland 3,615.20 (27,372.21)
M.N. Metropolitana di Napoli S.p.A. Via Galileo Ferraris, 101 - Naples - Italy 3,655,397.00 6,290,395.00
Marsico Nuovo S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via Dora, 2 - Rome - Italy 10,200.00 (12,528.00)
Max Bogl-Astaldi-CCCF Asocierea JV S.r.l. Blv.Eroi Sanitar,49 - Bucharest - Romania 10,000.00 -
ME.SA. S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via della Cooperazione, 30 - Bologna - Italy 40,800.00 41,316.55
Messina Stadio S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 45,900.00 46,481.12
Metrogenova S.c.r.l. Via IV Novembre snc -Spianata Acquasola -

16121 Genoa - Italy 25,500.00 25,822.84
Metroveneta S.c.r.l. Piazza Castello, 16 - Padua - Italy 25,500.00 25,822.84
Monte Vesuvio S.c.r.l. in liquidation Viale Italia, 1 - Sesto S. Giovanni (MI) - Italy 45,900.00 46,481.12
Mose-Treporti S.c.r.l. Via C.Battisti n°2 - Venice - Mestre - Italy 10,000.00 -
N.P.F. - Nuovo Polo Fieristico S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 40,000.00 40,000.00
Nova Metro S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via Montello, 10 - Rome - Italy 40,800.00 41,316.55
Pegaso S.c.r.l. Via F. Tovaglieri, 17 - Rome - Italy 260,000.00 260,000.00
Piana di Licata S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G. V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 10,200.00 (246,354.00)
Piceno S.c.r.l. in liquidation Viale Italia, 1 - Sesto S. Giovanni ( Ml) - Italy 10,200.00 (491,930.00)
Pont Ventoux S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 51,000.00 51,645.69
Principe Amedeo S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 10,200.00 (145,792.00)
Priolo Siracusa S.c.r.l. Piazza Velasca, 4 - Milan - Italy 11,000.00 77,648.24
Raggruppamento Astaldi-Vianini in liquidation S.P. per Fisciano Km.1 - Fisciano (SA) - Italy 25,822.84 21,115.00
S.A.A.L.P. S.n.c. in liquidation Via Boncompagni, 47 - Rome - Italy 51,646.00 (164,668.00)
S.A.C.E.S. S.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 26,000.00 561,719.00
Sa.Di.Pe. S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via della Dataria, 22 - Rome - Italy 40,800.00 38,037.00
Salgit S.r.I. Via della Dataria, 22 - Rome - Italy 10,200.00 (8,650.63)
Santangelo S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 51,000.00 24,048.00
SO.GE.DEP. S.r.l. in liquidation Via dell'Astronomia, 9 - Rome - Italy 20,400.00 (11,661.00)
So0.Gr.Es. S.c.p.a. in liquidation Via Molise, 11 - Rome - Italy 129,000.00 129,114.22
Tangenziale Seconda S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 45,900.00 46,480.00
Transeuropska Autocesta d.o.o Maksimirska 120/111 10000 - Zagreb - Croatia 6,466,390.57 6,055,541.07
Truncu Reale S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 30,600.00 30,987.41
V.A.S.CO. Imprese Riunite Via Montello, 10 - Rome - Italy 51,645.69 84,472.80
Val Pola S.c.r.l. in liquidation Viale Sarca, 336 - Milan - Italy 46,481.12 45,489.88
Valle Caudina S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 50,000.00 51,645.69
Veneta Sanitaria Finanza di Progetto - V.S.F.P. S.p.A. Via Cesare Battisti, 2 - Mestre - VE 20,500,000.00 20,480,098.00
Vesuviana Strade S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy 45,900.00 46,481.12
total carrying method: cost
carrying method: equity
Astaldi-Ferrocemento J.V. 10-Ha Khayaban-E-Shujat - Karachi - Pakistan 37,285.61 (365,185.33)
S.E.I.S. S.p.A. Via Monte Santo, 1 - Rome - Italy 3,877,500.00 5,086,860.34

total carrying method: equity

total 2 - associated companies

grand total




c) profit (loss) d) % e) book f) share of net g) share of h) coverage i) distributed 1) equity as per
for the year ownership value equity provision for of profits art. 2426 sub. 1
min. inter. risks losses n. 4 it. civ.code

- 49.995% 49,995.00 49,995.00 - - - -

- 49.000% 4,900.00 4,900.00 - - - -

- 33.333% 4,000.00 - - - - 4,000.00

- 25.000% 12,911.42 12,911.42 - - - -

- 33.000% 17,043.08 17,043.08 - - - -

- 30.000% 15,493.71 15,493.50 - - - 0.21

3,192.00 38.100% 23,612.40 462,438.37 - - - (438,825.97)

1,887.00 50.000% 5,164.57 3,282.00 - - - 1,882.57

- 25.000% 5,164.57 5,164.57 - - - -

(8,089.00) 25.000% 5,164.57 3,142.50 - - - 2,022.07

- 50.000% - - - - - -

- 25.000% 51,645.69 51,646.00 - - - (0.31)

- 66.666% 20,658.28  356,530.07 - - - (335,871.79)

- 50.000% 1,291.14 1,291.14 - - - -

- 32.990% 170,379.13  170,379.13 - - - -
. 27.910% 145,132.00  145,132.00 - - - -
- 30.000% 15,493.71 15,493.20 - - - 0.51

- 25.000% 19,367.13  19,367.00 - - - 0.13
- 29.410% 51,645.69  60,755.99 - - - (9,110.30)

- 33.320% 8,607.62 8,604.17 - - - 3.45
264,901.00 40.760% 19,475.59  450,717.97 - - - (431,242.38)
- 40.000% 4,131.66 4,131.66 - - - -

- 50.000% 25,822.84  25,822.85 - - - (0.01)
(7,351.00) 33.333% - (5,290.95) 5,291.00 - - (0.05)
- 50.000% 23,240.56  23,240.56 - - - -

- 33.334% 17,043.08  17,043.34 - - - (0.26)
(14,856.00) 32.000% 3,509.44 3,509.44 - - - -
(8,082.00) 33.330% 42,849.94  65,014.50 - - - (22,164.56)
- 22.000% 8,087.51  12,393.65 - - - (4,306.14)

- 40.000% - - - - - -
(15,839.00) 50.000% - (43,315.50) 43,315.50 - - -
- 20.293% 510,624.88  321,105.48 - - - 198,519.40

- 50.000% 23,300.00  23,300.00 - - - -
(72,231.00) 31.170% - (21,007.64) 21,007.64 - - -
- 34.000% - (9,306.55) - - - 9,306.55
(325,502.00) 22.620%  3,298,708.14 1,422,887.35 - - - 1,875,820.79
(17,743.00) 25.000% - (3,132.00) 3,132.00 - - -
- 25.000% 2,500.00 - - - - 2,500.00

- 25.000% 10,329.14  10,329.14 - - - -

- 33.330% 15,493.71  15,492.16 - - - 1.55

- 21.810% 5,055.48 5,631.96 - - - (576.48)

- 50.000% 12,911.42  12,911.42 - - - -

- 50.000% 23,240.56  23,240.56 - - - -

- 35.000% 3,500.00 - - - - 3,500.00

- 50.000% 20,000.00  20,000.00 - - - -

- 24.100% 8,263.31 9,957.29 - - - (1,693.98)

- 43.750% 113,750.00  113,750.00 - - - -
(3,738.00) 43.750% - (107,779.88)  107,779.88 - - -
(207,076.00) 50.000% - (245,965.00)  245,965.00 - - -
- 56.250% 23,240.56  29,050.70 - - - (5,810.14)
(9,508.00) 50.000% - (72,896.00) 72,896.00 - - -
- 20.000% 2,065.83  15,529.65 - - - (13,463.82)

(760.00) 50.000% 10,557.50  10,557.50 - - - -

- 30.000% 15,493.71  (49,400.40) - - - 64,894.11
(140,282.00) 37.000% 9,554.45  207,836.03 - - - (198,281.58)
(3,279.00) 49.950% 18,999.48  18,999.48 - - - -
- 33.000% - (2,854.71) - - - 2,854.71
(3,345.00) 45.000% 10,821.60  10,821.60 - - - -
(27,130.00) 22.840% 3,533.12 (2,663.37) - - - 6,196.49
- 25.000% 32,278.56  32,278.56 - - - -

- 42.730% 19,860.90  19,860.90 - - - -
(49,934.82) 49.000%  3,157,743.80 2,967,215.12 - - - 190,528.68
- 34.000% 10,535.72  10,535.72 - - - -

- 29.000% 14,977.25  24,497.11 - - - (9,519.86)

- 35.000% 15,921.46  15,921.46 - - - -

- 52.240% 20,234.78  26,979.71 - - - (6,744.93)
(19,901.00) 31.000%  6,355,000.00 6,348,830.38 - - - 6,169.62
- 30.000% 13,944.34  13,944.34 - - - -
14,782,853.21 (7,435,860.18) 787,903.51 20,474,547.00 - 956,262.88

(189,927.00) 50.000% - (182,592.67)  182,592.67 - - -
423,304.17 48.330%  2,458,479.60 2,458,479.60 - - - -
2,458,479.60  2,275,886.93 182,592.67 - - -

17,241,332.81 (5,159,973.25) 970,496.18 20,474,547.00 - 956,262.88

23,754,448.45 (12,603,905.48) 11,563,738.54 20,474,547.00 4,320,068.39
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list of non consolidated minority interests

companies par value
currency of
share capital

1 - subsidiaries

Asociacion Accidental Astaldi S.p.A. - C.B.I. s.r.l. Locality "El Portillo" - Tarija - Bolivia - -
Astaldi (Thailand) Company Ltd. 21/125 FI.17 Unit A, Thai Wah Tower Il SathornTai Road-

Sathorn - Bangkok -Thailand BHT 10,000,000.00
Astaldi Africa S.p.A. in liquidation Addis Abeba - Ethiopia EUR 1,033.00
Astaldi Arabia Ltd. P.O. Box 58139 - Riad - Saudi Arabia SAR 5,000,000.00
Astaldi International Inc. Bank of Liberia Building P.O. Box 660 - Monrovia - Liberia US$ 3,000,000.00
Astaldi-Astaldi International J.V. R. Armando Tivane, 466 - Matola Maputo - Mozambique US$ 10,000.00
Astaldi-Burundi Association Momentanée Avenue de I'O.U.A. B.P. 325 - Bujumbura - Burundi US$ 50,000.00
Astaldi-Caldart AS.CAL. S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via Giovanni Pacini, 12 - Palermo - Italy EUR 46,800.00
Astaldi-Malawi, Astaldi - Astaldi International J.V. Private Bag 148 - Blantyre - Malawi US$ 10,000.00
Astaldi-Rwanda Association Momentanée Rue de la Douane - Kigali - Rwanda US$ 50,000.00
Astaldi-Sénégal Association en participation Avenue Roume Dakar, 16 4eme G. S. - Dakar - Senegal XOF 50,000,000.00
Astur Construction and Trade A.S. Aydinpinar Cad. Kucukmehmetler Koyu - Ankara - Turkey TRL 237,906,100.00
Bussentina S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 25,500.00
C.O.MES. S.C.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 20,000.00
CO.ME.NA. S.c.r.l. Via Morghen, 36 - Naples - Italy EUR 20,658.00
CO.NO.CO. S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 25,500.00
Colli Albani S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 25,500.00
Consorcio Astaldi - C.B.I. Av. Iturralde 1308 Esquina San Salvador - La Paz - Bolivia US$ 100,000.00
Consorcio Astaldi-Centroxca C.C.C. T. 1ra, Etapa Piso 6 Of. 620 - Caracas - Venezuela - -
Consorzio A.R.Z. - Astaldi-R.I.C.- ZAIRE in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 25,823.00
Consorzio Astaldi-C.M.B. Due in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 10,329.00
Consorzio Olbia Mare in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 15,494.00
Cospe S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 10,200.00
Diga di Arcichiaro S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 35,700.00
DIP.A. S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 10,200.00
DP 2M S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 10,200.00
Eco Po Quattro S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 25,500.00
Euroast S.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 15,300.00
Fiorbis S.c.r.l. in liquidation Viale Sarca, 336 - Milan - Italy EUR 46,481.00
Forum S.c.r.l. Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 51,000.00
Groupement Astaldi SpA - Astaldi International Ltd. B.P. 4230 - Djibouti uUss$ -
I.F.C. Due S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 45,900.00
I.F.C. S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 45,900.00
Legnami Pasotti Italia I.C. S.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 51,000.00
Linea A S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 25,500.00
Montedil-Astaldi S.p.A. (MONTAST) in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 65 - Rome - Italy EUR 408,000.00
Mormanno S.c.r.l. in liquidation Via G.V. Bona, 6